Fundamentals of Laser Physics

Editors

Fatima Mohammed Shkhair Najm

Department of Laser Physics, College of Science for Women, University of Babylon, Iraq

Mohammed Jasim Mohammed Abas

Department of Laser Science and Technology, University of Technology and Applied Sciences, Iraq

Saja Eabd Alamir Chkuer

Technology of Laser Branch, University of Technology, Iraq

Sumia Abbas Hussein

Department of Laser Physics, College of Science for Women, University of Babylon, Iraq

Bright Sky Publications TM New Delhi Published By: Bright Sky Publications

Bright Sky Publication Office No. 3, 1st Floor, Pocket - H34, SEC-3, Rohini, Delhi, 110085, India

Editors: Fatima Mohammed Shkhair Najm, Mohammed Jasim Mohammed Abas, Saja Eabd Alamir Chkuer and Sumia Abbas Hussein

The author/publisher has attempted to trace and acknowledge the materials reproduced in this publication and apologize if permission and acknowledgements to publish in this form have not been given. If any material has not been acknowledged please write and let us know so that we may rectify it.

© Bright Sky Publications

Edition: 1st

Publication Year: 2025

Pages: 111

Paperback ISBN: 978-93-6233-785-6

E-Book ISBN: 978-93-6233-535-7

DOI: https://doi.org/10.62906/bs.book.253

Price: ₹515/-

Contents

S. No.	Chapters	Page No
1.	Introduction to Laser Physics	01-04
2.	Optical Resonators	05-09
3.	Population Inversion	10-14
4.	Gain and Threshold Gain	15-20
5.	Laser Modes	21-24
6.	Types of Lasers	25-30
7.	Semiconductor Lasers	31-36
8.	Nonlinear Optics	37-40
9.	Ultrafast Lasers	41-46
10.	Applications of Lasers	47-51
11.	Quantum Optics	52-57
12.	Quantum Information Processing	58-61
13.	Quantum Cryptography	62-66
14.	Laser Safety	67-70
15.	Future Trends in Laser Physics	71-73
	References	74-111

Introduction to Laser Physics

The significance of the laser in the extensive and complex realm of quantum optics is so incredibly paramount that it is quite difficult for me to grasp how anyone could have once posed such a thought-provoking question. In light of this profound notion, there exists a multitude of intricate principles that one must carefully consider and contemplate. However, even more critically, the profound importance of the laser to the fundamental optical sciences and various advanced technologies is so substantial that it would be practically impossible to overstate its impact and relevance in contemporary research and applications. When reflecting on this much broader inquiry, and through the advantageous lens of hindsight, I will offer a well-considered response that seeks to clarify the matter. This answer may vary depending on the seriousness with which one approaches the pun involved in this discourse, particularly when related to amusing metaphors concerning light bulbs. The intricate examination of the coherence of this metaphoric framework ultimately leads to several less humorous yet tangible criteria through which one can definitively establish that light emitted from a traditional light bulb cannot be accurately deemed a laser, at least according to a certain precise definition often considered in scientific debates. The intricate details surrounding the consistency and quality of this metaphoric exploration carry significant experimental implications for the intensity fluctuations associated with frequency-filtered laser light, indicating that prior theories may contain noteworthy flaws in this crucial aspect. From the perspective of cluster physics, the remarkable process of preparing the ion jet is less fascinating; rather, the real interest lies in the exciting ejection of electrons, ions, atoms, and other related particles during the intriguing interaction that occurs between the laser and the clusters. When intense laser fields are involved, one can conceptually conceptualize the cluster as a sort of artificial 'atom' that is truncated by the finite Debye length, which possesses a fixed dimension that represents the atomic nucleus within this context. Consequently, for a conventional metal cluster containing approximately 100 atoms, the electric field can be regarded as relatively consistent across its entire extent. The exceedingly small Debye field that envelops these unique clusters ensures a natural screening effect of the ionic core charge, allowing for various interactions to be observed. To better visualize this intricate process, one might imagine a plane wave front striking a system composed of such clusters, all meticulously aligned along the path of the laser's propagation, where the density of their electron gas is significantly lower than the critical value that is required for certain physical phenomena to occur within this fascinating framework of quantum optics [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10].

1.1 Historical Development of Lasers

In the year 1917, a remarkable and transformative milestone in the annals of scientific history was reached when the eminent physicist Albert Einstein formulated the revolutionary concept of stimulated emission, which became a cornerstone in the fields of quantum mechanics and optics. Stimulated emission can be defined as the sophisticated and intricate process by which an incoming photon interacts with an excited atom or molecule, stimulating the emission of an additional photon. This newly emitted photon exhibits the same energy, frequency, phase, and direction as the incoming or stimulating photon. This extraordinary phenomenon stands in stark contrast to spontaneous emission, a different process through which an emitted photon is generated due to the natural loss of energy from the emitting atom itself without any external influence. For the occurrence of stimulated emission to take place, it is critical that the density of incident photons exceeds a specific threshold, commonly known as B21, and that a phenomenon referred to as population inversion is achieved within the atom or medium being considered. Meeting these requirements can be quite challenging and complex. It was not until the 1950s that the scientific community experienced a breakthrough with the invention of a practical device capable of effectively generating stimulated emission of photons. In 1954, the first such device, known as the maser, came into existence. The maser employed the principles of stimulated emission to produce coherent microwave radiation and was designed as a long, narrow cylinder with a hole located at one end. This groundbreaking device relied on ammonia gas to facilitate the efficient generation of microwave radiation. The microwave output produced by the maser was deemed coherent because the electromagnetic field within the device became synchronized, with coherence lengths extending over several meters, which is a remarkable feat for such technology. Building on the principles originally established by the maser, the scientific community made significant advancements in 1958 when they proposed that stimulated emission could be effectively harnessed for practical applications within the infrared and optical ranges of the electromagnetic spectrum. The newly envisioned device bore similarities to the original maser but featured a more intricate design that incorporated nuts and bolts arranged in such a way as to create an outline of mirrors. These carefully positioned mirrors functioned to form what is known as an optical cavity, allowing the photons to be amplified efficiently while also providing the necessary feedback to the lasing material contained within the device. Among the fascinating constructions developed during this period was a ruby crystal that was optically pumped utilizing a helical flashtube, which was designed with an innovative surrounding water jacket for effective thermal management. The successful functioning of this sophisticated device necessitated intricate optical focusing from both ends of the crystal, ultimately contributing to a lower overall efficiency in its operation compared to what was initially desired. Initially, this groundbreaking and innovative device was referred to as the Optical Maser; however, as time passed, this term was gradually replaced and became widely recognized by the more popular acronym LASER, which stands for Light Amplification by Stimulated Emission of Radiation. This shift in terminology marked a significant evolution in understanding and applying the principles of stimulated emission in various scientific and technological fields [11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18].

1.2 Basic Principles of Lasers

The light that is emitted by the vast majority of natural sources is fundamentally the result of the thermal agitation experienced by atoms or molecules, and this phenomenon is specifically termed thermal light. This wonderful phenomenon reveals that the electric field produced by many of these natural sources can indeed be accurately modeled as an incoherent summation of electric fields, each characterized by random amplitudes and phases, thus creating a broad spectrum of light. Furthermore, the spectral properties of this light depend solely on the temperature of the source in question, a factor that plays a crucial role in determining the characteristics of the emitted light. This particular model of light was innovatively proposed by Max Planck back in 1900, and it was subsequently validated over time, providing a quantitative explanation for numerous properties of light, including the well-known speckle effect that can be observed in various contexts. Speckle can be seen, for example, in the patterns that light creates when passed through a diffusive medium or reflects off rough surfaces. However, once researchers identified a source of light that successfully met the Planck hypothesis—which posits a statistical independence among the atomic or molecular emitters—specifically, the maser, it became conceivable to explore and consider the existence of light with a completely different, nonthermal character that possesses a specific band of a certain width. In the year

1958, renowned scientists Basov and Prokhorov conducted groundbreaking experiments that demonstrated that thermal light could be focused down to a point only to a minimum width of approximately λ , which has essentially raised significant and important questions concerning the coherence time associated with laser light, a type of light that is well-known for its precision and focus. Additional experimental outcomes have indicated that the corpuscular model of light, which Edwin Thompson believed he had established through the photoelectric effect, functions perfectly well in explaining and describing the behavior of laser light as well. The fundamental inquiry then arises: laser light represents a form of light that did not exist prior to its innovative invention and stands in stark contrast to either Thompson's or Planck's historic models of light, marking a significant shift in our understanding. What precisely distinguishes laser light from these earlier historical concepts, in a manner that can be rigorously articulated and ideally holds predictive capabilities, is a matter of keen interest for many researchers. This inquiry is not merely focused on identifying the essential idea that led to the creation of the very first laser; nor is it solely concerned with understanding the core concepts that shed light on the relatively novel and emerging realm of spaserics, where coherence and stimulated emission are fundamental. Instead, the ultimate question is: what are the fundamental features that serve to distinctly differentiate laser light from thermal light, considering that the assumption surrounding thermal light is far from simplistic or trivial and involves nuanced and complex interactions of light at the atomic and molecular levels? [1, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28].

Optical Resonators

The operational principles of laser resonators are revisited in this paper with a renewed, insightful perspective, utilizing the remarkable advancements made possible by active-mirror technology. It is clearly demonstrated that the boundary condition of the commonly accepted wave equation—more specifically, the continuity condition of the electric field components on the mirror surfaces—contains a critical, significant error that affects our understanding of the system. This incorrect boundary condition governs only half of the resonances that are associated with mirrors utilized in the laser setup, potentially leading to misunderstandings in performance and behavior. A corrected, more accurate version of the wave equation is meticulously derived in this study, representing a significant step forward in the field. This new formulation encompasses a wide array of various aspects of laser operation, including absorbed, amplified, gain-switched, and resonator laser operations, thus providing a holistic overview.

Moreover, a comprehensive general formula is presented to facilitate the calculation of mirror resonances specifically tailored for stable resonators. The outcome of this general formula essentially results in an infinitely expanding series that, when applied to specific cases, reveals a greater level of simplicity and clarity. Thanks to the established knowledge on the resonances of planar mirrors, concentrically spherical mirrors, and concentrically elliptical mirrors, the general formula becomes significantly easier to handle and apply for these fundamental types of resonators. This simplification holds promise for researchers and engineers alike, allowing for more efficient designs and experimentation.

In the concluding part of the research, several simulations were thoughtfully performed on a stable, axially symmetric, passive mirror, providing practical insights into theoretical considerations. This experimental setup was further complemented by the use of an open resonator featuring an unstable resonator configuration designed specifically for a Ne-like In gain-switched soft X-ray laser, which introduces additional complexities and interesting characteristics to the analysis. Notably, in the experimental observations related to this sophisticated laser system, amplification of

spatially incoherent excitation modes was observed, raising critical questions about coherence and mode behavior. This intriguing phenomenon is thoroughly explained and discussed within the body of this thoughtful paper, contributing valuable insights into the implications and potential applications of the newly validated wave equation in laser technology, thereby enhancing our understanding and capabilities in this exciting scientific domain [29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37]

2.1 Fabry-Perot Resonators

An optical resonator is fundamentally a sophisticated and intricate system composed of a wide array of polarizing and reflecting surfaces that synergistically collaborate to confine and control light with remarkable efficiency within a designated area. The inherent capabilities of these surfaces to intelligently manipulate, shape, and modulate light lead to a dramatic and significant buildup of light intensity confined within the resonator, with increases that can, in certain cases, reach staggering levels, sometimes magnified by extraordinary factors of millions. Despite this impressive capacity for amplification, it is crucial to recognize that the resonance phenomenon taking place within the resonator displays a somewhat greedy and demanding nature, driven by the precise requirements of optical physics. If the light's intensity fails to reach the necessary threshold for effective gain, it will be absorbed exponentially, resulting in substantial losses that can seriously compromise the overall integrity of the whole system and its intended functionalities.

With regard to the construction aspects, the resonator can be effectively envisioned and modeled as a pair of mirrors that are meticulously and precisely positioned in such a way as to facilitate optimal light confinement and reflectivity. The various characteristics and behaviors exhibited by such a resonator can be systematically quantified or described through the establishment of what is known in the field as the Free Spectral Range (FSR), a critical parameter in understanding resonant behavior. Additionally, the utilization of ray transfer matrices (RTM) emerges as a valuable and powerful analytical tool for calculating numerous properties that are intrinsically associated with a resonator. These properties may include, but are by no means limited to, the coupling efficiency between the resonator and its external input light source, as well as its overall transmittivity metrics. For instance, the measurement referred to as mode size mismatch (MSM) specifically pertains to the ratio of the intensities of the modes involved, providing valuable insights into how the focusing spot of the incoming input mode correlates with the corresponding spot size of the resonator mode itself.

Furthermore, the potential losses that may occur within a given optical cavity can be attributed to several factors, including gas absorption effects or the unique absorption qualities of the substrate material utilized in the resonator's construction. Among the myriad types of laser resonators available in the field of photonics, the Fabry-Perot (FP) cavity distinctly stands out as a widely recognized and utilized option in various applications ranging from telecommunications to high-precision lasers. This particular type of resonator is predominantly constructed using a pair of parallel flat mirrors that exhibit an exceptionally high reflectivity rate, which is generally greater than 99%—a critical feature that significantly enhances and optimizes the overall performance of the resonator through minimal losses. The operation and characteristics of these mirrors are meticulously defined by their designated reflectivity parameters coupled with the associated losses incurred during operation, which must be carefully controlled.

In this particular context, the Free Spectral Range (FSR) can be conveniently and precisely related to specific cavity metrics, including the physical cavity length and the high-quality materials utilized, with the modes residing within the cavity being spaced apart by intervals that can reach several gigahertz (GHz), illustrating the fine-tuning of resonance properties essential for effective laser performance. The finesse of such a cavity can achieve astonishingly high values, extending to remarkable magnitudes, often reaching around 106, indicating the sharpness of resonance peaks. To effectively manipulate the Free Spectral Range (FSR) or further enhance the finesse of the resonator, one must commonly engage in experimentation with the resonance characteristics, often through the innovative implementation of a Factor Pulling effect. This significant adjustment can be proficiently accomplished via the strategic introduction of modulation to one of the mirrors. Therefore, a cavity is ultimately delineated by a combination of several critical parameters, which encompass its width (W), the precise height of each mirror (H), the thickness of their reflective coating, the specific material composition of the mirrors themselves, alongside the overall geometric configurations of these components. All of these factors play vital roles in determining the performance characteristics of the optical resonator as a whole, influencing both the efficiency of light confinement and the operational stability essential in various applications [38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46].

2.2 Ring Resonators

Ideal ring resonators are primarily distinguished by the captivating presence of travelling-wave modes that propagate in opposite directions, a phenomenon commonly referred to as counterpropagating modes. These particular types of ring resonators, when skillfully engineered utilizing the advanced higher order travelling-wave approximation, possess extraordinary capability to support a unique family of optical modes that are widely recognized in the field as counterpropagating modes. In numerous scenarios where a specific system can be regarded as exhibiting a potentially lossless and reciprocal nature, these exceptional counterpropagating modes demonstrate a truly fascinating property: they are inherently degenerate in nature. This intriguing degeneracy signifies that a complete mode connection exists, specifically composed of pairs of counterpropagating modes that not only share the same parity but also have degenerate resonant frequencies. The importance of this connection is profound and absolutely cannot be overstated; it effectively minimizes theoretical inefficiencies and ensures that if a ring resonator is excited ideally through a perfectly balanced counterpropagating mode pair, light is capable of circulating within the ring with absolutely zero round-trip losses attributable to any potential imperfections that may arise. Furthermore, further underscoring the importance of these distinctive modes, when light that is spontaneously emitted is introduced into such a resonator, it shows a tendency to preferentially generate two preferred pairs of counterpropagating modes. This selective generation implies that opting for a specific counterpropagation mode in an ideal ring resonator could potentially lead to an infinite quality factor, which is a highly telling indicator of the device's overall effectiveness and remarkable performance. It is also well established within the realm of optics that innovative nonreciprocal devices can be crafted through the careful and intentional realization of interactions involving nonreciprocal modes. This exciting and groundbreaking capability paves the way for new opportunities within a vast range of applications in advanced optical devices, allowing the unique properties of counterpropagating modes to be effectively harnessed to achieve outstanding functionalities and significantly enhance performance in increasingly complex photonic systems. Through ongoing and committed research development, the implications of counterpropagating modes are garnering significant and increasing attention, which has the potential to revolutionize the manner in which optical communications and other related photonic technologies are developed and optimized for future advancements, thus shaping the trajectory of the field for years to come [47, 41, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52].

Rings are also commonly studied in a wide array of fields, including chaotic or nonlinear optics, which has been gaining increasing significance in contemporary research circles and applications. Such optical resonators are nowadays predominantly realized as intricate fiber loops, or alternatively, as complex arrangements featuring passive optical components such as mirrors

and beam splitters skillfully designed to direct light paths efficiently. In this specific context, the high-Q circulating light is interpreted to represent the distinctly unique green-intensity distribution that is consistently observed in the FPR light source, showcasing a range of its unique properties and behaviors that are vital for understanding the underlying physics. Conversely, it is worth noting that the Q factor seriously imposes limitations on the overall performance that can be achieved from these sophisticated systems, posing a considerable challenge for researchers and practitioners alike who aim to push the boundaries of optical technologies. A particularly limiting aspect that arises from the behavior of a non-ideal passive FPR concerns free-space coupling, which remains critical for ensuring optimal functioning of the entire setup. The focusing optics situated precisely at the input/output terminal serve a dual role; they not only excite high-order modes of the ring but this excitation can considerably affect the overall quality of the connection with the counterpropagating mode. Such intricate interactions emphasize the pressing need for the development of sophisticated techniques and methodologies in order to effectively mitigate the adverse effects associated with high-order mode coupling, thereby ensuring improved performance metrics and achieving higher fidelity in a diverse range of optical applications. To tackle these challenges, ongoing research is focusing on innovative solutions that can enhance resilience against undesired mode interactions while simultaneously striving to optimize the performance of optical systems [53, 54, 55].

Population Inversion

We revisit and closely examine the fundamental principle that essentially underlies the remarkable phenomenon of lasing: Population inversion. This crucial concept is frequently discussed in numerous introductory textbooks, often at a qualitative level that may not fully appreciate the complexities involved, yet our objective here is to delve much deeper into a careful examination of the formal considerations that lead to identifying the essential conditions that must be satisfied for a laser medium to successfully achieve and maintain a sustainable population inversion. In this thorough exploration, we take an analytical approach that commences from first principles. Ultimately, this comprehensive analysis can be viewed as a meticulous rephrasing and derivation of pivotal portions of quantum mechanics that are particularly relevant to the subject area of laser physics. A laser, in general, is commonly characterized and referred to as a "light amplifier," and this specific terminology is often validated by employing a transport model that precisely illustrates the intricate interaction of light with a laser medium. It should be duly noted that while this transport model indeed exhibits a faithful depiction of the process of light amplification, it proves to be insufficient for accurately describing the complex phenomena that occur during the initial stages before the continuous wave (CW) regime is successfully achieved. To truly understand what occurs in detail during the process prior to reaching this important regime, a more comprehensive and rigorous quantum mechanical treatment must be diligently applied, particularly focusing on the intricate interactions that transpire between atoms and electromagnetic fields. A highly efficient method to conduct this kind of calculation is to utilize the sophisticated density matrix methods. This specific approach is especially advantageous when one finds themselves considering a scenario involving a significantly large number of atoms and energy levels — circumstances that are typically encountered in the broader context of solid-state physics. However, it is noteworthy to acknowledge that while it is undoubtedly feasible to describe a three- or four-level laser medium employing the density matrix formalism, the actual computation of the transport rates often becomes considerably clearer and more transparent when the individual states and transitions of specific atoms are closely examined in detail. Therefore, in the case of emission occurring without amplification, we shall proceed with a more detailed exploration that is thorough (although still not exhaustive) to help clarify these interactions and phenomena more comprehensively and thoroughly [56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62].

The advent of lasers truly transformed the landscape of atomic and molecular physics in profound and far-reaching ways that continue to shape research and experimentation. Prior to the innovative and groundbreaking use of a ruby rod by the luminous Maiman, this specialized field was mainly inhabited by a small number of dedicated and passionate gurus along with a significant array of theorists whose work, while undeniably valuable, often lacked the experimental vigor that would come to dominate and energize the discipline in later years. However, following the momentous and groundbreaking realization of the optical laser, there emerged an overwhelming surge of experimental endeavors, the vast majority of which incorporated the remarkable and innovative capabilities of lasers. This resulted in optical spectroscopy evolving into a key and indispensable tool in the comprehensive arsenal of nearly every atomic or molecular physicist actively working in these vital domains of scientific inquiry. While the introduction of lasers is still broadly regarded as a monumental advance within the field of atomic and molecular physics, there now exists a degree of lingering skepticism among theorists concerning the value and necessity of many of the pumped-fluorescence experiments that continue to be performed today. Furthermore, there has been a growing number of assertions, often voiced in academic circles, claiming that stimulated emission is being detected in various media that many experts regard as unsuitable for any form of laser activity, thus stirring debate among practitioners of the field. From this particular standpoint, it becomes intriguing to delve into how the intricate art of making a laser operate successfully was developed over time. A particularly good initial approach is to meticulously work out how one can achieve a population inversion for the important transition(s) that are relevant in these complex discussion contexts. This vital and foundational process lays the groundwork for a deeper understanding of the essential principles that govern laser functionality and opens up numerous avenues for further exploration and a comprehensive appreciation of this fascinating field of study. Through continuous investigation and experimentation, the profound implications of lasers in atomic and molecular physics will surely continue to unfold in exciting ways in the years ahead [63, 13, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72]

3.1 Boltzmann Distribution

To achieve the desired output, let us consider the simplest possible system: it consists of a carefully selected pair of distinct objects that possess

energy effectively but do not possess any other types of energy exchange mechanisms (where N equals c). We delve into a near-degenerate collection of possible states, which is characterized by the condition where E_i is less than E_f for almost all states, with the exception of just a few of the last remaining ones. This thorough and methodical analysis leads us to the reasonable conclusion that the relation $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$ holds true and it becomes inherently necessary to express $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$ holds true and it becomes inherently necessary to express $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$ when referring to the initial state and, in contrast, we will address $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$ homega_f = $\frac{1}{pos} equation$ when considering the final state of our system. By carefully substituting these defined values into equations (1) and (2) and carrying out a concise simplification process, we ultimately arrive at the much-anticipated expression $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$ hegin equation $\beta_i = \frac{1}{pos} equation$

The scenario involving two interconnected reservoirs operates on a decidedly more intricate level and is, for the purposes of this focused analysis, regrettably omitted from our current discussion. This particular problem can be visually and conceptually understood in an interesting way as comprising two jars that are artfully interconnected; each of these jars contains an infinite set of distinguishable marbles of various colors and attributes. One specific jar is notably set apart and distinguished by containing precisely one black marble, whereas the other jar is filled with a diverse and appealing collection of a multitude of other uniquely colored marbles, creating a vibrant scene. Importantly, both jars are designed with identical capacitance, and there exists a unique mechanism that simultaneously performs the remarkable action of switching the parity of the black marble while ensuring the fluid and continuous movement of marbles continues until both jars achieve an equal number of marbles for balance.

The intricate operation of this mechanism has been described comprehensively within the systematic framework of a thermodynamic system, and the action associated with the jars is mathematically represented within the structured form of a Hamiltonian. In this particular representation, each marble corresponds distinctly to a Dirac delta potential. Furthermore, we methodically analyze the contrasting simple case, where the distance separating the conveyor belts is effectively reduced to zero, allowing for a closer interaction between the two jars. Additionally, we explore various scenarios in which this distance is considerably large—constructed as a step function—and even those where it stretch into the realm of infinity, represented mathematically as a Dirac delta function, providing an interesting perspective.

The comprehensive outcome of this meticulous exploration and detailed examination stipulates that the number of black eigenstates must necessarily exceed half of the cumulative sum of the capacities of both jars involved, thereby ensuring a more robust and nuanced understanding of this captivating interaction within the given system, and laying a solid groundwork for further study into the fascinating implications of energy distributions and transitions within connected systems, guiding future endeavors and research in the domain [73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80].

3.2 Rate Equations

A straightforward and systematic rate-equation analysis that begins with the stimulated-emission approach yields a truly comprehensive and detailed set of ordinary differential equations. These equations effectively describe not only the populations of the various atomic energy levels but also the cavity-loss factor that is present within the complex system under investigation. The foundational point for this thorough analysis is the crucial number-conservation relation, which meticulously accounts for the total number of particles, adhering to the simple models that are typically employed in the indepth study of laser physics. In order to establish well-defined criteria for solvability, it is absolutely essential to impose the normalization condition on both the cavity field and the total number of atoms involved in the intricate process. This careful imposition ensures that the system's diverse behaviors and interactions are accurately represented and can be effectively analyzed with precision and clarity, allowing for a better understanding of the underlying mechanisms at play [81, 82, 83, 84, 85].

Let C denote the total number of atoms that can be found residing within the upper energy state of a given system; by defining N as gCV -1, we derive the mean intracavity photon number that involves g, which serves as the atomfield coupling parameter, and V, the mode volume of the system being considered. This specific setup aligns with the class-B regime of strong coupling in relation to the emission of radiation, while simultaneously highlighting a weak coupling concerning the number of cavity photons that are present within the arrangement. Consequently, the calculation for the mean energy number of the cavity can be expressed in detail as $G=(hvCwCV\ 2+(vL\ vC\)$ exp (hcwCV/kT)-1, which illustrates the complex energetic interactions and dynamics occurring within the confines of the cavity. This formulation offers a deeper understanding of how energy behaves in the presence of both atoms and photons, and underlines the significance of these parameters in analyzing the intricate nature of cavity dynamics in such physical systems $^{[86,\,87,\,88,\,89]}.$

Initially, the straightforward scenario of ideal, loss-free cavities is thoroughly examined and discussed in great detail. Following this comprehensive introduction, the focus shifts to the more complex situation that involves real cavities, which inherently possess various kinds of losses. The methodology employed in this analysis closely follows the typical educational framework, which is widely recognized for its clarity and systematic approach: a significant oversight within the rate equations regarding the quasinormal variables is pointed out and duly acknowledged. On the other hand, it is effectively demonstrated how to accurately retrieve the proper expressions that arise from this oversight, in accordance with the derivations illustrated throughout the entirety of the current section. In a later stage of the examination, the calculation of the stationary mean photon number is performed meticulously by asymptotically aligning the optical Bloch equations with the established rate equations, thereby ensuring both consistency and precision in the overall analysis, allowing for a deeper understanding of the interactions at play within the system being investigated [90, 91, 92, 93]

Time scale and mean-field amplitude in the optical Bloch equations. As is widely recognized and understood within the field of quantum optics, the phenomena of spontaneous emission, along with the rates of decay and dephasing, which are integral components within the Bloch equations framework, are usually articulated through well-established and universally acknowledged definitions. In order to facilitate a meticulous comparison with the methodology adopted in the present work, making it as transparent and comprehensible as possible, and considering the potential ambiguities that can sometimes persist in the literature concerning these significant topics, these rates are do not merely remain implicit but are explicitly detailed and expressed in terms of functions that reflect the conventional rate-equation formats. This level of clarity is not just a formality; it is an essential requisite to guarantee that the findings derived from this work can be accurately interpreted, understood, and subsequently applied in practical and theoretical contexts within the realm of quantum optics [94, 95, 96, 97].

Gain and Threshold Gain

4.1. Gain

The gain is undeniably an essential and fundamentally important concept in the intricate and highly specialized field of laser physics, as it is from the laser medium that we extract the vital energy that is necessary to effectively sustain and maintain the intricate process of lasing. Understanding this concept is pivotal for comprehending how lasers operate. There are both direct and indirect methods that can be utilized to calculate or at least estimate the gain present in various types of laser materials. From a direct viewpoint, it is understood that the gain coefficient is directly proportional to the lifetime of photons that exist within the laser cavity and can be expressed in the simple yet effective relationship of G = ct, where c represents the velocity of light in the specific medium, and t denotes the lifetime of the photon within that particular medium. However, it is noteworthy and crucial to recognize that very few laser materials actually possess the capability to host photons for a duration that is sufficiently long in order to compensate for the small values that arise due to the factor of c/n, with n representing the refractive index of the medium involved.

Taking a more indirect perspective into consideration, the gain can be calculated based on the complex spectro-temporal behavior of the laser mode by employing a generalization of Fourier theory, which strictly applies only to monochromatic signals. By spectrally resolving the mode and subsequently taking the Fourier transform of the time record of the intensity, one can derive the bout-on-point gain (Gth) at each specific combination of frequency and time. The subsequent part of this discussion addresses the simple yet critical approach to calculating the net gain at a single wavelength, which results from the delicate balance between the losses and gains. This balance represents the underlying physical principle that governs the threshold of every laser system. The spectacular and remarkable improvements in the performance of semiconductor lasers that have occurred over the past 15 to 20 years have effectively blurred the once-clear barrier of noise and linearity that typically serves to attenuate lightwave propagation in more conventional glass fibers.

Consequently, these significant advancements have enabled long-haul and ultra-long-distance fiber optic telecommunications to become possible, gradually expanding to a global scale that connects a wide range of locations across continents.

Other relevant applications include the vast and powerful internet that often facilitates global data traffic, alongside the extensive deployment of undersea transmission cables that are now effectively replacing traditional satellite communication. The lightwave sources that are utilized in these advanced applications invariably rely upon Fabry-Perot laser diodes, which are either commercially available at standard wavelengths of $\lambda=1310$ and 1550 nm or custom-made using specialized InP-InGaAsP materials to meet specific telecom windows, for instance, wavelengths such as $\lambda=1300,\,1480,\,$ and 1640 nm. All these laser diodes are operated through the method of current injection, which needs to occur above a well-defined threshold that triggers the rapid and dynamic process of coherent radiation generation, ultimately resulting in the laser output that we know as lasing.

Two primary types of laser materials can be considered important in this realm: bulk and quantum well materials. As the name clearly implies, the first category consists of standard bulk crystals, while the second group introduces unique and ultra-thin quantum well regions that exhibit fascinating characteristics. The statements made in the ensuing sections refer specifically to homogeneously broadened media, which are of particular interest in laser physics. Adjusting the pump above the established threshold value will propel the system from an operating regime where it begins outputting radiation—a phase referred to as light amplification by stimulated emission—into the lasing regime, which is characterized by stimulated emission and coherent output of light. This remarkable phenomenon has been well recognized for over 50 years; however, when the intricate processes of light-matter interaction are scaled down to remarkably small dimensions, several new and intriguing phenomena begin to emerge.

The most significant effect observed in a nanolaser is the divergence between the thresholds of differential efficiency and the output power, which represents an area of ongoing research and investigation. These phenomena require explanation using generalized rate-equation theories or, more rigorously, through Monte-Carlo simulations that account for stochastic processes involved in light emission. Despite the substantial advancements in our understanding of laser systems, it remains unclear how reliable these theoretical models actually are when applied to practical scenarios. It is widely acknowledged that the threshold of the output power and that of the internal

quantities do not necessarily align; frequently, they can even diverge significantly in various real-world applications and experimental setups. This divergence poses interesting challenges and necessitates further investigations into the behavior of lasers at both the macro and micro scales [98, 99, 4, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107]

4.2 Threshold Gain

In the intricate scenario concerning advanced semiconductors, particularly when considering their most highly miniaturized configurations such as the incredibly small quantum dots that are utilized in various optical applications and the sophisticated quantum-cascade lasers that are applied in the terahertz (THz) frequency range—the conventional definition of the threshold does not provide any meaningful information, insights, or clarity. Consequently, this complex situation has sparked, on one hand, an urgent and pressing need for a universally accepted and all-encompassing definition of what exactly constitutes the threshold in this context. At the same time, it is highlighting the critical necessity for the development of innovative experimental techniques that are specifically designed to measure this threshold with an elevated level of both accuracy and reliability. It is absolutely paramount that such techniques are not only developed but also continually refined to effectively meet the unique and multifaceted challenges posed by these advanced semiconductor technologies, which are rapidly evolving and requiring new approaches and methodologies [108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114]

4.3 Gain Coefficient

The four-level atomic model for laser action fundamentally involves six distinct real-valued nonlinear differential equations that are crucial for achieving a comprehensive understanding of the intricate dynamics and behavior exhibited by lasers. These equations form the foundation of the theoretical framework that governs the interactions and processes occurring in laser systems. The steady-state intensity of the laser output is directly proportional to the mean number of photons present in the system, a relationship that reflects the underlying principles of light generation in lasers. This average number of photons is carefully calculated based on the precise solution to the aforementioned equations, which are formulated to account for the various factors influencing laser emission. In the semiclassical limit, obtaining this average necessitates taking a quantum average that properly incorporates the significant effects of quantization on the laser dynamics.

When one employs a linearized version of these equations, which is

specifically valid for small quantum fluctuations, this quantum average simplifies considerably and becomes equivalent to the mean field envelope, which effectively represents both the amplitude and phase of the laser field. As a result, it becomes abundantly clear that it is primarily the fluctuations that play a significant and decisive role in determining the linewidth of the laser output spectrum. This observation highlights the critical importance of these small variations in achieving the precision necessary for optimal laser performance and stability, underscoring the delicate balance between quantum effects and classical descriptions in the operation of lasers. The interplay of these factors ultimately defines the behavior and characteristics of laser systems, making it essential for researchers and engineers to understand the nuances of both linear and nonlinear descriptions of laser dynamics [115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 103, 120]

To clarify this specific point further, we define fluctuations precisely as the deviations of the photon number from its average mean value. The important connection that exists between fluctuations and laser linewidth arises specifically because the linewidth is ultimately determined by the overall spread of these fluctuations. If the semiclassical-mean model is utilized and the small fluctuation limit is carefully taken, then the exact model is effectively recovered without any loss of generality. This relationship is crucial for understanding the behavior of laser systems [121].

A mathematical proof of this specific claim necessitates a comprehensive evaluation of a particular trigonometric sum, followed by the repeated application of a limit to derive the final results. In addition, there has been a considerable amount of confusion in the literature concerning the intricate connection between quantum fluctuations that arise in the atom-field model of lasers and the observed linewidth of laser radiation. This confusion likely stems from the manner in which the analysis is frequently framed, leading many to misinterpret the underlying relationships involved [122].

Consider the four-level atomic model that is widely utilized to describe the fundamental principles underlying laser action, paying particular attention to the density matrix elements that are relevant to an ensemble of atoms. These atoms are intricately coupled to the quantized vector potential that effectively characterizes the radiation field within a semi-classical approximation framework. This advanced representation can be adeptly transformed into a comprehensive set of coupled equations that dictate the behavior of the normal-ordered atomic operators alongside the associated field envelope. To cultivate a deeper understanding of this intricate system, we proceed to define the mean atomic operators and the field envelope by thoughtfully evaluating

the expectation value of these operators in relation to the quantum state governing the entire system under consideration. This mean-field based description not only provides essential insights but also accurately predicts, with respect to an overall numerical factor, that the steady-state intensity of the emitted radiation is directly proportional to the photon number that exists within the confines of the cavity. Hence, this relationship underscores the importance of the atomic ensemble and its interaction with the radiation, revealing intricate connections that are pivotal to the operation and efficiency of laser systems. The model thus serves as a crucial foundation for further explorations in quantum optics and photonics, as it illuminates the underlying mechanisms that facilitate coherent light generation. This interplay between atomic dynamics and electromagnetic fields represents a key area of study for both theoretical developments and practical laser applications in various fields of technology and research [123, 124, 125].

4.4 Threshold Gain

The development of a rigorous formalism describing the steady-state operation of a laser medium represents one of the most significant achievements within the realm of physical science during the three decades that followed the construction of the very first practical laser device. This monumental advancement not only enhanced our understanding of laser operation but also influenced various disciplines within physics, showcasing the interconnected nature of scientific inquiry. The essential physical requirements necessary for successful laser action, coupled with the availability of devices that satisfy these exacting requirements, had a profound and powerful influence on an array of branches in physics.

As a consequence of these groundbreaking developments, a new discipline known as laser-physics has emerged, characterized by its focused study on the phenomena associated with lasers. The collective term laser-physics serves to encapsulate the foundational understanding of the macroscopic phenomena that occur within a laser medium, which are crucial for both the understanding and the design of any sophisticated laser system. This particular field of study specifically concentrates on problems that are common to all types of optical resonators, emphasizing the fundamental principles governing their behavior. Although the discussion often centers around a planar resonator equipped with a Fabry-Perot transmission band, it is important to note that applications related to practical laser systems are typically excluded from these theoretical considerations, allowing for a more concentrated exploration of the principles involved [126, 127, 128, 129].

The central role in any laser system is critically played by a resonator, which serves a fundamental purpose that cannot be overstated. It is this essential device that actively discriminates between laser photons, which are coherent and organized, and the chaotic photons that are initially present in the lasing medium; these chaotic photons are responsible for the fundamental and intricate process of light amplification. As is well known and widely accepted in the field of optics and photonics, the concept of laser action implies the existence of a complex and intricate interrelation between atomic radiation and a resonator. This particular relationship may be extremely simple in cases such as a straightforward traveling-wave saser. However, the early approaches and studies aimed at understanding and addressing the laser problem primarily concentrated on the inherent properties and characteristics of the laser medium itself, overlooking some of the other vital components that contribute to the overall system's functionality. Only a few insightful authors pointed out how the resonator efficiently selects the specific modes by which laser action may occur, or they developed basic mathematical tools that are absolutely necessary in collaboration with a comprehensive cavity description of the entire system. The interaction between the resonator and the medium is crucial for the proper functioning of the laser, emphasizing the importance of understanding both elements thoroughly to ensure optimal performance in various applications [98, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134].

Laser Modes

The laser equation represents an incredibly comprehensive four-level differential equation framework that effectively describes in depth the intricate behavior of the electric field within the specific confines of the cavity. This pivotal and essential equation acts as a notable extension of the well-known Lang and Kobayashi rate equations, which serve to characterize single-mode lasing phenomena in a highly effective manner. Furthermore, it generalizes the celebrated Adler equation within a much broader multimode perspective, thereby significantly broadening its applicability and utility in various contexts. The primary output of this equation is fundamentally the electric field, which possesses the propensity to undergo fluctuations not only over time but also across numerous spatial points, such as various nodes within a network configuration, as well as across multiple polarization states that are relevant. Operating under stationary conditions, this equation is formulated by substituting the population inversion aspect characteristic of simpler rate models with the more sophisticated Rabi oscillations, which effectively account for the critical population difference that exists in the gain medium along with the complex polarization dynamics occurring specifically within the cavity. A particularly intricate aspect of this sophisticated model is the delayed response that can be observed in the carrier population with respect to the incoming light source and its effects. The gain of the lasing medium is intricately linked with the fundamental Maxwell field, enabling a better understanding and extraction of the electric field. This comprehensive formulation is capable of modeling substantial delays that occur between the oscillations of the population inversion and the consequential emergence of the electric field, even especially when the heating effect appears sinusoidal due to the continual influence of external light sources in an idealized scenario. A variety of solutions emerge from this highly complex equation, including instances of a laser system that is subjected to external modulation effects. Additionally, it thoroughly explores the intriguing phenomenon of lasing without a threshold, which occurs under conditions of idealized instantaneous power supply. The relevance and significance of this equation extend to its practical applications in modeling Virtual Cells (VCs) and the oscillations that are present in network dynamics. While it might overlook other intricate dynamical effects, this advanced model remarkably incorporates a wide range of mechanisms that could significantly impact the emergence of anticipatory bifurcations, providing valuable insights into the complex behaviors that are characteristic of modern laser systems [135, 136, 137, 138, 139, 140, 141, 142].

5.1 Transverse Modes

The theory of lasers, a captivating and intricate subject, has been explored in considerable depth across the available literature. It is of paramount importance to give due deliberation to the transverse (or lateral) modes of laser resonators, as their roles can significantly and markedly influence both the functioning and overall performance of lasers. A quite considerable number of publications have detailed the laser resonators as a specialized system primarily composed of mirrors, lenses, and various mode-selecting elements; these components are often analyzed in concert with longitudinal modes, which can be likened to solutions for a series of plane-parallel resonators situated in proximity. However, it is worth noting that the numerical approach based upon the transmission and reflection matrices has not been exhaustively presented thus far, despite its common application and effectiveness in other areas of research and scientific study. For a full and thorough understanding of the resonator in question, an account of the stability criterion is undeniably required, as it plays a crucial role in defining resonator behavior. Thus, to a certain extent, this chapter traverses ground that has been well-trodden by numerous others who have approached similar topics; however, a complete and comprehensive account aimed at the beginner proves to be a more useful and relevant text in this context. The matrix method proves exceptionally advantageous for the development of numerical codes and simulations based on a precise and rigorous description of laser resonators. Simulations of the loss distribution among various modes in such resonators can be extended further to teach the students more about the fundamental and essential properties of laser resonators, and they are instrumental in the ongoing search for new and innovative laser resonators that might push the boundaries of existing technology. Additionally, further insights can be derived from a didactic and educational approach to the derivation of the formulas utilized by more advanced and commercial software packages. It is fervently hoped that the presentation is crafted with sufficient clarity such that the student can thoughtfully contemplate the correlation between varying parameters, analyze the changes in the properties of the resonator, and observe the conditions of the active medium while also comparing their results with an analytical solution of formulated solutions for special cases. If these educational objectives are accomplished, the learning of these vital fundamentals will have been rendered far more interesting, engaging, and complete for students. A consistent and thorough description of each critical aspect of laser resonators, for example, their stability and mode characteristics, can indeed be found in numerous places for those well-trained and experienced in the field of laser physics. Furthermore, additional references to an even wider literature base are generously provided for those who are actively seeking more advanced and highly specialized information on this deeply fascinating subject [135, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148].

5.2 Longitudinal Modes

It is undeniably quite challenging to justify the publication of a comprehensive book focused on the essential fundamentals of laser physics more than fifty years after the groundbreaking invention of the laser itself. This difficulty arises especially when one considers that most of the crucial principles and key concepts that define this field were firmly established during the formative and highly innovative years of laser technology, which primarily spanned the dynamic decades of the 1960s through to the 1980s. Nevertheless, it is certainly worth noting that the laser and the myriad of various applications that stem from this remarkable and transformative invention have generated an astonishingly extensive amount of research across an impressive array of scientific fields and disciplines. This ongoing and vigorous research may still quite justifiably be viewed as a fundamental and integral aspect of laser physics, showcasing its enduring relevance and unparalleled significance even today, as it continues to evolve and adapt to new challenges and advancements in technology [126, 149, 13].

The optical cavity that is absolutely essential for sustaining the intricate and fascinating process of lasing plays a pivotal and indispensable role in determining the potential frequencies, which are often referred to as modes, of oscillation that can be generated within it. These laser cavity modes, therefore, represent the various solutions to the Helmholtz wave equation, which is applied meticulously under a specific set of boundary conditions that take into account the diverse reflective surfaces that are present within the cavity; it's crucial to note that some of these surfaces may be partially transparent, and this affects the dynamics within significantly. Owing to this intricate and complex interaction among the various elements in the cavity, the distinct characteristic daslight of the confocal configurations we have previously discussed gives rise to the formation of discrete, evenly spaced lines or "teeth," which move uniformly and continuously across the entire frequency spectrum, enriching the laser's output. The number of oscillating modes that can exist in this sophisticated optical setup can range dramatically, from as few as a single solitary mode, to an astonishingly high figure of more than one million perfectly synchronized modes that can be discovered in a fascinating phenomenon known as a frequency comb. When we consider the remarkable degree of control that is exerted over the electromagnetic field in lasers operating with a single transverse mode—where such a mode behaves almost like an elementary eigenfunction within the context of the open boundary—there is a conspicuous and apparent lack of focus on the more generalized and broader scenario involving higher-dimensional coherent lasing states, which is an important consideration. Historically, and unlike the more nuanced and sophisticated approaches seen in recent years, the phenomenon of lasing has been mainly understood in terms of these single modes, with the standard assumption that there is exactly one mode corresponding to each individual wavelength present in the system. Some early foundational research did indeed explore the intriguing concept of locking transverse spatial modes, alongside the intricate interactions of both transverse and longitudinal modes, revealing the complexity embedded in these systems. To a larger extent, the last five years have witnessed a marked increase in interest that has been directed towards the phenomena of both linear and nonlinear wave propagation occurring within multiple transverse modes, showing a shift in the understanding of these processes. This surge in research activity is particularly pronounced in the realm of multimode optical fibers, where the detailed investigation into these unique characteristics has become increasingly significant for technological advancements. This uptick in interest has primarily been driven by the anticipation of groundbreaking advancements in spatial division multiplexing, crucial telecommunications sector, as well as the continued exploration of new platforms designed for innovative fiber laser sources that could redefine operational capabilities. In our ongoing and extensive research endeavors, we actively employ the principles of normal-dispersion mode-locking in both spatial and temporal dimensions, which proves to be pivotal for the development of advanced laser systems. This extensive research is made possible through the seamless integration of strong spectral and spatial filtering techniques, combined with the exceptionally high levels of nonlinearity, gain, and spatiotemporal dispersion that characterize the specific fiber medium we are working with, thus allowing for high efficiency. The resultant effect of this complex and dynamic interplay allows us to successfully achieve spatiotemporal mode-locking, thereby significantly enhancing the overall performance and capabilities of our advanced laser systems in a multitude of specialized applications across various fields [135, 150, 61, 151, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157]

Types of Lasers

6.1 Optical Lasers

The first wavelength, which is 742 nm, is generally the most prevalent type that you will find in thoriated-tungsten tube lamps. This particular type of radiation is frequently utilized for numerous laboratory demonstrations as well as various educational purposes, which makes it easy to conclude that this form of radiation can be safely discounted as a danger to health and safety. Moving on to the third type, which has a much longer wavelength of 2.8 m, it falls within the 8-14 mm region of the electromagnetic spectrum, where there is a significant degree of attenuation observed for 2.6 m radiation within the aqueous humour of the eye. Thus, this longer wavelength poses no hazard either. However, it is important to note that 1.06 m radiation is not effectively absorbed, and the cornea is especially vulnerable to thermal damage when it comes to this particular wavelength. The lasers that are primarily utilized in schools typically have wavelengths that exceed 500 nm, encompassing both the near infrared and the visible sections of the electromagnetic spectrum. These lasers can effectively be described as emitting light within the range that stretches from red (63 nm) all the way to the infrared (2.8 m) spectrum. The visible region of the spectrum expands from the point where the human eye begins to respond to light, known as the photopic response, all the way to 7 m. Beyond this range, we refer to infrared radiation as far infrared, signifying its considerable distance from the visible spectrum, and its implications for both safety and usability [158, 159, 160, 161, 162, 163].

6.2 Non-Optical Lasers

Of the rest, the infrared region is categorised as encompassing both shorter wavelengths ranging from 0.78 to 3 micrometers (m), as well as longer wavelengths extending from 3 m to 1 millimeter (mm). The longer portion of this spectrum is commonly referred to and identified as the far infrared. Within this specific segment, there exists a notable and reasonable degree of attenuation of radiation, particularly by water, which means that water can effectively absorb and significantly reduce the intensity of infrared radiation that passes through it. However, it is crucial and important to note that the

cornea and the lens of the eye are not particularly effective at preventing infrared radiation from entering the eye and causing potential harm or damage. Lasers that operate within the shorter infrared region are commonly employed for a variety of applications, which can be listed here in order of increasing danger: communications, aligning equipment, drilling processes, and surgical procedures. In the case of the latter sub-divisions, it is vital to understand and acknowledge that any damage to the unprotected eye could result in a significant and serious hazard that must be taken into account and carefully considered when using such advanced technology [3, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168].

6.3 Gas Lasers

The principle of the laser was first articulated with essential considerations regarding the application of the HCN molecule's hyperfine transition at an astonishingly precise wavelength of 337 µm for purposive stimulated emission. This groundbreaking development not only opened up an expansive and vast array of new opportunities but also laid the vital groundwork for constructing highly powerful light sources capable of being utilized across a multitude of varied fields and industries. The invention of the laser subsequently occurred for pulsed operation relying on the remarkable transition in the ruby crystal at the exact wavelength of 694.3 nm, which turned out to be a pivotal and defining moment in the rich history of optical science and technology. Following this significant achievement, continuous wave (CW) Helium-Neon (HeNe) lasers were astonishingly demonstrated to operate efficiently in the red spectral region, showcasing their outstanding utility as precise and highly effective displacement transducers suitable for a wide variety of complex applications. These lasers have found numerous practical applications in innovative displacement measurement devices that are extensively utilized in machine tools, which have fundamentally revolutionized the precision and accuracy of such tools and sophisticated equipment, thus allowing for intricate and precise work to be performed in a much more efficient manner. This marked a critical impetus for the immense and rapid spread of laser technology across diverse industries, fundamentally transforming operational practices and procedural capabilities in a remarkable fashion. In contemporary times, there exists an immense and diverse array of laser types that can generate output radiation in virtually any desired spectral region, catering to a wide variety of applications that span numerous sectors, including scientific research, industrial manufacturing processes, and essential medical and healthcare fields. Understanding the foundational and underlying principles of how a laser operates is fundamentally crucial to fully leveraging its expansive and transformative potential for innovation and advancement in the realm of technology, engineering, and scientific progress [169, 170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 175]

A suitable medium is absolutely essential in which the complex and intricate process of light amplification through stimulated emission can occur, ensuring that this specific form of amplification is the dominant process over all other competing processes that might interfere with the overall effectiveness. - In the first step of this multifaceted process, light emitted from a powerful flash lamp is absorbed by the laser medium, leading to the excitation of a substantial number of atoms or molecules, which transition into higher energy states or levels within this medium. - As part of these excited states, some atoms or molecules will naturally decay and transition back to the lower laser level spontaneously. This spontaneous phenomenon is crucial, as it underscores the vital importance of having laser systems that operate effectively on 3 or 4 energy levels to achieve desired outcomes. - Additionally, under the continuous influence of the pumping energy provided, not only does the lower energy level fill up, but the upper energy level also accumulates much energy, causing the rate of gain to increase markedly and significantly. - The gain generated in this process exceeds all potential losses of the light, encompassing various aspects such as reflection and surface losses, absorption that can occur within the medium itself, and losses that arise due to the transmission through the partially transparent mirror, where some light may not escape the cavity. - When the intensity of the light that exists within the resonator cavity surpasses any incoming external light, a macroscopic population inversion is then established between the lower and upper energy levels, thus allowing the light to finally emerge from the system with a specific intensity. - However, this emitted light only emerges for as long as the gain remains greater than the losses experienced by the cavity, making it conditional and dependent on the ongoing energy dynamics. - The cavity acts as a highly effective feedback system, precisely allowing light that resonates at distinct frequencies to develop progressively and build up into a standing wave, while other frequencies are diminished or extinguished through the process of destructive interference, greatly altering the behavior of the output light. - The frequency of the light emitted by the laser is thus purely determined and dictated by the cavity length and the specific characteristics of the dispersive medium – which, in this case, is referred to as the laser active medium, serving a crucial role. - In the specific case of a Fabry-Perot cavity, the separation between the various frequencies that are utilized is mathematically described by a concise formula c/(2L), where c denotes the speed of light in the medium and L signifies the effective cavity length, highlighting the mathematical nature of this relationship [150, 176, 177, 3, 178, 179].

The development of early lasers represented a major milestone in the ever-evolving field of optics. The inaugural gas lasers were operational in the ultraviolet (UV) range, specifically targeting the impressive eighth harmonic line at 337.1 nanometers, which is indeed quite remarkable. In modern-day applications, the carbon dioxide (CO2) laser has risen to prominence as one of the most widely employed and influential laser technologies available in various industries today. Gas lasers are known for their wide-ranging operational spectrum, functioning efficiently through the far infrared (IR), infrared (IR), and visible light spectrum, while also extending into the ultraviolet (UV) and vacuum ultraviolet (VUV) ranges. This incredible versatility renders gas lasers an exceptionally adaptable and multifaceted type of laser that possesses numerous applications across an extensive variety of fields, from medical treatments to industrial manufacturing processes, showcasing their importance in technological advancement [180, 181, 182, 183].

6.4 Solid-State Lasers

A laser is an incredibly sophisticated and advanced device that generates a specific type of light known as radiation. This radiation, when compared to the types of radiation produced by traditional sources such as incandescent bulbs or light-emitting diodes (LEDs), exhibits a set of very well-defined and unique properties that set it apart. These properties include, but are not limited to, essential characteristics such as wavelength, polarization, brightness, and spatial coherence. The distinction between the light emitted from laser sources and that from more conventional sources can be effectively and rapidly demonstrated by conducting a simple yet revealing experiment. By taking the output of a standard incandescent bulb or an LED and attempting to pass it through two narrow slits, then observing the resulting pattern produced on a screen that has been carefully positioned behind these slits, a person can readily notice the differences in the behavior of the light. When using a thermal light source—like a traditional light bulb—the spectral width of the emitted light is broad enough to illuminate both slits with comparable intensity. This condition leads to the generation of a featureless, smooth envelope that appears to be uniform across the entire screen. In stark contrast to this, if one were to employ radiation derived from a laser instead, the pattern revealed on the screen is distinctly different and far more intricate. It consists of a series of equally spaced bright spots that are spread out across the central region of the envelope created by the narrow slits. The presence of these bright spots is a direct consequence of the interference of electromagnetic waves that emerge coherently from the two slits. Additionally, these bright spots carry very crucial and valuable information that relates to both the geometry of the experimental setup as well as the relative phase of the sources, all of which exists within a defined coherence length. This intriguing behavior highlights the profound and fundamental differences between laser light and the light that is produced by conventional sources. It showcases the intricate and complex nature of coherent wave phenomena in the realm of physics, inviting further exploration and study into the understanding of such remarkable optical characteristics [184, 185, 186, 187, 188, 189].

Lasers produce highly focused radiation that spans a remarkably broad spectrum, reaching from ultraviolet light all the way to infrared wavelengths. This impressive phenomenon occurs through a process known as stimulated emission of radiation, which takes place at the electronic and vibrational energy levels of atoms or molecules. The term laser itself is an acronym that arises from the phrase "Light Amplification by Stimulated Emission of Radiation." It is particularly interesting to note that while the foundational principle that governs laser operation was first articulated and outlined by the renowned physicist Albert Einstein in the significant year of 1916, it wasn't until the innovative decade of the 1960s that fully operational devices demonstrating these principles were successfully developed and showcased in various technological avenues, paving the way for future advancements. In a typical laser system, one can find an active medium, which may be a gas, a solid, or even a liquid, such as a dye or a crystal. This active medium is strategically placed within a specially designed cavity bordered by highly reflective slabs, which effectively trap, amplify, and enhance light within the system for optimal performance. The laser system undergoes a critical process known as pumping, during which external energy is supplied to the active medium to energize it and prepare it for the subsequent emission of light. This external energy can be delivered in various ways, including through optical means or via electron collisions or electrical discharges, with each method contributing to the efficiency and effectiveness of the laser. As a result of this pumping action, a significant number of electrons, or the various molecular bonds, are elevated to higher energy levels within the material's structure. Once this energized state is achieved, it creates a condition called population inversion, where the number of particles in excited energy states exceeds that of those in the lower, ground state, a crucial requirement for the operation of lasers. Consequently, during the spontaneous emission process, which is characterized by the exponential decay from a metastable energy level down to lower-lying excited states, coherent photons are produced and released in a highly organized, coherent manner. If one of these emitted photons has a specific frequency, it can stimulate the transition of an electron from an upper energy level to a lower energy level, resulting in the emission of not just one, but two additional photons that are also coherent and in sync. These newly created photons are remarkable in that they share identical energy, momentum, and spatio-temporal phase as the original stimulating photon that triggered the process, ensuring a high degree of uniformity and precision in the emitted laser light. This particular characteristic of lasers is what enables their diverse applications across a broad range of fields, including telecommunications, advanced medical procedures, precision manufacturing, and many more, illustrating the profound and far-reaching impact that laser technology has had on modern science and our society as a whole, influencing various industries and driving innovation in many areas [2, 181, 190, 191, 192, 193].

Semiconductor Lasers

Semiconductor lasers are highly specialized, monochromatic, and coherent devices that thrive on the foundational principle of stimulated emission, which is fundamentally critical to their operational capabilities. These remarkable lasers play a crucial and indispensable role as essential components within diverse photonic and optical electronic devices, which are widely utilized in various aspects of modern technology and everyday applications. Central to their functionality, when ultraviolet (UV) or visible light is absorbed by semiconductor materials, the energy corresponding to the incoming photons elevates electrons from the material's valence band to its conduction band. This intricate process of excitation effectively generates a sizable group of excited electrons, alongside their corresponding holes, which can aptly be described as quasi-particles. This relationship between excited electrons and holes is pivotal for understanding the dynamics within the semiconductor. These excited electrons exhibit a significant tendency to recombine radiatively with holes, leading to the emission of energy in the form of light. Upon this recombination occurring, the excess energy possessed by the electron-hole pair is expelled in the form of photons, which are particles of light that characterize the essence of laser operation. As a direct consequence of this phenomenon, a pair of photons that share identical frequency characteristics and propagate coherently in the same direction can further stimulate the excited electrons residing within the band structure of the semiconductor, thus effectively facilitating coherent stimulated emission. Moreover, the advent of modern technology coupled with advances in materials science has allowed for the innovative design and construction of heterostructures, which has significantly contributed to the development of increasingly sophisticated classes of semiconductor lasers. These classifications include a variety of types, such as edge emitting lasers (EELs), vertical cavity surface emitting lasers (VCSELs), and quantum cascade lasers (QCLs). Edge emitting lasers and vertical cavity surface emitting lasers are meticulously constructed using multi-layered materials, and they are fundamentally based on specific planar heterostructures. Quantum cascade lasers, conversely, typically utilize quantum well, or super-lattice based materials in their fabrication process.

Additionally, in the context of semiconductor lasers, the ions that are excited by predetermined energy levels within the semiconductor material become spontaneously stimulated to release photons, thereby exhibiting the distinct and necessary stimulated emission properties vital for the achievement of lasing action. This process underpins the effectiveness of these lasers in practical applications. In summary, semiconductor lasers not only serve to amplify optical signals but are also significantly defined by their very small band gap between the two energy bands involved in this intricate physical and quantum mechanical process, underscoring their importance in the broader scope of photonics and optical technologies [194, 195, 196, 197, 198, 199].

The groundbreaking discovery of a semiconductor laser has had a truly profound and transformative impact on the ongoing advancement of modern optical technology across a diverse range of fields and disciplines, all of which rely on these innovations. One of the primary reasons for this significant impact is the notably higher conversion efficiency that semiconductor lasers are capable of achieving when compared to many other types of lasers that are currently available in the market today. This remarkable increase in efficiency for light emission has brought about a considerable leap in the development and overall performance of new generations of optical intensity in semiconductor lasers, as they now reach impressive levels of efficiency that can exceed more than 70%, which is a phenomenal achievement in the field of laser technology. Furthermore, another critical factor driving this incredible advancement is the continuous enhancement in chip technology, which has significantly improved how these lasers operate and their effectiveness in numerous applications. The ongoing progress in the integration of advanced and sophisticated chemical process technologies has successfully facilitated the acoustic operation of copper lines, ensuring that the average data transfer speed now exceeds an impressive one gigabit per second on a daily basis, which is essential for modern communication systems. The applications of semiconductor lasers have dramatically expanded far beyond simple consumer appliances, such as CD players and DVD players, which were among the first devices to utilize this technology. These applications now encompass essential areas such as medical diagnostics and therapeutic procedures, where precision and efficiency are paramount. Additionally, semiconductor lasers play a pivotal role in the development and realization of innovative water-tight spontane-protoplals based on cutting-edge light-fieldbased radar and a variety of other groundbreaking lighting technologies that are transforming the way we approach illumination in various environments. Moreover, there has been a concerted and focused effort to manufacture and implement traditional second and third-order quasi-phase semiconductor laser systems specifically designed for wireless vendon applications, which include wireless communication and data transmission, further widening the scope of their utility. This ongoing expansion and refinement of applications showcase the remarkable versatility of semiconductor laser technology in a multitude of diverse and innovative applications, highlighting its immense significance in the future of various technological advancements and how it will shape our interactions with technology moving forward [200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 3, 206, 207, 208].

7.1 Quantum Well Lasers

Laser diodes play a pivotal and critical role in a remarkably wide array of application fields, encompassing essential areas such as consumer electronics, the industrial production of various materials, sophisticated medical diagnostics, and even military applications. Furthermore, they are integral to the meticulous tracking of spacecraft and satellites orbiting our planet. The extensive and widespread use of laser diodes stems from the significant fact that lasers provide a highly efficient and coherent source of light, making them absolutely indispensable in modern technology and numerous fields. One particularly significant application of their highly efficient nature is in optical communications, a field that involves the complex encoding of bits and the seamless transmission of streams of ones and zeros through various types of optical fibres laid meticulously in the ground. In this complex context, the ability to rapidly flash the ones and zeros on and off becomes of utmost critical importance for effective data transmission. A crucial and important measure of this impressive capability is known as the modulation bandwidth, which specifically refers to the frequency content inherent in the laser source itself. It is highly desirable in numerous situations—especially in the realm of broadcast transmission or any scenario where power efficiency is an essential and significant concern—to find innovative ways to combine as much crucial information as possible into the smallest possible bandwidth. This effective approach allows for the most efficient and excellent use of the available resources, thus significantly enhancing the overall performance of the system. Furthermore, narrow linewidths are also of great importance for the overall energy economy of frequency standards. They are equally valuable as powerful research tools in high-resolution spectroscopy, enabling scientists and researchers to glean detailed insights and knowledge from the intricate interactions of light with matter. The versatility and effectiveness of laser diodes continue to drive innovation and advancements across various technological domains, making them an irreplaceable cornerstone in the modern technological landscape where their impact is immense and farreaching [209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215]

Lasers exist in a multitude of fascinating and diverse varieties,

encompassing a wide range of designs and functionalities. These varieties include, but are not limited to, the innovative helical laser, the traditional crystal laser, the gas laser, the highly versatile fiber laser, the vibrant dye laser, as well as numerous other captivating types that have emerged from ongoing research and technological advancements. Nevertheless, this book will primarily focus on a widely recognized and standard type of laser that has become synonymous with modern technology: the semiconductor laser diode. A pivotal reason for this concentrated exploration is the remarkable and overwhelming predominance that semiconductor technology has achieved, particularly in the vast and ever-evolving field of communication, along with its various applications that span a multitude of industries. Furthermore, another compelling reason for emphasizing semiconductor lasers arises from the significant and impressive effects that can be observed specifically in the realm of quantum well diodes, which are at the forefront of laser development. Within these sophisticated and intricately designed diodes, there is an engaging and intricate interplay between the electronic properties and the spatial structure of the constituent materials from which they are constructed. The picture, while seemingly straightforward, is highly effective in conveying complex ideas and principles. It centers around a p-n junction that is crucial for generating a built-in electric field. This electric field serves as a fundamental foundation for the operational principles of the laser. Carriers, which include both electrons and holes, are effectively injected into the area enveloped by this built-in electric field, where they manifest their dynamic behaviors. Consequently, these carriers emit light that travels in a wave direction that is perpendicular to both the front and back facets of the intricate laser structure, thereby ensuring efficient light propagation. This particular form of travelling wave is frequently depicted using the optical mode of the resonant cavity. This resonant cavity is recognized as an essential and defining feature of laser operations, playing a pivotal role in the overall functioning of the device. The specific shape and intricate configuration of this resonant cavity are intricately determined by the waveguide structure of the laser, which plays an indispensable role in defining its operational characteristics, behavior, and overall efficiency. Additionally, understanding these parameters, including cavity dimensions and material choices, is critical for advancements in laser technology and applications across numerous fields, from telecommunications to medical devices and beyond. This thus highlights the immense significance of studying semiconductor lasers in great detail, as they not only serve as a cornerstone for a diverse array of applications but also continue to inspire innovation and development in cutting-edge technologies [216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222]

7.2 Vertical-Cavity Surface-Emitting Lasers

This section delves into the innovative application of beryllium-doped top contacts specifically designed for electrically pumped vertical-cavity surfaceemitting lasers (VCSELs). A critical aspect of this extensive study is the high resistance encountered, which presents significant challenges for batteryoperated portable applications where efficiency and reliability are absolutely crucial. Furthermore, this thorough investigation considers the electrical pumping of previously optically-pumped laser structures, marking a truly novel exploration into a complex area that has not been extensively covered in the literature. Notably, high-reflectivity distributed Bragg reflector mirrors are integral to all published works related to VCSEL technology. However, there exists a pronounced scarcity of scholarly articles from which one can derive significant insights regarding the important electrical characteristics inherent to the top contact structures. Some researchers have opted for high resistivity, low reflectivity top contacts that are established during the device processing procedure. Unfortunately, this has led to less-than-ideal performance in practical applications, particularly in modern contexts. Other investigations have focused on pre-processed curved mirrors that are no longer associated with the operational device, thereby providing limited applicability to essential real-world scenarios. Among these publications, only one offers considerable insights into top distributed Bragg reflector mirrors, including somewhat detailed information on post-growth processing techniques; nevertheless, it conspicuously lacks vital information regarding the resistancearea product, which is absolutely essential for accurately evaluating device efficiency and performance capabilities. Recent research has increasingly turned towards the development and optimization of VCSELs characterized by relatively high driving voltages. These configurations feature top DBRs along with barriers of either beryllium or carbon-doped GaAs/AlAs structures meticulously grown on either side. These advanced configurations create a considerable limitation as they cannot be effectively utilized for low voltage or current applications typical of battery-powered VCSEL implementations, which are critical in modern portable technologies. Notably, the only detailed examination concerning the crucial resistance-area product of the top contact is unfortunately not disclosed, which severely limits our understanding of pertinent performance metrics. It has been observed in various reports that the contact resistance is minimal in comparison to the reflectivity of Bragg reflector mirrors; however, this assertion does not hold true for electrically pumped VCSELs with high-resistance top contacts. Here, the performance may be significantly impeded by the contact resistance factors, thereby underscoring the pressing need for further research and development in this pivotal area of VCSEL technology, as advancements in this field are critical for enhancing overall device efficacy and utility [223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 229].

A comprehensive and innovative method aimed at significantly reducing the p-type resistance found within semiconductor devices is presented in this discussion; notably, the top high-reflectivity GaAs/A1As mirrors fulfill a crucial dual-purpose role as they simultaneously act as the anode in the laser configuration. The profound influence exerted by the meticulously designed top contacts on the device's I-V characteristics becomes increasingly severe and critically important as various performance metrics are evaluated and scrutinized in detail. The primary motive driving the investigation into electrically pumped vertical-cavity surface-emitting lasers (VCSELs) stems from the fact that the greatly improved thermal management capabilities of the top distributed Bragg reflectors (DBRs) are necessary to achieve highpower operation. This high-power operation is crucial to avoid encountering any detrimental device failures, which unfortunately can lead to a relatively high resistance of around 12 µm for the laser elements utilized. A fairly linear and robust bandgap I-V characteristic is consistently observed across a variety of operational conditions. As there is notably no current "spreading" layer present within the current path of these carefully tailored laser structures, the heating of the optical cavity does not pose a major concern for portable applications, particularly those designed to operate at relatively low currents and voltages, and which do not necessitate high modulation speeds during their operational phase. This specific characteristic and behavior make them ideally suited for a wide range of applications where efficiency and thermal performance are of utmost importance and priority [230, 231, 232, 233].

Chapter - 8

Nonlinear Optics

In the fascinating realm of molecular medium optics, the intensity of light that manages to be transmitted through the cell, which we denote as I, is commonly articulated with the mathematical relationship $I = I0Exp(-\alpha L)$. In this fundamental equation, I0 represents the initial intensity level of the incoming light, while α signifies the attenuation coefficient, a vital parameter that quantifies the extent to which the light is diminished as it journeys through the medium in question. Additionally, L designates the thickness of that medium itself, highlighting the role that varying thickness plays in the transmission of light. However, in various scenarios where electromagnetic waves are present, it becomes critically essential to recognize that the refractive index of the medium, labeled as n, will undergo periodic and oscillatory changes. To fully conceptualize this alteration, one might consider it expressed in the form $n(t)\sim 1 + \gamma \epsilon(t) \sin(\Omega t)$, where γ stands as a constant that noticeably influences the variations observed in the intensity of light, and $\varepsilon(t)$ embodies the intensity of the light at a specific moment in time along this trajectory. At the outset of our discussion, it's important to understand that there exists a series of holes that have been strategically burned into both the central region and the plasma windows of the cell, introducing complexity to our examination. The primary focus of this chapter is to provide a robust and foundational theoretical framework specifically designed for the examination of nonlinear optics. Within this specialized context, we aim to achieve a thorough and detailed microscopic treatment of the nonlinearity as it emerges in the polarization of any medium under consideration. The overarching goal of our exploration is to delve deeply into the microscopic foundations that underpin our current understanding of nonlinear optical responses. Without establishing this foundational knowledge, it becomes increasingly challenging to reconcile the study of nonlinearity itself as it applies to the actual media that are utilized in various experimental settings. The ensuing discussion will encompass a thorough and meticulous examination of a range of significant topics, many of which are often regrettably absent from many introductory or even intermediate-level accounts of nonlinear optics; these topics are deemed absolutely fundamental for a more advanced scholarly treatment of the subject. Consequently, this extensive and thorough exploration is exquisitely suited for senior undergraduates, postgraduate students, or indeed anyone who seeks a well-rounded acquaintance with the theories and principles underpinning the third-order nonlinear susceptibility χ (3). It is worth noting with particular emphasis that an abundance of standard textbooks and scholarly monographs addressing the broad and enriching subject matter of nonlinear optics are presently available on the market. Most of these resources typically address the topic at an initial stage, often within the broad framework of wave optics, which is to say, specifically from the perspective of classical electrodynamics. This very approach to the subject matter is precisely the option that will be employed in the forthcoming sections as well, thereby enriching and deepening our comprehension of the fundamental principles and sophisticated nuances of nonlinear optics [234, 235, 236, 237, 238, 239].

8.1 Second Harmonic Generation

Laser-driven particle acceleration, nonlinear optics, and plasma-based terahertz generation are just a few notable examples of the incredible advancements stemming from the combination of nonlinear effects and ultrafast lasers. These technologies have truly revolutionized the interdisciplinary and evolving field of photonics and laser-matter interaction, offering exciting new possibilities and applications. It is essential, however, to understand that all of these remarkable applications fundamentally rely on a deep and comprehensive understanding, as well as precise control, over the basic processes that occur at the very initial stage of the interaction between light and the target material. This interaction is not only complex but also critical for the successful implementation of various photonic technologies. The intricate and complex interplay between the wave front of a laser pulse and free charges present in the medium generates, in general, an electromagnetic wave that propagates through the material while exhibiting a range of various nonlinear effects that are characteristic of the specific environment in which the interaction takes place. A detailed theoretical and experimental study has been conducted focusing specifically on investigating second-harmonic generation that occurs as a result of the interaction between ultraintense femtosecond Bessel beam pulses and a micrometer-scale plasma rod embedded within a transparent dielectric medium. This thorough research has conclusively shown that not only is second-harmonic emission effectively generated from regions of near-critical plasma, but also that the plasma density can be generated and maintained consistently over several tens of micrometers. This remarkable capability is made possible due to the unique conical structure of the Bessel beam, which plays a crucial and significant role in enhancing the interaction dynamics and expanding the potential applications of this fascinating and promising area of research. As scientists continue to delve deeper into these interactions, the prospects for future advancements in laser technology and its applications only become more exciting and innovative [240, 241, 242, 243, 244].

An innovative experimental setup was meticulously developed, enabling the formation of a plasma rod with an astonishingly small diameter of less than 6 µm within a sapphire medium. This specific plasma rod is created through the intricate and highly complex interaction of tightly focused, high-power femtosecond Bessel beam pulses that engage dynamically with the bulk material of sapphire. This particular geometric arrangement is exceptionally well suited for investigating the multifaceted and complex interaction dynamics of ultrafast lasers with sub-wavelength plasma columns, which are notably challenging to resolve and analyze effectively using conventional investigative methods and instruments. To date, this unique and specialized area of research has garnered a very limited level of investigation, leaving a promising field ripe for extensive exploration and deeper understanding. In terms of spatio-temporal scales, the plasma generated exhibits a significantly thicker shell when viewed along the radial direction, a characteristic that is directly comparable to the Rayleigh length associated with the laser used in this intricate process. However, it is thoughtfully confined in the longitudinal direction by the clever and innovative creation of an absorptive backlight, which effectively stabilizes the plasma formation against adverse fluctuations. These carefully controlled and precisely managed conditions allow for the plasma to persist for several tens of picoseconds, a duration that has been thoroughly confirmed by probing the shock wave generated on the target during the interaction process, providing further insights into the behavior and characteristics of the created plasma [245, 246, 247, 248, 249, 250, 251, 252].

8.2 Parametric Amplification

The intricate and detailed process of parametric amplification can be elaborately described in a directional coupler that is composed of both quadratically nonlinear and lossy waveguides. These types of waveguides are widely known to belong to a distinctive class of optical systems that are characterized by spatial parity-time (PT) symmetry within the linear regime. A notable distinct spectral parity-time anti-symmetry that is uniquely associated with various optical parametric interactions has been identified through in-depth and careful analysis. Furthermore, it is shown in various studies that pump-controlled symmetry breaking can effectively facilitate a spectrally selective mode amplification process that is reminiscent of the

operational principles observed in advanced PT lasers. In this fascinating context, a significant and important connection is established between the breaking of spectral and spatial mode symmetries, which intriguingly reveals an exciting potential to implement unconventional regimes of spatial light switching. This impressive achievement can be accomplished through the ultrafast control of PT breaking, which is effectively realized by utilizing precisely timed and well-calibrated pump pulses. Additionally, comprehensive explorations and crucial insights regarding the optical param amplifier's maximum achievable quantum efficiency are provided, contributing invaluable information to the rapidly evolving field of optical physics [253, 254, 255, 256, 257].

Parametric amplifiers serve a vital and indispensable role as a fundamental component within a diverse array of optical setups, enabling a multitude of applications that encompass flexible wavelength conversion and tunable signal gain. The intricate process of wave amplification is effectively realized in the realm of difference-frequency generation, especially within nonlinear media characterized by those properties which reflect quadratic optical nonlinearity. In these advanced systems, the amplification rate is profoundly influenced by specific characteristics of the pump light, which permits ultrafast, all-optical tunability of the amplified signal that is generated. This work is dedicated to unveiling and exploring the previously uncharted potential of PT-symmetric systems, particularly in relation to the application of optical parametric amplification techniques. Within the linear regime, particularly at low light intensities, a coupler that exhibits PT symmetry shows a remarkable unidirectional mode evolution. In this unique scenario, amplification is confined to only one of the two waveguides, leading to the fascinating emergence of a phenomenon known as spectral PT anti-symmetry. This striking phenomenon shares notable similarities with the time-periodic mode intensities that are characteristically observed in PT lasers. Furthermore, periodic mode evolution can also be delineated within the intricate context of the PT-symmetric coupler. Such significant insights into the dynamics and behavior of these sophisticated systems could potentially pave the way for groundbreaking advancements in the realms of optical amplification technologies and applications, opening new avenues for research and innovation in this promising field [258, 259, 260, 261, 262, 263]

Chapter - 9

Ultrafast Lasers

Ultrafast lasers represent a remarkable and advanced breakthrough in the realm of precision tooling, meticulously engineered to deliver incredibly short pulses that are exceptionally tailored for the careful and deliberate ablation of some of the most extraordinarily hard materials known to modern manufacturing. These high-tech devices are capable of achieving resolutions that can reach down to the micron level, all while maintaining a level of remarkable accuracy that is essential for many industrial applications. These sophisticated instruments emit pulses in the picosecond range, granting them an extraordinary ability to machine an extensive array of diverse materials. At the same time, they excel in minimizing any collateral damage that may occur to the surrounding surfaces during the machining process, ensuring that the integrity of the workpiece is upheld. For instance, through the use of a carefully orchestrated series of fifteen picosecond pulses, it has been effectively demonstrated and validated that one can achieve the highly precise machining of fused silica materials. This process enables the effortless etching of straight cuts while presenting the significant advantage of resulting surfaces that exhibit very little roughness after the completion of machining. This quality is particularly desirable in applications where surface finish is critical. Moreover, the ongoing development of innovative micromachining techniques has also proven to be remarkably effective, enabling the creation of narrow and precise slots ranging from 1 to 3 µm, all while utilizing average powers around 60 W. This incredible achievement underscores the versatility and adaptability that are inherent features of this remarkable technology. It is crucial to emphasize that ultrafast lasers are not confined solely to the processing of fused silica materials; their effectiveness extends equally well to other exceptionally hard materials commonly encountered in various industrial sectors. Notably, these advanced lasers are routinely employed in high-precision tasks such as dicing silicon wafers or machining diamonds. They consistently deliver unparalleled results with micron-level resolution, a feat that powerfully emphasizes their extensive range of applications within the high-precision manufacturing domain. Furthermore, it is worth mentioning that the state-of-the-art sub-100 femtosecond Ti:Sapphire oscillator has been observed to provide strikingly higher ablation efficiency when applied to fused silica materials compared to a variety of other types of materials, showcasing its unique capabilities and advantages in the field. In addition to these impressive attributes, the process known as chirped pulse amplification plays an essential and crucial role in significantly enhancing the energy available during the various machining processes, thus contributing fundamentally to the effective and precise outcomes that can be achieved with ultrafast laser technology [264, 265, 266, 267, 268, 269, 270, 271].

High repetition rate and high peak power pulses possess the remarkable ability to machine a diverse array of materials with sub-um resolution, thus achieving intricate designs and features with a high degree of accuracy and finesse. This capability allows for the creation of complex shapes and patterns without causing collateral damage that can frequently be associated with less precise machining techniques. These powerful laser systems can be effectively applied to machine intentionally thick objects or to process stacks of thin layers, making them particularly advantageous for pioneering microfluidic applications that demand high precision and detailed customization. The fascinating phenomenon of picosecond laser ablation, which leads to the formation of grooves, has been discovered to induce a process termed liquid blooming in the high fluence regime. This represents a groundbreaking technique that facilitates lateral patterning of surfaces, irrespective of whether they are hydrophilic or lipophilic in nature. This exceptional capability opens up new avenues for significant advancements in various applications, notably in biomedical devices or innovative surface treatments where specific interaction with liquids is of utmost importance. Additionally, ultrafast laser ablation showcases exceptional versatility as it enables the efficient machining of non-transparent materials. This is often accomplished by the strategic use of auxiliary transparent alumina nanoparticles or hollow glass microspheres, which serve to facilitate the machining process significantly, thereby enhancing both the efficiency and effectiveness of the overall operation. A noteworthy innovation within this exciting domain involves the illumination of barium fluoride microparticles by utilizing a Ti:Sapphire picosecond laser. This approach brings forth new potential and possibilities in the area of material processing and manipulation. In light of the comprehensive discussion surrounding these advanced laser machining techniques, it becomes paramount to consider the numerous advantages they present, such as enabling greater control and precision in various applications. However, it is equally important to take into account the potential disadvantages that may arise, including the incorporation of higher costs and possible limitations encountered with certain materials or specific applications [272, 273, 274, 275, 276, 277, 278, 279]

9.1 Femtosecond Lasers

The remarkable generation of femtosecond pulses was first vividly demonstrated in the year 1970, marking an extraordinary and significant advancement in the vast field of laser technology, which has continually evolved and transformed over the decades. However, it was not until the year 1994 that the very first commercial product, which significantly utilized this groundbreaking and revolutionary technology, was made readily available to the public by an American company noted for its pioneering efforts and innovations in this particular field of laser science and technology. The term "femtosecond" stands out as quite intriguing and unique because it does not denote a conventional predetermined time window, as the term picosecond does; rather, it signifies ultra-short pulses that exist well below a nanosecond duration, showcasing a fascinating and intricate aspect of the time scale of optical phenomena. In the sophisticated and advanced realm of laser technology, there are primarily two commonly utilized and recognized techniques for the effective generation of femtosecond pulses, which are the mode-locking technique and the soliton effect. Both of these techniques play crucial and vital roles in advancing this remarkable technology and enhancing its applications across various disciplines, including telecommunications, medicine, and scientific research. When we consider the aspect of measuring pulse length in time domains, we observe that a large number of wavelengths become intricately involved in the process, resulting in the linewidth of a femtosecond laser being significantly larger, exceeding that of traditional laser systems. Understanding this intricate relationship, we can see that the quantization of the harmonic electric field is elegantly given by the mathematical relationship expressed as $E(v) = c2\pi v$, where v symbolizes the frequency in the context of electromagnetic waves and c represents the speed of light in a vacuum. Thus, a pulse in the time domain inherently consists of a spectrum in the frequency domain, which is both a fundamental and essential concept in optics and photonics that underpins advanced experimental setups. While the intensity curves of typical picosecond lasers tend to oscillate at frequencies in the range of a few gigahertz (GHz), femtosecond lasers exhibit an incredible and impressive range of higher harmonics that appear prominently and dominantly in the spectrum of the pulse train they generate, leading to an expanded array of potential applications. This unique characteristic leads to modulation frequencies that extend intriguingly into the terahertz (THz) range, showcasing the extensive capabilities and powerful features of these advanced lasers. As a fascinating and noteworthy consequence of principles derived deeply and fundamentally from the field of quantum mechanics, we find that the spectral width of a pulse train in the time domain can actually be broader than that of a multimode continuous wave laser that possesses otherwise comparable parameters and properties. These parameters can include critical aspects such as output power and gain saturation, which work in concert with one another during the laser operation process. This very large and significant spectral width is further enhanced substantially through the application of the mode-locking technique, which ingeniously facilitates the oscillation of only those modes that maintain the same longitudinal mode spacing, ultimately producing fascinating phenomena that is effectively known as self-phase modulation. Lasers that are collectively referred to under the umbrella term femtosecond lasers can achieve a pulse duration as precise and accurate as 80 femtoseconds (fs), which is equivalent to 0.8 picoseconds (ps), underscoring their exceptional capacity to produce extremely short bursts of light with impressive accuracy. Importantly, for both the intensity and the electric field considering their measurements, the standard and widely acknowledged label of 30 fs is recognized within the scientific community as a significant benchmark for evaluation and comparison among various femtosecond laser technologies. Additionally, employing the formula $\lambda/\Delta\lambda = 300$ allows for the establishment of a widely accepted and recognized definition, asserting that pulse lengths shorter than 0.3 ps are classified confidently as femtosecond, providing clarity within the classification parameters. However, it is worth noting that the term modelocking might misleadingly imply that the electromagnetic field does not oscillate at the longitudinal cavity frequency, a nuance that requires careful consideration. This complexity warrants a nuanced and sophisticated understanding of this multifaceted phenomenon in order to grasp its implications fully, particularly in the context of advanced laser applications and emerging technologies [268, 280, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285].

9.2. Picosecond Lasers

2+6 design approach

The pulse energy that is generated within the advanced laser system is effectively and significantly scaled through the careful and meticulously designed use of a power-amplifier. Simultaneously, the repetition rate, which is critically important for precisely determining the output characteristics and precision of the system, can indeed be finely tuned and carefully adjusted by the master-oscillator component. This advanced and highly sophisticated laser system comprises various modular blocks that facilitate an impressive and exceptional level of flexibility in both setup and operation, making it incredibly versatile. Furthermore, additional stages for power amplification can be seamlessly incorporated into the system simply by adding extra

components as needed, allowing for a truly modular design that can continuously evolve with user specifications and requirements. To further expand the operational range of wavelengths produced by this innovative system, new wavelengths can be efficiently and effectively generated by integrating harmonic conversion modules or by employing specialized Raman-laser modules specifically designed for this purpose. Additionally, more sophisticated and intricate cascaded frequency conversion schemes can be envisioned and creatively designed to significantly enhance the inherently impressive overall capabilities and performance of the laser system. The first notable publication on this intricate and complex topic proposed an innovative and pioneering design featuring a well-structured 2+6 configuration, which showcases the depth of research undertaken in this field. This particular design utilizes a diode-pumped, passively Q-switched microchip master-oscillator as its initial and foundational stage, and it follows with a diode-pumped, passively Q-switched microchip power-amplifier stage that serves to markedly strengthen the output produced by the system. The subsequent design variation consists of a master-oscillator powered by a robust, reliable, and efficient power-amplifier, along with a specialized single-pass fourthharmonic generation module that is strategically incorporated for enhanced functionality and versatility. In both design variations, the microchip laser was strategically chosen and thoughtfully incorporated as the power-amplifier due to its numerous advantages related to size, efficiency, and the specific wavelength considerations that are required for optimal and effective performance in a wide range of practical applications that demand utmost reliability and precision. These attributes make the advanced laser system a formidable tool across various scientific and industrial disciplines [286, 287, 288, 289, 290]

The microchip systems that were developed, specifically the pulsed Nd:YVO_4, Nd:YAP, and Nd:KGd(WO_4)_2, operated using Q-switch techniques to produce sub-100 picosecond pulses that possess energy levels ranging between 10 and 100 microjoules. These innovative microchip systems are finely tuned to operate very close to the fundamental wavelength associated with Nd(3+):YVO_4, which is precisely at 1064 nanometers, while those utilizing Nd(3+):YAP or Nd(3+):KGd(WO_4)_2 operate at various wavelengths of 1075 nanometers, 1073 nanometers, and 1083 nanometers, respectively. In the specific design configuration known as 2+6, it is essential to note that the repetition rate is primarily determined by the master-oscillator, and the stack component plays a crucial role in mitigating the potential mode competition "spikes" that can occur, particularly when the pumping or incoming radiation intensity is elevated. This setup includes a flip-mounted

thin-film polytetrafluoroethylene sample, which features an air gap of 0.5 millimeters. The GAP-FTIR spectrum, which was obtained using the 7 Hz, 20 millijoule system previously described, reveals significant analytical information regarding the performance and characteristics of these laser systems $^{[291, 292, 293, 294]}$.

Chapter - 10

Applications of Lasers

Since the very first laser was ingeniously constructed back in the remarkable year of 1960, countless industrial and scientific applications have been discovered and developed for this transformative and truly remarkable technology. The extensive use of lasers has expanded into an ever-growing array of diverse fields, making it increasingly challenging to distinctly enumerate and clearly identify all the possible uses of such a remarkably versatile and adaptable tool. On March 14, 1960, a pivotal moment in the annals of technological history occurred when the brilliant Theodore H. Maiman, at the esteemed and renowned Hughes Research Laboratory, made the first formal announcement regarding the actual existence and operational capabilities of the laser. Since its momentous inception, the laser has proven to be extraordinarily effective in both the study and the various applications of laser-matter interaction at the atomic and molecular levels, while also making significant contributions to the nonlinear optics associated with bound electrons. Over the past four decades and beyond, the entire global scientific and industrial community has witnessed extraordinary advancements that have fundamentally transformed the laser into one of the most crucial instruments across numerous domains, encompassing a wide range from groundbreaking medical procedures to the intricate and sophisticated processes of industrial manufacturing. In the last fifteen years specifically, however, there has been an impressive surge in our collective ability to generate high levels of laser intensities, driven by notable advancements in the scientific understanding and technological capabilities associated with short laser pulse production—Chirped Pulse Amplification (CPA) being recognized as one of the most significant and transformative contributions to this exciting field. At such elevated intensities, fundamental particles, including electrons and protons, gain remarkable kinetic energy that is typically measured in the mega-electron-volt (MeV) range through their dynamic interaction with the increasingly intense laser fields. This remarkable phenomenon heralds a new era for laser technology—an age that is characterized by nonlinear relativistic optics, which intriguingly intertwines and connects with the fundamental principles of nuclear physics. We propose a clear and defined pathway toward

achieving extraordinarily high-intensity levels given by the equation E= electromagnetic field strength in V/m and I= intensity in W/cm² over the next decade, significantly surpassing the current intensity limits, all the while utilizing the state-of-the-art megajoule laser facilities that are currently being commissioned and brought online. A laser capable of generating such extreme high intensity holds the immense potential to accelerate particles to unprecedented frontiers of high energy and would serve as an invaluable and powerful tool for fundamental physics, comprehensively encompassing a diverse range of areas such as particle physics, gravitational physics, nonlinear field theory, ultrahigh-pressure physics, astrophysics, and even the expansive realms of cosmology. Thus, here we specifically concentrate our attention on high-energy applications, delving deeply into the implications and promising future prospects of these incredible advances in laser technology and their potential impact on various fields of scientific inquiry [295, 296, 297, 126, 298, 299, 300, 301, 302]

10.1 Industrial Applications

Laser technology was first pioneered and invented in the groundbreaking year of 1960, which marked an extraordinarily significant milestone in the broad and ever-evolving field of optics that continues to capture the imagination of scientists and researchers. Since that truly groundbreaking moment in history, we have witnessed a multitude of innovative types of lasers being meticulously developed, each representing extraordinary advancements and significant progress in this highly specialized domain that plays such a crucial role in various industries today. Alongside these remarkable developments, there has been a substantial and ongoing investment aimed at gaining a deeper and more fundamental understanding of various light-matter interaction processes. These understandings are not merely academic; they are crucial for driving further advancements in the field and establishing new frontiers for exploration. In recent years, a considerable amount of dedicated research and important facts derived from foundational theoretical studies have been successfully translated into practical technological and industrial applications that yield tangible benefits and improved efficiencies. Over time, as the technology has matured and evolved, the diversity and extensive range of lasers available on the market have significantly expanded. They have evolved from the very first ruby laser, which operated exclusively within the visible spectral range, to the advanced excimer lasers that now provide exciting and innovative new opportunities for a wide array of diverse industrial applications that leverage the ultraviolet spectral range, enhancing capabilities in sectors such as manufacturing and healthcare. This incredible evolution exemplifies the remarkable journey and continuing progress in laser technology over the course of several decades, showcasing how far the field has come and indicating bright prospects and promising opportunities for future developments on the horizon, which may lead to even more groundbreaking applications and technologies in the years to come [126, 303, 304, 2, 305, 306, 307]

10.1. Industrial Applications. Lasers are not only utilized in communication or data storage; they are increasingly finding a vast array of industrial applications across various sectors. For instance, lasers are extensively employed for cutting, welding, and structuring diverse types of materials, showcasing their versatility and efficiency. Moreover, for numerous industrial applications, the 'indirect' utilization of lasers is rapidly gaining traction. A prime example lies in the production of dies and stamps, where the process is significantly facilitated by the pattern generation on photoemulsions using lasers. In addition, holographic methods for testing, reproducing information, and processing thermoplastic materials to achieve surfaces with well-defined topology and micro-lens structures are also prominently described in recent literature. Optical Data Storage has the potential to revolutionize data storage applications owing to the remarkable ability of lasers to focus light into exceptionally small spots. In areas requiring high data capacities, it is anticipated that the combination of lasers and holography will see even wider application as technology progresses. Furthermore, both industrial and entertainment applications of laser displays are under active consideration and development. Experts believe that in the future, data storage systems that rely on Optical Data Storage technologies will progressively displace the traditional magnetic and magneto-optical disk storage systems that are currently prevalent. In addition, substantial efforts are being directed toward the development of high-efficiency, low-cost diode-laser-based technology across the visible spectral range, which will enhance the accessibility and practicality of laser applications. Ultimately, the goal is to create simple and inexpensive optical recording and reading systems designed specifically for everyday PC users, making high-tech solutions available to a wider audience. Additionally, in the realm of optical signal processing, there is an expectation that simple yet robust optical analogues of electronic devices, as well as hybrid electro-optic devices, will be developed. Moreover, optical devices are poised to find significant applications in neural computing environments where massive parallel processing is essential. Optical circuitry that can simulate the brain's remarkable capability for associative logic and parallel reasoning may also emerge as a promising field with various potential applications, further emphasizing the transformative power and adaptability of laser technology in industrial contexts and beyond [308, 126, 309, 310].

10.2 Medical Applications

The laser technology has remarkably found its way into an extensive array of medical applications ever since the very first days of the groundbreaking invention of the Laser. This fascinating advancement serves to highlight just how the entire commercial and industrial excitement surrounding Laser technology primarily originates from the dynamic medical field, where it continues to evolve and expand. As we closely examine the current landscape, we can see that today, with the invaluable assistance of advanced Laser treatment, revolutionary new methods and innovative procedures are not only being developed but are also being implemented with increasing frequency and success. The immense progress that we observe can mainly be attributed to significant technological development in the realm of Optical fibers and the miniaturization of Laser systems, both of which have played crucial roles in enhancing the efficacy and accessibility of Laser applications in medicine. His thorough investigations have shown that, in Europe, particularly in Germany, an impressive statistic reveals that every seventh working Laser system is now being utilized in the medical field, a testament to the technology's growing significance and impact. On another important note, it is essential to point out that particularly during prominent congresses and conferences, the commercial and "scientific" aspects of the discussions often show that far more than 90% of the funding received for research and development in this arena is represented by the industry behind these advanced technologies. Often, we see that new Laser systems and applications are aggressively promoted to medical professionals, with many more promises being made than what can be realistically expected to be delivered in terms of results and outcomes. This disparity in expectations versus reality continues to be a point of contention within the medical community as they navigate the evolving landscape of Laser technology [311, 3, 312, 313, 314, 315, 316].

The typical commercial and at times scientific perspective on the matter can be elaborated as follows: a certain medical group employs a sophisticated Laser system within the confines of their Hospital for many years and finds the experience to be satisfactory. This positive experience over time cultivates a strong desire to possess their very own "Laser" system for the enhancement of their medical operations. However, this compelling desire leads to notable complications and unforeseen challenges. Indeed, the emergence of new technology is often perceived as a significant revolution in therapy - frequently viewed through a commercial lens, as exemplified by the Pulsed wave laser, which hits the market primarily for profit-driven reasons rather than pure

therapeutic benefits. After this exposure to such innovative technology, the medical group enthusiastically proceeds to purchase a "Laser system." However, unfortunately, the anticipated success is limited and often falls short of expectations. The resulting outcome unfortunately leads to a negative balance sheet for both parties involved—the manufacturer who produced the system and the clinic that is expected to effectively utilize the system for patient care. This disappointing scenario frequently results in the Laser system being relegated to a storage room within the hospital—sometimes even banished to the basement, gathering dust, and ultimately becoming a forgotten piece of equipment that no longer serves its intended purpose. Meanwhile, on the other hand, new expectations and demands have arisen from various stakeholders, especially from an economic viewpoint, regarding the potential effectiveness and utility of such advanced devices in modern medical practice. These expectations often call into question the long-term viability and practicality of investing in such technologies amidst a rapidly evolving healthcare landscape [317, 318, 319, 320, 321, 322]

Chapter - 11

Quantum Optics

Quantum optics represents an exceedingly intriguing and multifaceted interdisciplinary field, which encompasses the intricate application of advanced quantum theory to meticulously describe the remarkably complex nature of electromagnetic radiation, along with its intricate and varied interactions with numerous forms of matter across multiple scales and contexts. As one embarks on a detailed and thorough exploration of this captivating subject, it quickly becomes evident that the various modes of the electromagnetic field are fundamentally derived from the solutions to the foundational Maxwell's equations, which are absolutely pivotal in achieving a thorough and holistic understanding of classical electrodynamics as well as its theoretical underpinnings. These modes are inherently continuous in nature, signifying a highly symmetrical coordination of both space and time, a cornerstone concept that profoundly permeates both classical and quantum optics, effectively demonstrating the interrelatedness of these disciplines. Within the expansive realm of classical optics, the field modes exhibit a close alignment with the mode functions that are adeptly and expertly utilized in the intricate domain of quantum optics. The seamless integration of the principles of quantum physics imbues the field with not just diversity but an additional, significant layer of complexity and nuance. This introduces the critical notion that the specific excitations found within each mode are quantized, paralleling the intriguing behavior observed in the foundational concept of harmonic oscillators that are integral to quantum mechanics. Thus, electromagnetic field modes become effectively amenable to a diverse plethora of techniques that are inherent in quantum theory, permitting deeper and more profound insights into their multifaceted and rich behavior. When one seeks the detailed solutions to Maxwell's equations within a bounded domain, such as that which is confined between mirrors situated in an optical cavity, one inevitably encounters a well-posed mathematical boundary value problem. In this specific context, the expected properties of the electric and magnetic fields can be scrutinized rigorously, providing an essential framework for detailed analysis. Nevertheless, a more formidable challenge arises when the comprehensive properties of the light field and their intricate interactions with various complex media are considered. This particular scenario brings to the forefront the wide-open and compelling question regarding the very nature of field modes, particularly in instances where matter is explicitly not present. Generally speaking, the solutions to Maxwell's equations are meticulously obtainable through the careful and thorough analysis of plane waves, which exhibit unique anomalies that predominantly arise within specific structures such as waveguides or optical fibers. When considering an E(lectric) or B(magnetic)-field distribution within the intricate and complex spacetime continuum, these distributions are consistently articulated in terms of captivating spatial variations observed within a distinctly defined plane, which complicates the analysis further. It is of utmost importance to acknowledge that while delving into the intricacies of E(lectric) or B(magnetic)-field distributions in the rich context of space-time, one clearly recognizes that a single mode cannot be adequately or effectively described using a simplistic classical mode function. In fact, the one-component distribution that is typically employed to characterize the electric field associated with a laser beam does not merely represent a simplistic view of the underlying physics; rather it is, in reality, a sophisticated three-dimensional object that evolves continuously over time, adapting and responding to a myriad of influences. Within this advanced and impactful framework, a mode is defined in a manner that is much more accurate as an ensemble of photons residing in a distinctly pure state, serving as the simultaneous solution to a singular one-particle Schrödinger equation within the context of nuanced space-time arguments and distributions. Such a profound and rigorous mathematical structure wonderfully facilitates the construction of a complete and comprehensive set of mode functions, which together form a robust and versatile basis through which any light field or specific light field mode can be effectively reconstructed and analyzed in various scenarios. It is imperative to bear in mind that each individual mode function retains a compelling mathematical equivalence to a quantum harmonic oscillator, thereby emphasizing and highlighting the significant and profound relationship that exists between the realms of electromagnetism and the principles of quantum mechanics. Furthermore, each electromagnetic mode function that resides within the expansive and complex four-dimensional framework of space-time maintains this deep equivalence to the harmonic oscillator, thereby solidifying the underlying and foundational principles that constitute the field of quantum optics in a manner that is both elegant and intricate. Within the classical domain, these modes are not only effective in satisfying the wave equation under various conditions, but they also serve to robustly support the macroscopic behavior of electric and magnetic fields, thereby bridging the often perceived and discussed gap between the classical electrodynamics and the rich intricacies of the quantum realm, revealing a spectrum of interactions and characteristics that can be further explored and understood [323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328, 329, 330]

11.1 Coherence and Interference

The essence of the interference phenomena fundamentally revolves around the intricate interactions and relationships between various different types of waves, which heavily depend on their respective phases and polarizations. This fascinating aspect of wave behavior is critically important in numerous scientific applications across diverse fields, playing a pivotal role in enhancing our understanding of fundamental physical principles. The first significant realization of the interference phenomenon was achieved by the early pioneers of optics, who diligently explored the intricate nature of light using non-coherent light sources long before the groundbreaking invention of the revolutionary and transformative laser technology that would change the landscape of optics forever. As research and understanding progressed greatly and rapidly, it became abundantly clear that the remarkable potential of coherent light sources could be harnessed effectively for a wide array of applications in numerous fields such as high-resolution spectroscopy, advanced holography, and even in telecommunications. This recognition has led to a widely accepted fundamental belief within the scientific community that, in order to conduct full-field fringe observations with the utmost accuracy, the use of mutually incoherent light sources is absolutely essential. This must be combined with the necessary characteristics of being highly monochromatic, consistent, and stable in nature. This understanding has had profound implications for the advancement of innovative optical techniques and methodologies, further enhancing the breadth of possibilities in scientific research, technological innovation, and practical applications. The exploration of interference and its underlying principles continues to be of paramount importance, as it paves the way for new discoveries, intricate advancements, and transformative technological innovations in the ever-evolving landscape of optics, shaping the future of various scientific inquiries and engineering advancements [331, 332, 333, 334, 335]

A light source is described as spatially coherent if the light waves that are emitted from various points are spatially correlated in a significant manner. Typically, two points are deemed identical when their source cross-section size is smaller than the mean wavelength of the light that is being observed, and this mean wavelength of the light plays a vital role in determining the degree of coherence present. The coherence area of a thermal light source is

considerably smaller when compared to other light sources, and this area is determined by the coherence time associated with the light source, which in turn is related to the source's bandwidth as dictated by Fourier transformation principles. The ability for any optical interference to take place is fundamentally reliant upon the presence of a coherent light source that meets specific coherence criteria. Light sources can exhibit two distinct types of coherence: temporal coherence and spatial coherence. Temporal coherence pertains to the behavior of light emanating from a single point on the source over a duration of time, while spatial coherence relates to light emanating from multiple points on the source that are measured concurrently. In order to successfully observe far-field spatial interference patterns, especially the wellknown double-slit interference patterns, it is crucial that a practical light source is capable of providing semi-infinite spatial coherence as well as infinite temporal coherence. For spatial interference to manifest itself within the far-field range, fulfilling the conditions of both temporal and spatial coherence is essential. If, conversely, an incoherent light source characterized by a short coherence length is utilized in a Michelson interferometer setup, the fringes will vanish rapidly as the separation length of the mirrors is increased, which directly corresponds to a decrease in path-length equality. As such, understanding and addressing the specific coherence characteristics of a light source are vital for applications that rely on the precise manifestation of optical interference [336, 331, 337, 338].

11.2 Quantum Entanglement

The physics of an entangled system is remarkably different from the physics observed in classically independent systems or even those that are classically correlated in nature: The entangled systems that we study are invariably comprised of multiple subsystems, each of which contributes to the overall behavior and properties of the system as a whole. The entangled quantum states provide a highly detailed and nuanced description of the intricate and complex correlations that exist between these subsystems that would not be discernible in non-entangled systems. Depending on the specific type of entangling mechanism that is utilized in the formation of these states, the resulting entangled states can exhibit a strikingly wide variety of correlation shapes, forms, and patterns, each of which can reveal different aspects of the underlying quantum nature of the system. In general, however, very little is stated or elaborated upon regarding the overall form and fundamental nature of these correlations in standard textbooks that cover the subject. For the sake of simplicity and clarity, most textbooks tend to focus primarily on discussing only a few select topics, particularly the EPR (Einstein-Podolsky-Rosen) states and the twin-beam states that serve as foundational examples. Furthermore, the majority of the treatment provided is often limited in scope to just the initial description of the entangled state at the very moment of photon 'creation.' After this initial stage of entanglement formation, it is conventionally assumed that the detectors employed in experimental setups will measure the relevant observables with high precision and accuracy, and that the appropriate correlation functions will subsequently be calculated based on these measurements. Typically, this calculation process only considers the second-order correlation functions, which means that important details may be overlooked. Since various degrees of entanglement exist within these systems, the correlations that are subsequently measured may end up revealing or, on the contrary, concealing the true entangled nature of the state under consideration. This potential obscurity is a critical aspect that researchers must navigate when exploring the rich and intricate world of quantum entanglement [339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 345].

The context is the common entangled two-photon system that is created in the intriguing and complex process known as spontaneous parametric down-conversion, which is a remarkable phenomenon in quantum optics. In the literature surrounding this captivating and multifaceted area of study, there are two profound properties of this system that are almost always mentioned and discussed in detailed exploration. First, there is the fascinating phenomenon of spatial correlation, or its alternative, anti-correlation, which is responsible for a noteworthy effect known as Hong-Ou-Mandel (HOM) interference. This unique phenomenon is customarily analyzed by thoroughly examining the second-order coherence of the electromagnetic field, which provides important insights into the behavior and characteristics of entangled photons. Researchers often employ sophisticated field-mode operators or utilize the photon operator picture as crucial analytical tools in their extensive investigations. The second major characteristic of this intricate system involves the remarkable Einstein-Podolsky-Rosen (EPR) correlations. These intriguing correlations are frequently described by deeply examining one mode of each photon and thoroughly analyzing the various properties of the photons that appear in the output or are conspicuously missing. In this specific context, these properties are often referred to as the so-called one- and twoway EPR elements, which further illuminate the nature of quantum entanglement. Generally speaking, the essential concepts of entanglement and these various quantum mechanical properties are treated within the robust framework of one-photon formalism, providing a solid foundation for understanding. The intricate connection that exists between the detected particles and the corresponding creation-time photons is carefully examined, along with the rigorous definition of the mode that each distinct photon occupies. Broadly speaking, it is commonly and intuitively assumed that the two-photon spectral amplitudes created by a given interaction are directly proportional to the product of the one-particle amplitudes. This intuitive assumption, which is reminiscent of the Born-type framework, provides a reasonable and insightful description and understanding of a wide range of classical and quantum phenomena that are encountered in various experiments and theoretical explorations throughout this fascinating field of study [346, 347, 348, 349, 350, 351, 352]

Chapter - 12

Quantum Information Processing

Quantum optical systems, which encompass a variety of entities such as atoms and ions, alongside their complex interactions with the quantized electromagnetic field, are often regarded as some of the most promising candidates for effectively carrying out a diverse array of quantum information processing tasks. This emerging field of study entails a comprehensive review of several notable key experiments, as well as insightful theoretical proposals that relate specifically to this area of research. Among the fundamental components that play a crucial role in the ongoing development of a future quantum computer are thoroughly described in this context. These essential components include quantum gates, long-lived qubits, and inventive refrigerator precooling schemes tailored specifically for the effective functioning of qubits. Noteworthy examples are presented to highlight the successful generation of entangled states that involve trapped ions, which are meticulously manipulated using highly precise laser pulses. Additionally, there is a detailed discussion regarding the implementation of probabilistic logic gates, which are constructed based on advanced and sophisticated linear ion trap setups. To complement these observations, the text outlines ambitious proposals aimed at developing scalable quantum computing schemes. These proposals address not only the abundant opportunities available in this promising domain but also delve into the various experimental challenges that researchers must navigate. Among these challenges, the integration of microtraps is examined in depth, emphasizing the need for innovation as the quest for more functional quantum systems continues to progress [353, 354, 355].

In the last twenty-five years, we have witnessed an extraordinary and profound understanding of quantum mechanics and its compelling application to the captivating realm of information processing, which has truly blossomed and extensively developed. This emerging and transformative new field, which is variously referred to as quantum information theory, quantum computation, or quantum cryptography, has significantly expanded not only due to its influential impact on fundamental ideas in mathematics, physics, and computer science but also by deftly exploiting the richness and interconnectedness found within these diverse subjects. A remarkable

illustration of this synergy is evidenced in the case of efficient algorithms that are specifically designed for the task of factoring integers, highlighting the exceptional and unique interplay between these crucial disciplines. This short chapter aims to introduce several key points that are critically important in the realms of quantum computation and quantum information theory. The chapter has been thoughtfully arranged with an eye towards encouraging readers to explore the accompanying lectures and detailed notes that will undoubtedly further enhance their comprehension and understanding. The topics that have been carefully chosen provide a solid set of essential tools that will be instrumental in aiding readers to effectively grasp the modern and rapidly evolving field of quantum information science. Throughout this text, a bridge will be constructed diligently between standard knowledge and the intricate yet fascinating world of quantum computation. For instance, following the comprehensive section on qubits, circuits, and computation, an important and pertinent question will be posed: "Quantum computers? How should I think about them?"; the ultimate aim of these notes is to lead readers towards a meaningful and insightful answer. With this objective in mind, amidst various classes, recent groundbreaking results will be thoroughly discussed in the specific context of the accompanying topic, including their possible impact and significant implications on the fields of quantum computation and quantum information theory. Throughout these engaging and dynamic lecture notes, key phrases and notations that are commonly associated with quantum computation will be emphasized for clarity and a deeper understanding. It is the sincere hope that these notes will serve as a comprehensive "keystone" exposition that simplifies the material and enhances the ultimate understanding of the intriguing and complex subject matter presented within this enlightening text [356, 357, 358, 359, 360, 361, 362].

12.1 Quantum Gates

Suppose we dare to envision the ideal case of the intricate and multifaceted development of a Raman quantum computer, which stands as a theoretical construct within the realm of advanced quantum computing technology. In this innovative and ambitious scenario, each and every single atom, which simultaneously functions as an individual qubit, is meticulously subjected to individual addressing through the operation of finely focused atom lasers that allow for remarkable precision. This extraordinary level of individual optimal addressing is delicately provided through a sophisticated and carefully designed 2D optical lattice configuration. In addition to this, an auxiliary secondary 1D optical lattice is creatively employed to perform single qubit operations while also efficiently addressing the crucial aspect of

scalability within the entire computing system. Remarkably, in this advanced setup, the qubit frequency can be effectively resolved on this secondary lattice, even though it is considerably weaker in intensity compared to the primary lattice. Nonetheless, the precise addressing of the desired qubit still necessitates an additional input of energy that is closely aligned with the specific energy gap, which is typically on the order of the recoil energy, a crucial factor. Research has indicated that a minimum of 3-phonon processes is invariably required to successfully achieve reliable quantum operations, unless the momentum distribution of the addressed qubit is driven to an almost negligible width, which represents a challenging technical feat. This situation subsequently implies a significant sacrifice in the overall addressing rate, a critical parameter which must be considered carefully in any practical implementation. Furthermore, the influence of the 2-phonon Raman process, which is notably affected by the light shift acting on the addressed qubit, along with the flexibility afforded by the use of gradient lattices, are both significantly impacted by fluctuations in the average energy difference that exists between the qubit frequency and the laser frequency that is being utilized for the operations. With respect to the Raman efficiency, it is observed that a larger spontaneous emission lifetime associated with a higher lying qubit or a specific Feshbach level can be particularly detrimental to achieving optimal performance, especially in the context of microwave addressing. This scenario inevitably leads to complications that must be thoroughly addressed in the ongoing research and development within the field of quantum computation, shedding light on the intricate challenges that lie ahead [363, 364, 365, 366, 367, 368, 369]

12.2 Quantum Algorithms

Quantum computers utilize the principles of quantum superposition to perform traditional digital computing tasks in an inherently different manner from existing classical (or binary) computers. As a result, different algorithms are necessary to harness their unique capabilities. One notable example is the quantum "Fast-Fourier-Transform," which serves as the essential bridge between the time-domain manipulation and control of qubits. This process involves intricate sequences of gates that facilitate the transformation of data and operations, ultimately leading to their conversion into the frequency domain for efficient storage and retrieval. Additionally, the ability to represent information in multiple states simultaneously allows for a remarkable increase in computational speed and processing power, setting quantum computing apart as a groundbreaking technology for future advancements [370, 371].

There are a variety of distinct approaches to quantum computing that are

currently being explored, considered, or actively pursued by researchers in the rapidly evolving field of quantum technologies. It is widely envisaged and hypothesized that such advanced devices could potentially outperform classical computers in a number of significant ways—particularly in crucial areas like decryption, where traditional methods may struggle to keep pace, or in the intricate simulation of quantum electronic systems that are highly complex and often difficult to analyze. The present discussion specifically focuses on those innovative approaches that are most closely related, both conceptually and experimentally, to the type of quantum manipulation and control that underpins the foundational elements of atomic, molecular, and optical (AMO) quantum information processing. This exploration is critical and paramount as it lays the groundwork for the groundbreaking breakthroughs that might ultimately influence future technologies in profound and transformative ways. The potential applications of these quantum computing advancements could reshape entire industries and redefine our understanding of computational capabilities [372, 373, 374, 375].

In all the following paragraphs, the widely recognized and extensively utilized language related to quantum computing will be employed in a meticulous manner. Regrettably, there exists a multitude of symbols that are commonly shared with the field of laser physics, which may inadvertently lead to potential confusion among readers not well-versed in both domains. To effectively mitigate this inherent risk and confusion, a concise equivalence guide has been prepared to clarify these critical differences: the state variable that accurately represents the cavity field is denoted by the symbol \$ \abla \$, whereas the state variable that corresponds to a quantum computer's register is represented by the symbol \$ a \$; furthermore, the symbol \$ \eta \$ signifies the photon emission rate that originates from the cavity in direct relation to the phase difference observed at a beam-splitter; the symbol \$ \Gamma \$ is utilized to indicate the coherence decay time of atomic excitation, while it concurrently denotes the bandwidth of the laser field that is perceived by an atom; lastly, the symbol \$ \abla \$ is also utilized to express the Rabi frequency, which contrasts with any symbols that may be employed within the context of set theory. This succinct yet comprehensive guide aims to provide clarity and ensure that the reader can smoothly follow the intricate discussion without misinterpretations involving these essential symbols as we delve deeper into the captivating and intriguing realms of quantum mechanics and quantum computing, where precision in language and representation is of utmost importance [376, 377, 378, 379]

Chapter - 13

Quantum Cryptography

Quantum Cryptography, commonly referred to as Quantum Key Distribution (QKD), has been experiencing a remarkable evolution and advancement over the last two decades, gathering substantial attention in the increasingly vital field of secure communications. In this paper, we take a closer look at and thoroughly analyze several of its fundamental principles, which are essential for gaining a solid understanding of how QKD operates effectively. QKD guarantees the secure distribution of cryptographic keys even in the presence of an eavesdropper, a critical feature that distinctly sets it apart from traditional methods of encryption and decryption. Therefore, it possesses potential security advantages when compared to standard public key cryptography methods, such as the widely utilized RSA algorithm, which remains prevalent in today's digital communication landscape. Recently, there has been significant progress in the practical implementation and deployment of QKD systems in real-world scenarios, showcasing its potential for widespread use. The fundamental and underlying principle of QKD is firmly grounded in the no-cloning theorem, which is a key concept in quantum mechanics that prohibits the creation of identical copies of an arbitrary unknown quantum state. In this paper, we will describe this important principle along with its formal proof, all while ensuring clarity and comprehensibility for those who may not have an extensive background in quantum mechanics. There are various types of protocols associated with QKD; among these, the BB84 protocol stands out prominently as the most well-known and extensively studied protocol in the field. Additionally, numerous generalizations and improvements of the BB84 protocol have been developed based on quantum systems that exhibit dimensions greater than two, pushing the boundaries of what is possible within the realm of quantum cryptography. Significant efforts have been directed toward the development of QKD in numerous different directions, with a focus on enhancing security measures, increasing the final transmission speed of information, and extending the length of secure communication channels. Additionally, ongoing research is being conducted in the search for innovative experimental realizations of QKD that can help push the technology even further. While these recent developments are undoubtedly fascinating and add valuable contributions to the expanding and dynamic field of quantum cryptography, possessing a fundamental understanding of the basic principles that underlie QKD is paramount for fully appreciating and critically evaluating these significant achievements. Before we proceed to provide a brief description of this core principle, we will first clarify some of the essential concepts of quantum theory, which play an instrumental role in the functionality, operational efficiency, and overall efficacy of QKD systems [380, 381, 382, 383, 384].

Quantum mechanics (QM) provides a comprehensive framework for understanding physical systems, expressing them in terms of states that inhabit the complex Hilbert space. Within this mathematical formalism, the expected values of observables associated with a quantum state are represented by hermitian operators that act upon the vectors in the Hilbert space. Notably, these operators possess a spectrum composed of real numbers, which represent the potential outcomes that can arise from measurements of the relevant observable operator. When a measurement is conducted on a quantum state, it yields one of the possible outcomes in accordance with the probabilistic rules dictated by quantum mechanics, where each outcome is associated with a specific measurement probability. Though this characterization of quantum mechanics appears to provide a clear framework, it ultimately offers only a seemingly comprehensive account of a quantum system confined within an isolated laboratory environment. However, there exist many ambiguities in this description; for instance, there is no detailed specification regarding the nature of the laboratory itself, the identity and role of the experimenter, nor the source from which the quantum system emanates. The necessity for the experimenter's free will complicates these issues further, introducing layers of philosophical inquiry. If we choose to incorporate the idea of an external classical observer into our understanding of quantum mechanics, we are able to address some of the aforementioned challenges, yet this shift brings about new conceptual difficulties that must be navigated. Some of these emergent issues are intricately connected to the dynamics and interactions of multiparticle quantum systems, where the complexities of entanglement and interference require careful analysis and refinement of our understanding [385, 386, 387, 388, 389, 390, 391]

13.1 Quantum Key Distribution

The secure and reliable distribution of secret random bit sequences, commonly referred to as "key" material, is absolutely essential for the effective encryption and decryption of confidential communications as well as sensitive information that requires utmost protection. Quantum

cryptography has emerged as a highly significant and advanced technique that is specifically dedicated to enabling secure key distribution through the transmission of single-photon signals across various mediums, including optical fibers and free space. However, this type of distribution faces numerous and complex challenges when attempted over the Internet, and these challenges arise for a variety of reasons that complicate the process significantly. Traditional cryptographic key distribution systems rely heavily on key material that consists of a completely random sequence of bits, built on fundamental principles of security and unpredictability that are essential in ensuring confidentiality. A crucial algorithmic step within these systems public key encryption and decryption—demands that users possess deep knowledge of a private (or secret) key, which is unique to the individual user and is directly paired in a one-to-one relationship with a public key that may be commonly known or widely distributed among many users, often across various networks and platforms. Nonetheless, before any encryption or decryption takes place effectively, the two parties involved (for instance, Alice and Bob) must first obtain a shared secret random bit sequence, which is precisely known as "key" material, and they utilize this secure key in the cryptographic algorithm that facilitates their secure communications. It is of utmost importance that they are able to acquire this key material with complete confidence and certainty, ensuring that no third party-or potential eavesdropper—has any access to, insight into, or knowledge about the key material they are using for their secure communications, thus maintaining the integrity and privacy of their messages throughout the entire exchange process in every possible dimension. This aspect of trust and confidentiality is paramount in the field of cryptography, as it forms the very backbone of secure communication systems employed in various sectors, including finance, healthcare, and national security [392, 393, 394, 395].

Practical systems now exist that enable the effective implementation of key distribution methods based exclusively on the advanced and complex principles of quantum mechanics. These sophisticated systems possess the remarkable capability of generating key material at an impressive speed of 1 Mbit per hour. Within these intricate systems, the raw output of the shared key undergoes a meticulous and thorough post-processing stage. This essential process is designed to guarantee that any adversary who might be closely and intently monitoring the communication would inevitably be detected, thus safeguarding and preserving the integrity of the key distribution. Nevertheless, a critical and unavoidable step must be taken before successful Quantum Key Distribution (QKD) can occur: the various participants involved in the communication must reach a consensus on the selection strategies that will be

utilized to effectively decode the bit sequence. This necessity presents a significant practical obstacle for QKD implementations, an issue that has yet to be fully and adequately addressed in current methodologies and frameworks. To tackle this formidable challenge, list mode data acquisition of single-photon analog-to-digital information has been employed, coupled with robust and reliable software data handling protocols. These innovative advancements have proven to be effective in resolving the basis matching problem that has previously hindered and complicated QKD processes. Furthermore, a specialized commercial array module has been developed that is capable of accurately recording time-tags from fast analog-to-digital converter signals. This critical recording occurs in real-time and boasts microsecond resolution, which significantly enhances the overall efficiency and reliability of the system. The findings demonstrate that qubits, which utilize states derived from photon interference, can be successfully and reliably distributed over relatively long distances, spanning several hundreds of kilometers. Following public communications, substantial and thoroughly proven secure key material can be established, thereby strengthening the operation of QKD in practical and real-world scenarios. It is widely believed that the conclusions drawn from these pivotal observations will remain valid for any forthcoming technologies that aim at tapping into optical fibers, thereby ensuring long-term effectiveness and security in the rapidly evolving field of quantum communication systems [396, 397, 398, 399, 400, 401].

13.2 Quantum Secure Direct Communication

Secure two-party and multiparty quantum communication schemes are fundamentally grounded either in the simultaneous entanglement established between the communicating parties or in the coordinated and simultaneous applications of a decoding key, which are vital for the successful recovery of the confidential secret message. The first type of protocols primarily enables a notably high level of security exclusively in an ideal scenario, wherein conditions remain perfect. However, in real-world practical implementations, an eavesdropper deploying an intercept-and-resend strategy can effectively monitor the communication process and has the potential to manipulate the secret message being conveyed. This inherent vulnerability presents significant and complex challenges when attempting to maintain privacy during the information transmission. On the other hand, the latter type of protocols relies extensively on possessing a dependable and efficient multiuser quantum memory, which, regrettably, is still far from being realized given the current state of experimental technology and the considerable ongoing research efforts in this domain. This discrepancy serves to highlight a critical gap in achieving fully secure communication systems under realistic operational conditions that users might encounter $^{[402,\ 403,\ 404,\ 405]}$.

With the current heightened interest and excitement surrounding the practical implementations of quantum cryptography, this concise academic paper aims to thoroughly and comprehensively address the intricate and complex problem of developing an efficient and highly secure quantum twoparty message transmission protocol. Importantly, this innovative protocol does not rely on the simultaneous entanglement of the involved parties nor does it require the simultaneous application of a decoding key. The direct and clear focus on secure quantum communication schemes is widely recognized as the most critical and urgent goal within the present realm of quantum cryptology, particularly as we seek advancements beyond the conventional standard schemes that have been previously established and utilized in various research and practical applications. This document reports on an innovative and groundbreaking protocol that enables two remote parties to securely exchange their secret keys, which are meticulously encoded onto a prearranged string of single photons that have been designed explicitly for this purpose. Notably, the present scheme does not necessitate simultaneous entanglement, and instead cleverly exploits a potentially noisy communication channel that an eavesdropper may attempt to utilize for intercepting information. Moreover, it is particularly important to highlight that the current scheme is designed to function seamlessly without the need for multiuser quantum memory and also works effectively to reduce the key detection rate in comparison to earlier protocols, thereby enhancing the overall efficiency and security of the communication process. This advancement is incredibly significant in the ongoing development of secure quantum communications, positioning it as a noteworthy contribution to the field and promising further investigation and exploration in future research endeavors [406, 407, 408].

Chapter - 14

Laser Safety

Observing and adhering to industrial safety requirements stands as an absolutely indispensable part of the working process across various fields and disciplines. Such requirements become particularly critical when working with lasers, primarily due to their potential and serious hazards. According to strict international regulations governing laser safety protocols, there are four major classes of lasers that are meticulously categorized depending on their radiation levels and the associated risks involved. The thorough administration of an appropriate safety system within the workplace is effectively ensured by the comprehensive implementation of preventive measures which are specifically designed to mitigate and avoid the potentially negative effects of laser radiation on workers and the surrounding environment. These stringent guidelines are essential to maintain a safe workplace, protecting not only the employees but also any visitors who may be present in areas where these powerful tools are utilized [409, 410, 411, 412, 413].

In various advanced laser laboratories, there are highly sophisticated and specialized devices available that can effectively minimize the emission of harmful laser radiation, particularly in situations where the hazard levels significantly exceed the critical threshold of 1M. Within this important context, there are two essential classifications of laser safety that are absolutely critical when working with lasers: the class of the working area, which is denoted as T (this stands for take-off or threshold), and the class of the laser emission, which is indicated by P. The higher class of laser safety is regarded as one of the most significant and hazardous parameters to consider when undertaking any activities involving lasers. If both classifications of T and P are present in any laser operation, the overall classification for laser safety increases in a corresponding manner. Therefore, when actively working with a specific laser system, it is imperative to take into account and thoroughly evaluate both types of safety classifications in order to ensure that proper safety measures are adequately in place. This diligence is essential for safeguarding not just individual operators but also the surrounding environment from any potential risks posed by high-intensity laser emissions [414, 3, 415, 416, 417]

14.1 Hazard Classes

Each operating laser possesses its own specific laser safety classification, which serves as an incredibly important statement regarding the frequency and severity of potential hazards that could arise from its use and operation. Lasers and laser systems are categorized into one of four broad "Classes" (I to IV) based on their potential to cause biological damage, whether it be through exposure or misuse. These classifications are essential as they help users understand the varied risks associated with different types of lasers. Here are some generalizations that hold true in many countries, including the UK, which can guide users in ensuring safety while working with various laser equipment and systems. It is absolutely essential for users to familiarize themselves thoroughly with these classifications to effectively mitigate risks and maintain a safe working environment while handling powerful laser technology. Understanding these classifications not only ensures individual safety but also promotes a culture of awareness concerning laser usage and its potential consequences [410, 418, 419, 420].

Laser safety Class 1: Inherently safe and meticulously designed with the utmost security in mind. The fundamental premise is that all classes of lasers can indeed be made safe when they are handled appropriately and that class 1 systems inherently require no additional user control measures beyond those already built into the design. This means that the laser system is completely enclosed to prevent any accidental exposure to its beam. There are no viewing windows present, which effectively eliminates the possibility of direct or reflected beam exposure to users in the vicinity. Interlocks are commonly and effectively employed within these systems to ensure that users do not receive any accidental exposure; for instance, the laser cannot be activated unless all the doors are securely and properly closed. Some advanced cutting and marking systems that utilize very high energy density beams do not incorporate any beam path viewing windows at all or any associated openings, thereby enhancing safety. Additionally, the equipment used for injection molding and marking often features specialized plastic curtains that are specifically designed to prevent any penetration of laser radiation, thereby ensuring that the safety of the environment and users is maintained. These systems are strictly classified as laser safety Class 1 systems, which ensures a remarkably high degree of safety for all users interacting with or near the equipment [421, 422, 423, 424].

Laser safety Class 2: This specific classification indicates that these lasers are deemed partly safe when considered under normal viewing conditions. It is important to understand fully that the beam produced by Class 2 lasers is

typically visible to the naked eye, which makes it essential to actively avoid direct eye exposure to prevent any potential harm that could occur. Typically, people do not instinctively stare directly at bright light sources, as this behavior serves as a natural defense mechanism designed to protect the eyes from damage caused by intense illumination. The beam of a Class 2 laser is specifically limited to the visible spectral range, which encompasses wavelengths from 400 to 700 nm, ensuring that the light remains within a spectrum that is detectable by human vision. Additionally, to maintain safety, these lasers are restricted to a maximum accessible power output of only 1 mW. Furthermore, it is crucial to note that Class 2 laser systems must not exceed a radiant energy density of 0.0035 J/cm2; at this specified threshold, the human eye will reflexively blink, which serves as a protective response to prevent any injury. Many common commercial laser pointers available in office environments and the scanning systems used at supermarket checkout counters fall within the laser safety Class 2 category due to this inherent reflex action of blinking that occurs when the bright beam of light unexpectedly contacts the eyes. This classification provides a framework that helps to ensure that users remain aware of the potential risks associated with these devices while still benefiting from the utility and convenience they offer in various everyday applications. Understanding these considerations is essential for maintaining safety alongside usability [409, 425, 426, 427, 428, 429].

14.2 Protective Measures

It has to be fairly assumed that the damage thresholds indeed increase linearly with the repetition rates on the basis of previously published work and findings in the existing literature. Although this assumption is reasonably well satisfied for the established recommendations pertaining to exposures of up to 100 milliseconds, there are also pertinent data associated with exposure durations of 1 and 3 seconds that include specific established thresholds for pigmented epidermal injury. These specific details should be carefully considered for diverse scenarios that may involve longer pulse durations and the associated risks they pose. The threshold data presented in relevant studies were meticulously obtained using eye-safe wavelengths specifically to accurately determine the precise limits for skin exposure, thus providing a basis for further investigations. For the 1070 nm wavelength in the pigmented model that was analyzed in these studies, the estimated ED50 damage threshold stands at approximately 0.05, which consequently yields a damage threshold in the range of 131 or 139 mJ/cm2. This range depends on the specific conditions under which the testing was conducted. Assumptions have been made that the transmission coefficient of the 1070 nm wavelength is effectively identical to that of the 1064 nm wavelength, which has a transmittance coefficient of 0.003 for the avian skin model. Moreover, display considerations, along with the temperature decreases involved in the assumptions related to the retinal model, were not sufficiently or adequately taken into account during this comprehensive assessment. It is entirely possible, and perhaps even likely, that the skin damage thresholds for exposure to the 1070 nm wavelength will be immeasurably small, thus raising significant questions about their practical relevance in real-world applications. Recent studies have clearly demonstrated that extremely high incident exposures can lead to serious retinal defects, which include concerning phenomena such as pigment emigration. This condition arises without actually resulting in the formation of a full-thickness hole, which is a critical consideration in evaluating the safety thresholds for exposure to these wavelengths. Assuming that all of the incident 1070 nm flux is completely absorbed within the retinal model, the exposure condition that corresponds to a 5% probability of damage is calculated to be 44 J/cm2. This figure serves as an important benchmark in understanding the potential impact of longduration exposure to this particular wavelength on retinal health and injury, thus necessitating further research into the implications of prolonged exposure [430, 431, 432, 433]

Chapter - 15

Future Trends in Laser Physics

Since its invention in 1960, lasers and their numerous applications have reached an impressive milestone, celebrating their 50th birthday in the year 2010. The fundamental physics principles that underpin the functionality of lasers were first articulated in the late 1950s, and the initial operational "lab" lasers began to emerge around the early 1960s. It is intriguing to note that the widespread realization and practical implementation of lasers occurred significantly ahead of the foundational scientific and technological advances associated with the development of particle accelerators and space exploration technologies. In this context, it can be argued that lasers represent the very first successful case of "man-made" quantum coherent sources, making their impact noteworthy. When considering the vast panorama of human history, which stretches back approximately 3,000 years with respect to the development of illumination technology, a half-century seems but a fleeting moment. During the extensive period spanning from 1960 to 2010, lasers found revolutionary applications across virtually all branches of physics and in various interdisciplinary fields, resulting in transformative impacts. One particularly exciting frontier in the theoretical study of advanced accelerators involves the concept of laser plasma accelerators (LPA). As laser technology continues to evolve and push the current limits of intensity, it becomes increasingly intriguing to explore how these advancements may influence the scientific case for a future linear collider. On one side of the discussion, the progressively larger gradients that accompany higher intensity lasers suggests a potential that a laser-based collider could effectively be realized within a more compact and cost-effective footprint. This characteristic may, in turn, support the preference for utilizing lasers over traditional electron beam based linear colliders. Conversely, it is equally plausible that the pursuit of higher laser intensities could lead to increased vulnerability to laser-plasma instabilities, which might result in unacceptable levels of beam degradation characterized by growth in transverse emittance and unmanageable energy spread. This presents an interesting inquiry: could a laser-plasma based collider remain a viable and competitive option beyond the International Linear Collider (ILC)? In this analysis, we strive to address such pivotal questions by closely examining the interactions between linear collider experiments and the future trajectory of laser technology development. We also implement simplified one-dimensional modeling of the laser-based acceleration processes, complemented by comprehensive start-to-end simulations. These simulations focus on the various laser parameter spaces that are compatible with a plausible evolution of technologies as well as presently conceivable experimental parameters. Engaging in this kind of analysis necessitates reliance on a multitude of underlying assumptions, each playing a critical role in shaping our understanding of the potential dynamics involved [295, 434, 435, 436, 437, 438, 439].

15.1 Advancements in Laser Technology

Lasers produce highly focused, high intensity beams of non-divergent light that have the unique property of phase coherence, meaning all of their constituent electromagnetic waves have precisely the same frequency, polarization and phase. Laser light also demonstrates diffraction-limited divergence after emerging from its source; a highly collimated beam whose width varies only slightly over a large distance. Furthermore, this light can be easily collimated, coupled and manipulated through fibre-optic cables and connectors. Lasers can be focused to obtain light intensities of 1014 W/cm2 to excite highly nonlinear optical phenomena such as two-photon absorption or to initiate surface ionization [440].

The use of lasers in various scientific and engineering applications has exploded in the last few years. This growth is due not only to the rapidly decreasing cost (and size) of certain types of diode lasers but also to advancements in pulse shaping techniques, notably Q-switching and modelocking. The use of stable and reproducible picosecond pulses in studying lattice dynamics and infrared-to-visible frequency up-conversion in nanoscale materials was a completely novel technique only five years ago. Now it is routine. And the information acquired is unique, especially for shockwave measurements in detonation physics [441, 442].

15.2 Emerging Applications

Broad commercial and military applications are expected to use inexpensive, low power, compact, semiconductor diode-laser-based systems. Over the next 20 years it is expected that developments in laser technology will be significant. Once believed to be simply a laboratory curiosity, important future implications of the concept of the laser have long been recognized. A coherent beam of monochromatic light waves of very high intensity and very short duration is produced by the laser. This monograph

considers only those benign applications of the laser. Broad commercial and military applications are foreseen that use compact, inexpensive, low power, semiconductor diode-laser-based systems. As technology develops towards high efficiencies and low cost, the prominence of diode-laser-based technology will increase. In an advanced industrial society where fundamental physics is applied, the laser is used to produce the microprocessor in which this source of information is read. There will be bytes bits on line by the end of 1990. Displaced by optical data storage, spinning magnetic media is used instead of plated polycarbonate disks predominate. Laser printers have increased in sales from in to and given that they are inherently modest power systems, future installations are expected to grow greatly, incorporating a variety of possible laser types. Their advent is seen as displacing electronically controlled, large screen cathode ray tube display systems. Not only will laser technology be used in the scan mechanism of the portable television set, but this diode-laser-based display represents a revolution in this area. Manufacturing technology based on the electron beam might profitably utilize diode lasers [438, 443, 444, 445, 446]

References

- 1. Wiseman HM. How many principles does it take to change a light bulb into a laser? 2015 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- Manshina AA, Tumkin II, Khairullina EM. The second laser revolution in chemistry: Emerging laser technologies for precise fabrication of multifunctional nanomaterials and nanostructures. Adv Funct Mater. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wiley.com
- Farooq A, Alquaity ABS, Raza M, Nasir EF, et al. Laser sensors for energy systems and process industries: Perspectives and directions. Combustion Sci. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 4. Pickering JD. Ultrafast lasers and optics for experimentalists. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- Kang L, Lin Z. Deep-ultraviolet nonlinear optical crystals: Concept development and materials discovery. Light Sci Appl. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nature.com
- O'Toole AJ, Castillo CD. Face recognition by humans and machines: Three fundamental advances from deep learning. Annu Rev Vis Sci. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nih.gov
- Geevarghese A, Wollstein G, Ishikawa H. Optical coherence tomography and glaucoma. Annu Rev Vis Sci. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nih.gov
- 8. Burns SA, Elsner AE, Gast TJ. Imaging the retinal vasculature. Annu Rev Vis Sci. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nih.gov
- 9. Cheng H, Li F, Yang Z, Pan S. Na4B8O9F10: A Deep-ultraviolet transparent nonlinear optical fluorooxoborate with unexpected short phase-matching wavelength induced by optimized ... Angew Chem. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wiley.com
- Tan D, Wang Z, Xu B, Qiu J. Photonic circuits written by femtosecond laser in glass: Improved fabrication and recent progress in photonic devices. Adv Photon. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: spiedigitallibrary.org

- 11. Oldani RJ. Application of Einstein's methods in a quantum theory of radiation. Quantum Chromodyn. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: intechopen.com
- 12. Sezginal ZB, Serhat Ü. History of lasers: Issue in hymenoplasty and laser use. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 13. O'Neill W. Seeing the light: Key inventions that illuminate our world. J Phys Conf Ser. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: iop.org
- 14. Nakamura Y. How did the laser come about, and what did it bring to us? 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: su-tokyo.ac.jp
- 15. Friedman RM. The 100th anniversary of Einstein's Nobel Prize: Facts and fiction. Annalen der Physik. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wiley.com
- 16. Passon O. The quasi-history of early quantum theory. Phys. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: mdpi.com
- 17. Biswas DJ. A beginner's guide to lasers and their applications, Part. Springer; 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 18. Gomez ALG. Einstein and gravitational waves. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: researchgate.net
- Fan WK, Tahir M. Recent developments in photothermal reactors with understanding on the role of light/heat for CO2 hydrogenation to fuels: A review. Chem Eng J. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: academia.edu
- 20. Keller N, Ivanez J, Highfield J, Ruppert AM. Photo-/thermal synergies in heterogeneous catalysis: Towards low-temperature (solar-driven) processing for sustainable energy and chemicals. Appl Catal B. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 21. Yan Y, Shang M, Huang S, Wang Y, Sun Y. Properties of AScSi2O6:Cr3+ (A = Na and Li) phosphors with high efficiency and thermal stability for near-infrared phosphor-converted light-emitting diode light. Appl Mater Interfaces. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 22. Hu R, Xi W, Liu Y, Tang K, Song J, Luo X, Wu J. Thermal camouflaging metamaterials. Mater Today. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 23. Said Z, Arora S, Farooq S, Sundar LS, Li C. Recent advances on improved optical, thermal, and radiative characteristics of plasmonic

- nanofluids: Academic insights and perspectives. Solar Energy Mater. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 24. Li Y, Li W, Han T, Zheng X, Li J, Li B, Fan S. Transforming heat transfer with thermal metamaterials and devices. Nat Rev. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- Sheikholeslami M, Khalili Z. Enhancing photovoltaic solar panel performance with integration of PCM-based spectral filter and selfcleaning coating. J Build Eng. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 26. Ejaz A, Babar H, Ali HM, Jamil F, Janjua MM. Concentrated photovoltaics as light harvesters: Outlook, recent progress, and challenges. Sustain Energy. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 27. Chen G. Non-Fourier phonon heat conduction at the microscale and nanoscale. Nat Rev Phys. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 28. Li Z, Kan A, Wang K, He Y, *et al.* Optical properties and photothermal conversion performances of graphene-based nanofluids. Appl Therm Eng. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 29. Kohazi-Kis A, Klebniczki J, Gorbe M, Nagy P. Study of tunable resonances in laser beam divergence and beam deflection. 2012 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 30. Rasht-Behesht M, Huber C, Shukla K. Physics-informed neural networks (PINNs) for wave propagation and full waveform inversions. J ... 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wiley.com
- 31. Guo B, Ringwood JV. Geometric optimisation of wave energy conversion devices: A survey. Appl Energy. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 32. Mojgani R, Balajewicz M, Hassanzadeh P. Kolmogorov n-width and Lagrangian physics-informed neural networks: A causality-conforming manifold for convection-dominated PDEs. Comput Methods Appl. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 33. Henning J, Palitta D, Simoncini V. An ultraweak space-time variational formulation for the wave equation: Analysis and efficient numerical solution. Modelling Numer. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: esaim-m2an.org

- 34. Qin C, Zhou J. On the seismic stability of soil slopes containing dual weak layers: True failure load assessment by finite-element limit-analysis. Acta Geotech. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 35. Sun L, Liu Q, Abdelaziz A, Tang X. Simulating the entire progressive failure process of rock slopes using the combined finite-discrete element method. Comput ... 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 36. Lima SA, Kamrujjaman M, Islam MS. Numerical solution of convection—diffusion—reaction equations by a finite element method with error correlation. AIP Adv. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: aip.org
- 37. Guo CX, Liu CH, Zhao XM, Liu Y, *et al.* Exact solution of non-Hermitian systems with generalized boundary conditions: Size-dependent boundary effect and fragility of the skin effect. Phys Rev Lett. 2021 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 38. Boyd JA, Lahaye T. A basic introduction to ultrastable optical cavities for laser stabilization. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 39. Alzaydi A. Cost-efficient electromagnetically-actuated rotational adaptive mirror design. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: srce.hr
- 40. Hartung L, Seubert M, Welte S, Distante E, *et al.* A quantum-network register assembled with optical tweezers in an optical cavity. Science. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 41. Kazakov D, Letsou TP, Beiser M, Zhi Y. Active mid-infrared ring resonators. Nat. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nature.com
- 42. Yao K, Fang J, Jiang T, Briggs AF, Skipper AM, Kim Y. Tuning multipolar Mie scattering of particles on a dielectric-covered mirror. ACS. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 43. Yang Y, Seong J, Choi M, Park J, Kim G. Integrated metasurfaces for reenvisioning a near-future disruptive optical platform. Light Sci Appl. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nature.com
- 44. Yang G, Dev SU, Allen MS, Allen JW. Optical bound states in the continuum enabled by magnetic resonances coupled to a mirror. Nano Lett. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: osti.gov
- 45. Hirai K, Hutchison JA, Uji-i H. Molecular chemistry in cavity strong coupling. Chem Rev. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 46. Xiang C, Jin W, Terra O, Dong B, Wang H, Wu L, Guo J. 3D integration enables ultralow-noise isolator-free lasers in silicon photonics. Nat. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: nature.com

- 47. Pandey A, Krasnok A. Backscattering-immune Floquet conversion in ring modulators. arXiv preprint arXiv:2411.05336. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 48. Barczyk R, Parappurath N, Arora S. Interplay of leakage radiation and protection in topological photonic crystal cavities. Laser Photonics. 2022 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wiley.com
- 49. Barczyk R, Kuipers L, Verhagen E. Observation of Landau levels and chiral edge states in photonic crystals through pseudomagnetic fields induced by synthetic strain. Nat Photonics. 2024 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 50. Wildi T, Gaafar MA, Voumard T, Ludwig M, *et al.* Dissipative Kerr solitons in integrated Fabry–Perot microresonators. Optica. 2023 [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: optica.org
- 51. White AD, Ahn GH, Gasse KV, Yang KY, Chang L. Integrated passive nonlinear optical isolators. Nature. 2023. Available from: [PDF link].
- 52. Zhao W, Zhang Y, Gao Z, Peng D, Kou J, Lu Y. Exceptional points induced by unidirectional coupling in electronic circuits. Nature. 2024. Available from: nature.com.
- 53. Kacmoli S, Sivco DL, Gmachl CF. Unidirectional mode selection in bistable quantum cascade ring lasers. 2022. Available from: [PDF link].
- 54. Ogura T. Raman scattering enhancement of dielectric microspheres on silicon nitride film. Sci Rep. 2022. Available from: nature.com.
- 55. Szukalska A, Mysliwiec J. White lasing–materials, design and applications. J Mater Chem C. 2023. Available from: rsc.org.
- 56. Asgarnezhad-Zorgabad S. Coherent amplification and inversion less lasing of surface plasmon polaritons in a negative index metamaterial with a resonant atomic medium. Sci Rep. 2021. Available from: nature.com.
- 57. Vashahri-Ghamsari S, Lin Q, He B, Xiao M. Magnomechanical phonon laser beyond the steady state. Phys Rev A. 2021. Available from: uark.edu.
- 58. Zhang T, Zhou Z, Liu X, Wang K, Fan Y. Thermally activated lasing in organic microcrystals toward laser displays. J Phys Chem C. 2021. Available from: [HTML link].
- 59. Feng S, Povilus B, Yang S. Color tuning halide perovskites: Optical

- amplification and lasing. Mater Today Adv. 2023. Available from: sciencedirect.com.
- 60. Goldberg I, Elkhouly K, Annavarapu N. Toward thin-film laser diodes with metal halide perovskites. Adv Mater. 2024. Available from: wiley.com.
- 61. Zhang Q, Shang Q, Su R, Do TTH, *et al*. Halide perovskite semiconductor lasers: materials, cavity design, and low threshold. Nano Lett. 2021. Available from: [HTML link].
- 62. Zhao M, Chan HS. Balancing through agglomeration: A third path to sustainable development between common prosperity and carbon neutrality in China. Technol Forecast Soc Change. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 63. Chu ZK-H. Population inversion, negative temperature, and quantum degeneracies. 2009. Available from: [PDF link].
- 64. Araujo GR, Bajpai D, Baudis L, Belov V. The Monument experiment: ordinary muon capture studies for decay. Eur Phys J C. 2024. Available from: springer.com.
- 65. Bajpai D, Baudis L, Belov V, Bossio E, *et al.* The MONUMENT Experiment: Ordinary Muon Capture studies for 0 decay. arXiv preprint. 2024. Available from: [PDF link].
- 66. Manwiller P. A survey of accelerator alignment concepts for professional development. Indico. Available from: stanford.edu.
- 67. Banerjee D. An investigative perspective on the nuclear atom in physics. Objective Phys. Available from: wisdompress.co.in.
- 68. He L, He Y, Sun S, Goetz E, Le AT, Zhu X. Attosecond probing and control of charge migration in carbon-chain molecule. Adv Mater. 2023. Available from: spiedigitallibrary.org.
- 69. Benyoucef M. Photonic quantum technologies: science and applications. 2023. Available from: [HTML link].
- 70. Harikrishnan S, George SD, Chidangil S. Archaeophotonics: applications of laser spectroscopic techniques for the analysis of archaeological samples. Appl Spectrosc. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 71. Ion RM, Bakirov BA, Kichanov SE, Gheboianu AI. 3D Reconstruction and nuclear analytical investigations of Tropaeum Traiani monument, Adamclisi. Sci Bull. Available from: sciendo.com.
- 72. Danson CN, Gizzi LA. Inertial confinement fusion ignition achieved at

- the National Ignition Facility—an editorial. High Power Laser Sci Eng. 2023. Available from: cambridge.org.
- 73. Zhang B. Coconuts and Islanders: A statistics-first guide to the Boltzmann distribution. 2019. Available from: [PDF link].
- 74. Barvick K. Crafting in Clay: A geometric morphometric analysis of ancestral Pueblo water jars. SSRN. Available from: ssrn.com.
- 75. Behbehani F, Hurley KM, Black MM. Childcare staff feeding practices associated with children's willingness-to-try-new-foods. Appetite. 2025. Available from: ssrn.com.
- 76. Elbeltagi M. Study of high voltage breakdown in liquid xenon time projection chambers and statistical interpretation of machine learning assisted event discrimination in rare ... 2024. Available from: carleton.ca.
- 77. Parziale M, Woertge D, Mohebbi B, Claussen J. Improving the resolution of MPM recovered relaxometry parameters with proper time domain sampling. Appl Magn Reson. 2023. Available from: springer.com.
- 78. Xiao Y, Liu D, He J, Zhuang L, Liu WM, Yan LL. Thermodynamics and fluctuations in finite-time quantum heat engines under reservoir squeezing. Phys Rev Lett. 2023. Available from: aps.org.
- Aladwani A, Nouh M, Hussein MI. State-space Bloch mode synthesis for fast band-structure calculations of non-classically damped phononic materials. Comput Methods Appl Mech Eng. 2022. Available from: nsf.gov.
- 80. Amiri M, Bandura KM, Boyle PJ, Brar C. The CHIME pulsar project: system overview. Astrophys J. 2021. Available from: iop.org.
- 81. Newman DJ. Quantum number conservation: a tool in the design and analysis of high energy experiments. J Phys G: Nucl Part Phys. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 82. Geist BK, Neufeld H. Particle-number conservation, causality and linear response in biomedical imaging. Appl Math Comput. 2021. Available from: sciencedirect.com.
- 83. Braun-Munzinger P, Redlich K, Rustamov A. The imprint of conservation laws on correlated particle production. J High Energy Phys. 2024. Available from: springer.com.
- 84. Vovchenko V. Density correlations under global and local charge conservation. Phys Rev C. 2024. Available from: aps.org.

- 85. Koizumi H. Neglected U (1) phase in the Schrödinger representation of quantum mechanics and particle number conserving formalisms for superconductivity. J Phys A: Math Theor. 2023. Available from: [PDF link].
- 86. Wu Z, Li J, Wu Y. Phase-engineered photon correlations in weakly coupled nanofiber cavity QED. Phys Rev A. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 87. Santos LRS, Oliveira MH, Solak LOR. Fundamental limit to cavity linewidth narrowing with single atoms. arXiv preprint. 2024. Available from: [PDF link].
- 88. Samimi S, Golshan MM. Temperature dependence of optical phase transitions in a system of two-level atoms and photons interacting inside a nonlinear cavity. Phys Rev A. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 89. Chiarella G, Frank T, Farrera P, Rempe G. Two-cavity-mediated photon-pair emission by one atom. Optica. 2024. Available from: optica.org.
- 90. Beukers HKC, Pasini M, Choi H, Englund D, Hanson R. Remote-entanglement protocols for stationary qubits with photonic interfaces. PRX Quantum. 2024. Available from: aps.org.
- 91. Braver Y, Valkunas L, Gelzinis A. Derivation of the stationary fluorescence spectrum formula for molecular systems from the perspective of quantum electrodynamics. Lith Phys J. 2021. Available from: lmaleidykla.lt.
- 92. Beukers HKC, Pasini M, Choi H, Englund D. Tutorial: Remote entanglement protocols for stationary qubits with photonic interfaces. arXiv preprint. 2023. Available from: [PDF link].
- 93. Oliveira GEF, Maes C, Meerts K. On the derivation of the Kompaneets equation. Astropart Phys. 2021. Available from: [PDF link].
- 94. Park JW, Kim KJ, Lindberg R. Stochastic Maxwell-Bloch equations for modeling amplified spontaneous emission. Phys Rev A. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 95. Klimov VV. Control of the emission of elementary quantum systems using metamaterials and nanometaparticles. Phys Uspekhi. 2021. Available from: [PDF link].
- 96. Pandey D, Wubs M. Collective photon emission in solid state environments: Concatenating non-Markovian and Markovian dynamics. Phys Rev Res. 2024. Available from: aps.org.

- 97. Apostolakis A, Balanov AG, Kusmartsev FV. Beyond the ordinary acoustoelectric effect: Superluminal phenomena in the acoustic realm and phonon-mediated Bloch gain. Phys Rev B. 2022. Available from: [PDF link].
- 98. Lippi GL, Wang T, Puccioni GP. Phase transitions in small systems: Why standard threshold definitions fail for nanolasers. 2022. Available from: [PDF link].
- 99. Compton RN, Duncan MA. Laser experiments for chemistry and physics. 2024. Available from: [HTML link].
- 100.Morita R, Inoue T, De Zoysa M, Ishizaki K, *et al.* Photonic-crystal lasers with two-dimensionally arranged gain and loss sections for high-peak-power short-pulse operation. Nat Photon. 2021. Available from: [HTML link].
- 101.Yoshida M, Katsuno S, Inoue T, Gelleta J, Izumi K. High-brightness scalable continuous-wave single-mode photonic-crystal laser. *Nature*. 2023. Available from: nature.com
- 102. Yadroitsev I, Yadroitsava I, Du Plessis A. Basics of laser powder bed fusion. In: *Laser Powder Bed Fusion of Metals*. Elsevier; 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 103.Gomes ASL, Moura AL, de Araújo CB. Recent advances and applications of random lasers and random fiber lasers. *Progress in Quantum*. Elsevier; 2021. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 104. Cutrona A, Cecconi V, Hanzard PH, Rowley M. Nonlocal bonding of a soliton and a blue-detuned state in a microcomb laser. *Nature Physics*. 2023. Available from: nature.com
- 105.Inoue T, Yoshida M, Gelleta J, Izumi K. General recipe to realize photonic-crystal surface-emitting lasers with 100-W-to-1-kW single-mode operation. *Nature*. 2022. Available from: nature.com
- 106.Aleksi E, Leevi V. Discovering the Marvels and Intricacies of Physics & Astronomy: A Journey Through Fundamental Principles and Cosmic Phenomena. *Fusion of Multidisciplinary Research*. An ...; 2022. Available from: fusionproceedings.com
- 107.Liu R, Liu S, Zhang X. A physics-informed machine learning model for porosity analysis in laser powder bed fusion additive manufacturing. *The International Journal of Advanced*. 2021. Available from: [PDF]
- 108. Khairandish MO, Sharma M, Jain V, Chatterjee JM. A hybrid CNN-SVM

- threshold segmentation approach for tumor detection and classification of MRI brain images. *Irbm*. 2022. Available from: taylors.edu.my
- 109.Pappas IO, Woodside AG. Fuzzy-set Qualitative Comparative Analysis (fsQCA): Guidelines for research practice in Information Systems and marketing. *International Journal of Information*. 2021. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 110.Ramesh KKD, Kumar GK, Swapna K. A review of medical image segmentation algorithms. In: *Pervasive Health*. 2021. Available from: eai.eu
- 111.Fang W, Yu Z, Chen Y, Masquelier T. Incorporating learnable membrane time constant to enhance learning of spiking neural networks. In: Proceedings of the ...; 2021. Available from: thecvf.com
- 112.Roswell M, Dushoff J, Winfree R. A conceptual guide to measuring species diversity. *Oikos*. 2021. Available from: wiley.com
- 113. Yao X, Rushlow DR, Inselman JW, McCoy RG. Artificial intelligence—enabled electrocardiograms for identification of patients with low ejection fraction: a pragmatic, randomized clinical trial. *Nature Medicine*. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 114.Aiken AR, Lohr PA, Lord J, Ghosh N. Effectiveness, safety and acceptability of no-test medical abortion (termination of pregnancy) provided via telemedicine: a national cohort study. *BJOG: An International Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology*. 2021. Available from: wiley.com
- 115.Li X, Yan T, Tan Y. Providing a method to stabilize the laser output light intensity for optical telecommunication systems. *Journal of Optics*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 116.Ferioli G, Pancaldi S, Glicenstein A, Clément D. Non-Gaussian Correlations in the Steady State of Driven-Dissipative Clouds of Two-Level Atoms. *Physical Review Letters*. 2024. Available from: [PDF]
- 117.Kotulska AM, Pilch-Wróbel A, Lahtinen S. Upconversion FRET quantitation: the role of donor photoexcitation mode and compositional architecture on the decay and intensity based responses. *Light: Science & Applications*. 2022. Available from: nature.com
- 118.Su A, Xi F, Liu Z, Ning Y, Leng J, Chen Z, He Y. Analytical study on the steady-state thermal blooming effect of high-power ytterbium-doped fiber lasers propagating through the atmosphere. *Optics Express*. 2023. Available from: optica.org

- 119.Mackenzie AM, Smith HE, Mould RR, Bell JD. Rooting out ultraweak photon emission a-mung bean sprouts. *Journal of Photochemistry and Photobiology*. 2024. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 120.Singh SK. Optical feedback-induced dynamics and nonclassical photon statistics of semiconductor microcavity laser. *Applied Physics B*. 2021. Available from: researchgate.net
- 121.Cárdenas-Avendaño A, Keeble L, Lupsasca A. Assessing the impact of instrument noise and astrophysical fluctuations on measurements of the first black hole photon ring. *Physical Review D*. 2024. Available from: [PDF]
- 122.AlKawak OA, Ozturk BA, Jabbar ZS, Mohammed HJ. Quantum optics in visual sensors and adaptive optics by quantum vacillations of laser beams wave propagation apply in data mining. *Optik.* 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 123.Dong M, Chen L, Zhao R. A Discontinuous Galerkin Time-Domain Scheme to Model Lasing Dynamics in Four-Level Two-Electron Atomic Systems. In: 2024 18th European ...; 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 124. Durko-Maciag M, Ulrich G, Jacquemin D. Solid-state emitters presenting a modular excited-state proton transfer (ESIPT) process: recent advances in dual-state emission and lasing applications. *Physical Chemistry*. 2023. Available from: rsc.org
- 125. Yanes-Thomas P, Gutiérrez-Jáuregui R. Collective coupling of driven multilevel atoms and its effect on four-wave mixing. *arXiv preprint arXiv*. 2024. Available from: [PDF]
- 126.Bernatskyi A, Khaskin V. The history of the creation of lasers and analysis of the impact of their application in the material processing on the development of certain industries. *History of Science and Technology*. 2021. Available from: hst-journal.com
- 127.Han C, Jiang P, Geng S, Ren L. Multi-physics multi-scale simulation of unique equiaxed-to-columnar-to-equiaxed transition during the whole solidification process of Al-Li alloy laser welding. *Journal of Materials Science &* 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 128. Nabavi SF, Farshidianfar A, Dalir H. Comprehensive review: Advancements in modeling geometrical and mechanical characteristics of laser powder bed fusion process. *Optics & Laser Technology*. 2025. Available from: [HTML]

- 129.Zhu H, He Z, Wang J, Zhang W, Pei C, Ma R. Microcavity complex lasers: from order to disorder. *Annalen der Physik*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 130. Wang X, Zhang Z, Fu X, Khan A, Zhao S. Evolution on spatial patterns of structured laser beams: from spontaneous organization to multiple transformations. *Advanced*. 2023. Available from: spiedigitallibrary.org
- 131.Han B, Ma Y, Zhao Y, Wu H. The Applications of Random Fiber Lasers in Optical Fiber Communication and Sensing Systems: A Review. *IEEE Transactions on* 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 132. Huang NS, Liu ZP, Deng BJ, Zhu ZH, Li SH. The MING proposal at SHINE: Megahertz cavity enhanced X-ray generation. *Nuclear Science and ...* Springer; 2023. Available from: springer.com
- 133.Prakash V. Narrowband photon pairs for atoms: high resolution spectral engineering and characterisation. 2021. Available from: upc.edu
- 134. Chen J, Xiong Y, Xu F, Lu Y. Silica optical fiber integrated with twodimensional materials: towards opto-electro-mechanical technology. *Light: Science & Applications*. 2021. Available from: nature.com
- 135.Wright LG, Christodoulides DN, Wise FW. Spatiotemporal mode-locking in multimode fiber lasers. 2017. Available from: [PDF]
- 136.Wei C, Yu X, Lei C, Wang Z, *et al.* Modeling on a multi-level rate equation model and rovibrational relaxations of HBr-filled hollow-core fiber lasers. *Optics Express*. 2024. Available from: optica.org
- 137.Buzin DS, Pankin PS, Maksimov DN. Electrically controlled laser generation in a photonic crystal-liquid crystal-metal microcavity. *arXiv* preprint arXiv. 2024. Available from: [PDF]
- 138. Yu Y, Xu B, Zhang Z, Zhao Y, *et al*. On the numerical modelling of a 6-energy-level optical gain system. *Optik.* 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 139.Xu XYI, Xie G, Ma J, Ying L, Yuan J, Huang Z. Fast simulation for interacting four-level Rydberg atoms: electromagnetically induced transparency and Autler-Townes splitting. *Optics*. 2024. Available from: optica.org
- 140.Kumar R, Manchaiah D, Ahmad M. Effect of relaxation on the transfer of orbital angular momentum via four-wave mixing process in the four-level double lambda atomic system. *New Journal of Physics*. 2024. Available from: iop.org

- 141. Cheng A, Samulyak R, Kupfer R, Pérez-Ríos J. Efficient numerical algorithm for multi-level ionization of high-atomic-number gases. *Physics of ...* 2024. Available from: aip.org
- 142. Khaloobagheri M, Askari HR, Nejad AA. Electromagnetically induced transparency in a four-level M-type spherical quantum dot in the presence of spherical metal nanoparticle by using Mie theory. *Optik.* 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 143.Zhang Q, Wang C, Dong X, Gao X. Control of transverse mode in a He—Ne laser using an astigmatic resonator. *Applied Optics*. 2021. Available from: optica.org
- 144.Jin X, Fang Q, Xu X, Yang Y, *et al.* Transverse mode interaction-induced Raman laser switching dynamics in a silica rod microresonator. *Chinese Optics Letters*. 2023. Available from: researching.cn
- 145. Shang P, Bai L, Wang S, Cai D, *et al.* Research progress on thermal effect of LD pumped solid state laser. *Optics & Laser Technology*. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 146.Zhang H, Zheng Y, Mao D, Zeng C, *et al.* Morphology-controllable ultrafast fiber lasers based on intracavity manipulation of transverse modes. *Physical Review Applied*. 2021. Available from: researchgate.net
- 147. Wenzel S, Brox O, Casa PD, Wenzel H. Monolithically integrated extended cavity diode laser with 32 kHz 3 dB linewidth emitting at 1064 nm. *Laser & Photonics*. 2022. Available from: wiley.com
- 148.Kim K, Bittner S, Jin Y, Zeng Y, Guazzotti S, Hess O. Sensitive control of broad-area semiconductor lasers by cavity shape. *APL Photonics*. 2022. Available from: aip.org
- 149.Zvorykin VD. NG Basov's role in the development of excimer lasers: a half-century history from the launch of the first Xe2 laser at the Lebedev Physical Institute to modern laser *Uspekhi Fizicheskikh Nauk*. 2023. Available from: researchgate.net
- 150.Azmi AN, Wan Ismail WZ, Abu Hassan H, Halim MM. Review of open cavity random lasers as laser-based sensors. *ACS Publications*. 2022. Available from: soton.ac.uk
- 151.Doronin IV, Zyablovsky AA, Andrianov ES. Universal lasing condition. Sci Rep. 2021. Available from: nature.com
- 152.Ahn N, Park YS, Livache C, Du J, Gungor K. Optically Excited Lasing in a Cavity-Based, High-Current-Density Quantum Dot

- Electroluminescent Device. Adv. 2023. Available from: wiley.com
- 153.Sato R, Henzie J, Zhang B, Ishii S, Murai S. Random lasing via plasmon-induced cavitation of microbubbles. Nano Lett. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 154.Kristensen SL, Bohr E, Robinson-Tait J, Zelevinsky T. Subnatural Linewidth Superradiant Lasing with Cold Atoms. Phys Rev Lett. 2023. Available from: [PDF]
- 155.Li BB, Ou L, Lei Y, Liu YC. Cavity optomechanical sensing. Nanophotonics. 2021. Available from: degruyter.com
- 156.Miarabbas Kiani K, Frankis HC. Lasing in a hybrid rare-earth silicon microdisk. Laser Photon. 2022. Available from: wiley.com
- 157.Zhang Q, Yang C, Sheng J. Dissipative coupling-induced phonon lasing. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2022. Available from: pnas.org
- 158.Huang H, Song S, Liu Y, Liu Z, Xiao Z, Li Y. Near-Field-Regulated Ultrafast Laser Supra-Wavelength Structuring Directly on Ultrahard Metallic Glasses. Adv. 2024. Available from: wiley.com
- 159.Zhang F, Lu X, Zhu X, Yu Z, Xia W. Real-time monitoring of small extracellular vesicles (sEVs) by in vivo flow cytometry. J Extracell. 2024. Available from: wiley.com
- 160.Huang SH, Su HP, Chen CY, Lin YC, Yang Z. Microcavity-assisted multi-resonant metasurfaces enabling versatile wavefront engineering. Nat. 2024. Available from: nature.com
- 161.Fu B, Sun J, Wang C, Shang C, *et al.* MXenes: Synthesis, optical properties, and applications in ultrafast photonics. Small. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 162.Xia F, Gevers M, Fognini A, Mok AT, Li B, Akbari N. Short-wave infrared confocal fluorescence imaging of deep mouse brain with a superconducting nanowire single-photon detector. ACS. 2021. Available from: acs.org
- 163.Zhang J, Yu S, Wang Y, Yu H, *et al.* Research on manufacturing technology of nanoimprinted grating. J Manuf Process. 2024. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 164.Ahmed SA, Mohsin M, Ali SMZ. Survey and technological analysis of laser and its defense applications. Def Technol. 2021. Available from: sciencedirect.com

- 165.Fadhel MM, Ali N, Rashid H, Sapiee NM, Hamzah AE. A review on rhenium disulfide: Synthesis approaches, optical properties, and applications in pulsed lasers. Nanomaterials. 2021. Available from: mdpi.com
- 166.Obilor AF, Pacella M, Wilson A. Micro-texturing of polymer surfaces using lasers: A review. Int J. 2022. Available from: springer.com
- 167.Pascal S, David S, Andraud C, Maury O. Near-infrared dyes for twophoton absorption in the short-wavelength infrared: strategies towards optical power limiting. Chem Soc Rev. 2021. Available from: hal.science
- 168.Bushunov AA, Tarabrin MK, *et al.* Review of surface modification technologies for mid-infrared antireflection microstructures fabrication. Laser Photon. 2021. Available from: researchgate.net
- 169.Hošek M, Řeřucha Š, Hrabina J. High-precision measurement of the center frequencies of the hydrogen cyanide (HCN) hyperfine transitions in the 1.5 μm wavelength band. 22nd Polish-Slovak. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 170.Hrabina J, Hosek M, Rerucha S, Cizek M, Pilat Z. Absolute frequencies of H13C14N hydrogen cyanide transitions in the 1.5-μm region with the saturated spectroscopy and a sub-kHz scanning laser. Opt Lett. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 171.Ganser H, Hill C, George JH, Brown JM. Re-investigation of the infrared spectrum of the NCN radical by laser magnetic resonance spectroscopy. J Mol. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 172.Hays BM, Gupta D, Guillaume T. Collisional excitation of HNC by He found to be stronger than for structural isomer HCN in experiments at the low temperatures of interstellar space. Nat Chem. 2022. Available from: hal.science
- 173. Wang P, Sanjuan J, Guzman F. Laser frequency stabilization using HCN gas cell. Novel Opt Syst. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 174.Mishra P, Hull AW, Coy SL. Signatures of Reaction Mechanisms Encoded in the Vibrational Population Distribution of Small-Molecule Products: Photodissociation of Symmetric-Triazine Using ... J Phys. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 175.Kolesniková L, León I, Alonso ER. An Innovative Approach for the Generation of Species of the Interstellar Medium. Angew Chem. 2021. Available from: wiley.com

- 176.Zhang Y, Yan A, Qi Y, Lü JQ, An J, Sheng Q. High-order LG vortex Pr: YLF laser emitting in the visible wavelength range for the measurement of angular velocity. Appl Phys. 2024. Available from: researchgate.net
- 177.Liu A, Guan G, Chai X, Feng N, Lu M. Metal halide perovskites toward electrically pumped lasers. Laser Photon. 2022. Available from: researchgate.net
- 178. Church SA, Al-Abri R, Parkinson P, Saxena D. Optical characterisation of nanowire lasers. Prog Quantum. 2022. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 179. Yang L, Li G, Gao X, Lu L. Topological-cavity surface-emitting laser. Nat Photon. 2022. Available from: iphy.ac.cn
- 180.Hlavatsch M, Mizaikoff B. Advanced mid-infrared lightsources above and beyond lasers and their analytical utility. Anal Sci. 2022. Available from: springer.com
- 181. Chang Z, Fang L, Fedorov V, Geiger C. Intense infrared lasers for strong-field science. Adv Optics. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 182.Fu B, Zhang C, Lyu W, Sun J, Shang C. Recent progress on laser absorption spectroscopy for determination of gaseous chemical species. Appl Spectrosc. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 183.Lu X, Chang L, Tran MA, Komljenovic T, Bowers JE. Emerging integrated laser technologies in the visible and short near-infrared regimes. Nat. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 184.Peng W, Jin P, Li F, Su J, *et al.* A Review of the High-Power All-Solid-State Single-Frequency Continuous-Wave Laser. 2021. Available from: ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 185.Jin Y, Spiller NP, He C, Faulkner G, Booth MJ. Zwitterion-doped liquid crystal speckle reducers for immersive displays and vectorial imaging. Light Sci. 2023. Available from: nature.com
- 186.Chou CJ, Abe A, Tang JF, Lin TC, Kuo CC. Realizing a flexible and wavelength-tunable random laser inspired by cicada wings. J Mater. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 187.Ahmad A, Dai HT, Feng S, Chen Z. Random lasing in liquid crystal: Advances, challenges, and future directions. J Mater. 2025. Available from: [HTML]
- 188. Ron R, Zar T, Salomon A. Linear and nonlinear optical properties of well-

- defined and disordered plasmonic systems: A review. Adv Opt Mater. 2023. Available from: wiley.com
- 189.Lu H, Alkhazragi O, Wang Y, Almaymoni N, Yan W. Low-coherence semiconductor light sources: devices and applications. npj. 2024. Available from: nature.com
- 190.Hu B, Yang X, Wu J, Lu S, Yang H, Long Z, He L. Highly efficient octave-spanning long-wavelength infrared generation with a 74% quantum efficiency in a χ(2) waveguide. Nat. 2023. Available from: nature.com
- 191.Agravat D, Patel SK, Almawgani AH, Alsuwian T. Investigation of a novel graphene-based surface plasmon resonance solar absorber to achieve high absorption efficiency over a wide spectrum of wavelengths. Plasmonics. 2024. Available from: researchgate.net
- 192.Garcia-Lechuga M, Utéza O, Sanner N, Grojo D. Wavelength-independent performance of femtosecond laser dielectric ablation spanning over three octaves. Phys Rev Appl. 2023. Available from: [PDF]
- 193.Avinash K, Patolsky F. Laser-induced graphene structures: From synthesis and applications to future prospects. Mater Today. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 194.Sha H, Song Y, Chen Y, Liu J, *et al.* Advances in Semiconductor Lasers Based on Parity–Time Symmetry. 2024. Available from: ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 195. Jiang S. The Only Constant is Change: Dynamics and Stability in On-chip Nanoscale Semiconductor Lasers for Phased Arrays. 2022. Available from: escholarship.org
- 196.Sarkar D, Cho S, Yan H, Martino N, Dannenberg PH. Ultrasmall InGa(As)P dielectric and plasmonic nanolasers. ACS Publications. 2023. Available from: [PDF]
- 197. Wang C, Fu Z, Mao W, Qie J, Stone AD. Non-Hermitian optics and photonics: from classical to quantum. Adv Opt Photon. 2023. Available from: optica.org
- 198.Ackemann T, Guillet T, Pulham H, Oppo GL. Vector vortex solitons and soliton control in vertical-cavity surface-emitting lasers. Dissipative Opt Solitons. 2022. Available from: [PDF]
- 199.Roychoudhuri C, Fernando G. Understanding physical processes behind

- the photoelectric current pulse (PCP) statistics and designing better sources. In: Photonics for Quantum. 2022. Available from: academia.edu
- 200.Berger C. Microscopic Theory of Semiconductor Laser Material Systems. 2016. Available from: [PDF]
- 201. Yan Y, Zheng Y, Sun H, Duan J. Review of Issues and Solutions in High-Power Semiconductor Laser Packaging Technology. Front Phys. 2021. Available from: frontiersin.org
- 202. Wang B, Zeng Y, Song Y, Wang Y, Liang L, Qin L. Principles of Selective Area Epitaxy and Applications in III–V Semiconductor Lasers Using MOCVD: A Review. Crystals. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 203. Yang C, Liang L, Qin L, Tang H, Lei Y, Jia P, Chen Y. Advances in silicon-based, integrated tunable semiconductor lasers. 2023. Available from: degruyter.com
- 204.Liu S, Khope A. Latest advances in high-performance light sources and optical amplifiers on silicon. J Semicond. 2021. Available from: researching.cn
- 205.Xiong W, Tang W, Zhang G, Yang Y, Fan Y, Zhou K. Controllable pand n-type behaviours in emissive perovskite semiconductors. Nature. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 206.Zediker MS, Zucker EP. High-power diode laser technology XX: a retrospective on 20 years of progress. High-Power Diode Laser Technology. 2022. Available from: researchgate.net
- 207.Liu DS, Wu J, Xu H, Wang Z. Emerging Light-Emitting Materials for Photonic Integration. Adv Mater. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 208.Ren A, Wang H, Zhang W, Wu J, Wang Z, Penty RV. Emerging light-emitting diodes for next-generation data communications. Nature. 2021. Available from: cam.ac.uk
- 209.Rahman F. Diode laser-excited phosphor-converted light sources: a review. Opt Eng. 2022. Available from: spiedigitallibrary.org
- 210.Jung H, Ahn N, Klimov VI. Prospects and challenges of colloidal quantum dot laser diodes. Nat Photonics. 2021. Available from: osti.gov
- 211.Zou C, Zhang C, Kim YH, Lin LY, *et al.* The path to enlightenment: progress and opportunities in high efficiency halide perovskite lightenitting devices. ACS Photonics. 2021. Available from: osti.gov
- 212.Fathi H, Närhi M, Gumenyuk R. Towards ultimate high-power scaling: Coherent beam combining of fiber lasers. Photonics. 2021. Available from: mdpi.com

- 213.Ahn N, Livache C, Pinchetti V, Klimov VI. Colloidal semiconductor nanocrystal lasers and laser diodes. Chem Rev. 2023. Available from: acs.org
- 214.Liang D, Vistas CR, Garcia D, Tibúrcio BD. Most efficient simultaneous solar laser emissions from three Ce: Nd: YAG rods within a single pump cavity. Sol Energy Mater. 2022. Available from: researchgate.net
- 215.Zhang W, Cao P, Ting F, Zhou X, *et al.* High-efficiency spectral beam combining of an individual laser diode bar with polarization multiplexing. Opt Lett. 2023. Available from: optica.org
- 216.Dong M, Mangan NM, Nathan Kutz J, Cundiff ST, *et al*. Traveling Wave Model for Frequency Comb Generation in Single Section Quantum Well Diode Lasers. 2017. Available from: [PDF]
- 217.Pathan MKW, Weston NR, Mavris DN. Critical Materials in Aerospace: A Comprehensive Analytic Study on The Strategic Importance of Semiconductors. AIAA SCITECH 2024 Forum. 2024. Available from: researchgate.net
- 218.Kim S, Park E. Bibliometric study on artificial intelligence technologies for semiconductor defects. In: ... on Information and Communication Technology. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 219.Peng Y. The Relationship between US-China Semiconductor Friction and US National Security: A Realism Perspective. Obrana a strategie. 2024. Available from: obranaastrategie.cz
- 220.Saleem MI, Kyaw AKK, Hur J. Infrared Photodetectors: Recent Advances and Challenges Toward Innovation for Image Sensing Applications. Adv Opt Mater. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 221.Parra J, Navarro-Arenas J. Silicon thermo-optic phase shifters: a review of configurations and optimization strategies. Adv Photonics. 2024. Available from: spiedigitallibrary.org
- 222.He R, Liu N, Gao Y, Chen R, Zhang S, Yuan H, Duo Y. Monolithically integrated UVC AlGaN-based multiple quantum wells structure and photonic chips for solar-blind communications. Nano Energy. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 223.Liu J, Zhao F, Tang Z, Zhang X, Ren A. Advances in High-Power Vertical-Cavity Surface-Emitting Lasers. J Phys D. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 224. Jiang W. Vertical cavity surface emitting lasers. Datacenter Connectivity Technologies. 2022. Available from: [HTML]

- 225. Huang CY, Hong KB, Huang ZT, Hsieh WH, Huang WH. Challenges and advancement of blue III-nitride vertical-cavity surface-emitting lasers. Micromachines. 2021. Available from: mdpi.com
- 226.Moatlhodi O. Vertical cavity surface emitting laser for optical communication systems. 2022. Available from: biust.ac.bw
- 227.Liu R, Ji H, Othman DM, Osypiw ARC, Solari W. Numerical simulation of electrically pumped active vertical-cavity surface-emitting lasers diodes based on metal halide perovskite. 2024. Available from: wiley.com
- 228.Hjort F. Ultraviolet vertical-cavity surface-emitting lasers and vertical microcavities for blue lasers. 2021. Available from: chalmers.se
- 229.Hentschel C. Device and material characterisation of vertical cavity surface emitting lasers. 2022. Available from: cardiff.ac.uk
- 230.Ballato J, Dragic PD, Digonnet MJF. Prospects and challenges for alloptical thermal management of fiber lasers. J Phys D. 2024. Available from: iop.org
- 231.Liu T, Yang C, Jia Z, Shen W. Light Management for Fullerene-Based Semitransparent Polymer Solar Cells with a Distributed Bragg Reflector. ACS Appl Polym. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 232.Palo E, Daskalakis KS. Prospects in Broadening the Application of Planar Solution-Based Distributed Bragg Reflectors. Adv Mater Interfaces. 2023. Available from: wiley.com
- 233. Yu N, Ballato J, Digonnet MJF. Optically managing thermal energy in high-power yb-doped fiber lasers and amplifiers: a brief review. Curr Opt. 2022. Available from: coppjournal.org
- 234.Luo K, Fu Q, Liu X, Zhao R, He Q, Hu B, An Z. Study of polarization transmission characteristics in nonspherical media. Opt Lasers Eng. 2024. Available from: ssrn.com
- 235.Su G, Huang Q, Sun C, Deng F, *et al.* A study on light extinction model and inversion of mixed particle system based on Monte Carlo method. Powder Technol. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 236.Ke X. Partially Coherent Optical Transmission Theory in Optical Wireless Communication. 2025. Available from: [HTML]
- 237.Isaac Z. Modelling external light transmission through to the human fetus. 2024. Available from: waikato.ac.nz

- 238.Miao Y, Dong CJ, Ma Y, Jia C, *et al.* Measurement of turbid media by total internal reflection with Goos-Hänchen angle displacement. Results Phys. 2024. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 239. Yang Q, Zhang C, Liu S, You S. Numerical investigation on the impact of geometric complexity on radiative properties of nanofluid in photothermal conversion. Sol Energy Mater Sol Cells. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 240.Miloshevsky G. Ultrafast laser matter interactions: modeling approaches, challenges, and prospects. Modell Simul Mater Sci. 2022. Available from: iop.org
- 241.Mei X, Zha R, Pan Y, Wang S, Sun B, Lei C, Ke C. Dielectric Laser Accelerators Driven by Ultrashort, Ultraintense Long-Wave Infrared Lasers. Ultrafast. 2023. Available from: science.org
- 242.Li FY, Singh PK, Palaniyappan S, Huang CK. Particle resonances and trapping of direct laser acceleration in a laser-plasma channel. Phys Rev Accel Beams. 2021. Available from: aps.org
- 243.Shiloh R, Schönenberger N, Adiv Y. Miniature light-driven nanophotonic electron acceleration and control. Adv Opt. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 244.Wang D, Wei S, Yuan X, Liu Z, Weng Y. Ultrafast imaging for uncovering laser–material interaction dynamics. Int J. 2022. Available from: wiley.com
- 245. Ardaneh K, Hassan M, Morel B, Meyer R, *et al.* Femtosecond laser-induced sub-wavelength plasma inside dielectrics: II. Second-harmonic generation. 2022. Available from: [PDF]
- 246. Tanaka A, Ohta R, Dougakiuchi M, Tanaka T. Silicon nanorod formation from powder feedstock through co-condensation in plasma flash evaporation and its feasibility for lithium-ion batteries. Sci Rep. 2021. Available from: nature.com
- 247.Zhao N, Guo Z, Kulkarni S, Norman D. Engineering the human blood-brain barrier at the capillary scale using a double-templating technique. Adv Funct Mater. 2022. Available from: wiley.com
- 248.Zhang Y, Cheng H, Gao H, Liu D, *et al.* On the charged aerosols generated by atmospheric pressure non-equilibrium plasma. High Voltage. 2021. Available from: wiley.com
- 249.Korzhyk VM, Strogonov DV, others. Effectiveness of the process of

- plasma-arc spheroidization of current-conducting titanium wire. Suchasna. 2023. Available from: patonpublishinghouse.com
- 250.Bartkowiak A, Zabila Y, Menaszek E, Zarzycki A. Effect of tantalum interlayer on hydroxyapatite biointerface for orthopedic applications. Surf Coat Technol. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 251.Yang Y, Valencia LA, Lu CH, Nakamoto ML. Plasma membrane curvature regulates the formation of contacts with the endoplasmic reticulum. *Nature Cell*. 2024. Available from: nature.com
- 252.Huang Z, Guo ZX, Liu L, Guo YY, Chen J. Structure and corrosion behavior of ultra-thick nitrided layer produced by plasma nitriding of austenitic stainless steel. *Surface and Coatings*. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 253.Antonosyan DA, Solntsev AS, Sukhorukov AA. Parity-Time Anti-Symmetric Parametric Amplifier. 2015. Available from: [PDF]
- 254.Flemens N, Heberle D, Zheng J, Dean DJ, *et al*. High quantum efficiency parametric amplification via hybridized nonlinear optics. 2022. Available from: [PDF]
- 255.Consoli A, Caselli N, López C. Networks of random lasers: current perspective and future challenges. *Optical Materials Express*. 2023. Available from: optica.org
- 256.Ni D, Späth M, Klämpfl F, Hohmann M. Properties and applications of random lasers as emerging light sources and optical sensors: a review. *Sensors*. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 257.Antonio C, Niccoló C, Cefe L. Networks of random lasers: current perspective and future challenges. 2023. Available from: urjc.es
- 258.Riemensberger J, Kuznetsov N, Liu J, He J, Wang RN. A photonic integrated continuous-travelling-wave parametric amplifier. *Nature*. 2022. Available from: [PDF]
- 259.Shi L, Tang J, Li RZ, Chen ZX, Gu XW, Qian G. TFLN-based nondegenerate optical parametric amplifier with high gain, high saturated optical power and linear wavelength tunability. *Optics & Laser*. 2025. Available from: [HTML]
- 260. Villa A, Ross AM, Gotti R, Lamperti M. Broadly tunable mid-infrared femtosecond pulses directly generated by an optical parametric amplifier. *OSA*. 2021. Available from: optica.org

- 261.Ribeiro V, Szabó ÁD, Rocha AM. Parametric amplification and wavelength conversion in dual-core highly nonlinear fibers. *Journal of Lightwave*. 2022. Available from: hal.science
- 262.Qu Y, Wu J, Zhang Y, Yang Y, Jia L. Integrated optical parametric amplifiers in silicon nitride waveguides incorporated with 2D graphene oxide films. *Light: Advanced*. 2024. Available from: light-am.com
- 263.Li Q, Wen H, Yang X, Xu Q, Li Y, Yang J, Yang H. Fiber-optic parametric amplifier-based all-optical format conversion enabling optical networks interconnection with different modulation formats. *Optics & Laser*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 264. Amsellem W, Sarvestani HY, Pankov V. Deep precision machining of SiC ceramics by picosecond laser ablation. *Ceramics*. 2023. Available from: researchgate.net
- 265. Wright C. Development of an ultrafast laser ultra-precision machining platform. 2021. Available from: cam.ac.uk
- 266.Niu S, Wang W, Liu P, Zhang Y, Zhao X, Li J. Recent advances in applications of ultrafast lasers. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 267.Orazi L, Romoli L, Schmidt M, Li L. Ultrafast laser manufacturing: from physics to industrial applications. *CIRP Annals*. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 268.Lin Z, Hong M. Femtosecond laser precision engineering: from micron, submicron, to nanoscale. *Ultrafast Science*. 2021. Available from: science.org
- 269. Žemaitis A, Gečys P, Gedvilas M. High throughput and low surface roughness laser layer-by-layer milling using nanosecond (ns), picosecond (ps), and hybrid ns-ps pulses: A comparative study. *Optics and Lasers in Engineering*. 2024. Available from: google.com
- 270.Feng J, Wang J, Liu H, Sun Y, *et al.* A review of an investigation of the ultrafast laser processing of brittle and hard materials. *Materials*. 2024. Available from: mdpi.com
- 271.Narazaki A, Takada H, Yoshitomi D. Ultrafast laser processing of ceramics: Comprehensive survey of laser parameters. *Journal of Laser*. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 272.Zheng N, Buividas R, Huang HH, Stonytė D. Laser Machining at High ~PW/cm² Intensity and High Throughput. *Photonics*. 2024. Available from: mdpi.com

- 273.Bruening S, Gillner A, Du K. Multi beam microprocessing for printing and embossing applications with high power ultrashort pulsed lasers. *Advanced Optical Technologies*. 2021. Available from: degruyter.com
- 274.Ali B, Litvinyuk IV, Rybachuk M. Femtosecond laser micromachining of diamond: Current research status, applications and challenges. *Carbon*. 2021. Available from: [PDF]
- 275.Siddiqui KM, Durham DB, Cropp F, Ji F. Relativistic ultrafast electron diffraction at high repetition rates. *Structural*. 2023. Available from: aip.org
- 276.Danylyuk S, Osbild M, Korr L, Fischer M. Sub-micrometer structuring of surfaces with deep UV lasers. *Laser-based Micro....* 2023. Available from: researchgate.net
- 277.Osbild M, Brüning S, Gerhorst EA. Advanced high-resolution cylinder structuring with parallel Bessel beams under use of UV femtosecond laser radiation. *Laser Applications*. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 278.Luo H, Zhang Y, Yu J, Dong X, *et al.* Additive, subtractive and formative manufacturing of glass-based functional micro/nanostructures: a comprehensive review. *Materials & Design*. 2023. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 279.Zinnecker V, Madden S, Stokes-Griffin C. Ultrashort pulse laser ablation of steel in ambient air. *Optics & Laser*. Elsevier. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 280.Sun H, Li J, Liu M, Yang D, *et al.* A review of effects of femtosecond laser parameters on metal surface properties. *Coatings*. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 281.Asshauer T, Latz C, Mirshahi A. Femtosecond lasers for eye surgery applications: historical overview and modern low pulse energy concepts. *Advanced Optical*. 2021. Available from: degruyter.com
- 282.Lin HY, Chuang YJ, Lin PJ. Surgical outcomes with high and low pulse energy femtosecond laser systems for cataract surgery. *Scientific Reports*. 2021. Available from: nature.com
- 283. Tulej M, Ligterink NFW, Koning C, Grimaudo V. Current progress in femtosecond laser ablation/ionisation time-of-flight mass spectrometry. *Applied Sciences*. 2021. Available from: mdpi.com
- 284.Caramello N, Royant A. From femtoseconds to minutes: time-resolved macromolecular crystallography at XFELs and synchrotrons. *Acta Crystallographica Section D*. 2024. Available from: iucr.org

- 285. Jiao Y, He J, Zhang X, Zhang Y, Tai R. Research on picosecond synchronization control between synchrotron radiation X-ray pulse and femtosecond laser pulse on SSRF. *Nuclear Instruments and Methods*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 286.Bobkov K, Levchenko A, Kashaykina T, Aleshkina S. Scaling of average power in sub-MW peak power Yb-doped tapered fiber picosecond pulse amplifiers. *Optics*. 2021. Available from: optica.org
- 287.Buttolph ML, Sidorenko P, Schaffer CB, Wise FW. Femtosecond optical parametric chirped-pulse amplification in birefringent step-index fiber. *Optics Letters*. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 288.Sun M, Liao X. An RF Power Amplifier Integrated with the Self-Health Monitor Sensor and Multi-Source Energy Harvesting Circuit. *IEEE Transactions on Power Electronics*. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 289. Tamer I, Reagan BA, Galvin T, Batysta F, Sistrunk E. 1 GW peak power and 100 J pulsed operation of a diode-pumped Tm: YLF laser. *Optics*. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 290.Sabbah M, Mears R, Murphy L, Harrington K. Tuneable megawatt-scale sub-15 fs visible pulses via dispersive wave emission pumped by a gain managed fiber amplifier. *Advanced Solid State*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 291.Duan Y, Liu J, Wang H, Zhang Y, *et al.* KTA-OPO for 1742 nm laser generation driven by a composite Nd:YVO4-based self-Raman laser. *Optics Express.* 2024. Available from: optica.org
- 292. Chen JC, Tu YC, Ho YW, Liang HC, *et al.* Highly efficient diodepumped passively Q-switched Nd:YVO4/KGW Raman lasers at yellow and orange wavelengths. *Optics Express*. 2023. Available from: optica.org
- 293.Zhang Z, Deng J, Hu X, Ma X, *et al.* Q-switched Nd:YVO4 laser operating at 1064 nm with NiPS3 nanoflakes onto a silica metasurface as saturable absorbers. *Optics Express*. 2024. Available from: optica.org
- 294. Huang HJ, Chang XW, Hsieh CL, Li D, *et al.* Compact efficient high-power continuous-wave Nd:YVO4/KGW/LBO Raman lasers for selectable wavelengths within 559-603 nm. *Optics Express.* 2024. Available from: optica.org
- 295. Tajima T, Mourou G. Zettawatt-Exawatt Lasers and Their Applications in Ultrastrong-Field Physics: High Energy Front. 2001. Available from: [PDF]

- 296. Taylor N. The Invention of the Laser. *Optical Tweezers: Methods and Protocols*. 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 297.Biswas DJ. Lasers: At a Glance. In: *A Beginner's Guide to Lasers and Their Applications*. Springer, 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 298.Scholtz S, Becker M, MacMorris L. LASER. 'A solution in search of a problem.' *Curiosities in Medicine*. Springer, 2022. Available from: [HTML]
- 299. Tay WC, Heng JK. History of the Development of Lasers for Dermatological Applications. *Updates on Lasers in Dermatology*. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 300.da Silva Neto ED, dos Santos Rodrigues Neto T. Laser Therapy. In: *Diseases of the Retina*. Springer, 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 301. Fourkas JT, Sugioka K, Lu Y. Frontiers in lasers and applications. Front Nanotechnol. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 302.Gibbons WR. LASERS IN ART CONSERVATION. Laser Safety in Specialized Applications. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 303.Danson CN, White M, Barr JR, Bett T. A history of high-power laser research and development in the United Kingdom. High Power Laser. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: cambridge.org
- 304. Chongbin C, Junmin H, Hongqing S. Birth of the First Ruby Laser in China. Proc IEEE. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 305. Farshidianfar A, Nabavi SF, Farshidianfar MH. The Laser Manufacturing Process: Fundamentals of Process and Applications. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 306.Rajan JS, Muhammad UN. Evolution and advancement of lasers in dentistry-A literature review. Int J Oral Health. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: lww.com
- 307.Laforge FO, Lee J, Rabitz HA. The Early Era of Laser-Selective Chemistry 1960~ 1985: Roots of Modern Quantum Control. J Phys Chem. 2023. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 308. Farshidianfar A, Nabavi SF, Farshidianfar MH. The Laser Manufacturing Process: Fundamentals of Process and Applications. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 309. Gonçalves LFFF, Duarte FM, Martins CI. Laser welding of

- thermoplastics: An overview on lasers, materials, processes and quality. Infrared Phys & Technol. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: uminho.pt
- 310.Tzanakakis EG, Skoulas E, Pepelassi E, Koidis P. The use of lasers in dental materials: A review. Materials. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: mdpi.com
- 311.Berlien HP. Principles of Laser Application in Medicine. 2018. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 312.Ma L, Fei B. Comprehensive review of surgical microscopes: technology development and medical applications. J Biomed Opt. 2021;26(6):060601. doi: 10.1117/1.JBO.26.6.060601.
- 313.Jadhav A, Jadhav VS. A review on 3D printing: An additive manufacturing technology. Mater Today Proc. 2022;9:2873–2876. doi: 10.1016/j.matpr.2021.12.017.
- 314.Rouf S, Malik A, Singh N, Raina A, Naveed N. Additive manufacturing technologies: Industrial and medical applications. Sustainable Oper. 2022;9:105–119. doi: 10.1016/j.susoper.2021.08.004.
- 315.O'Halloran S, Pandit A, Heise A, Kellett A. Two-photon polymerization: fundamentals, materials, and chemical modification strategies. Adv Sci. 2023;10(12):2203580. doi: 10.1002/advs.202203580.
- 316.Bansal G, Rajgopal K, Chamola V, Xiong Z. Healthcare in metaverse: A survey on current metaverse applications in healthcare. IEEE. 2022. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: ieee.org
- 317.Lindner P. Better, virtually: the past, present, and future of virtual reality cognitive behavior therapy. Int J Cogn Ther. 2021;14(3):257-274. doi: 10.1007/s11026-021-09912-9.
- 318. Volti R, Croissant J. Society and technological change. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 319.Stein DJ, Shoptaw SJ, Vigo DV, Lund C. Psychiatric diagnosis and treatment in the 21st century: paradigm shifts versus incremental integration. World Psychiatry. 2022;21(3):440-441. doi: 10.1002/wps.20965.
- 320.Coppola F, Faggioni L, Gabelloni M. Human, all too human? An allaround appraisal of the 'artificial intelligence revolution' in medical imaging. Front Artif Intell. 2021;4:663657. doi: 10.3389/frai.2021.663657.

- 321.Shiwlani A, Khan M, Sherani AMK. Synergies of AI and Smart Technology: Revolutionizing Cancer Medicine, Vaccine Development, and Patient Care. J Soc. 2023;42(6):145-155. Available from: mediapublikasi.id
- 322.Barrett H, Rose DC. Perceptions of the fourth agricultural revolution: what's in, what's out, and what consequences are anticipated? Sociol Rural. 2022;62(3):445-470. doi: 10.1111/soru.12305.
- 323.Eisenberg RS. Maxwell equations without a polarization field, Using a paradigm from biophysics. Entropy. 2021;23(9):1154. doi: 10.3390/e23091154.
- 324. Wang ZL. On the expanded Maxwell's equations for moving charged media system—General theory, mathematical solutions and applications in TENG. Mater Today. 2022. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: wanggenerator.com
- 325.Dongfang XD. Dongfang Modified Equations of Electromagnetic Wave. Math Nature. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: researchgate.net
- 326.Tretyakov OA, Erden F. A novel simple format of Maxwell's equations in SI units. IEEE Access. 2021;9:113538-113548. doi: 10.1109/ACCESS.2021.3087947.
- 327.Klai Z, Ayari M, Hammami MA, Kefi K. Electromagnetic Transverse Modes in Periodic Structures: Mathematical Analysis and Engineering Applications. J Electr. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 328.Sibley MJN. Introduction to Electromagnetism: From Coulomb to Maxwell. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 329.Bertolini E, Maggiore N. Maxwell theory of fractons. Phys Rev D. 2022;105(6):065003. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevD.105.065003.
- 330. Wang ZL. The expanded Maxwell's equations for a mechano-driven media system that moves with acceleration. Int J Mod Phys B. 2023;37(24):2350209. doi: 10.1142/S0217979223502091.
- 331.Turunen J, Halder A, Koivurova M, Setälä T. Measurement of spatial coherence of light. JOSA A. 2022;39(10):1846-1852. doi: 10.1364/JOSAA.449846.
- 332.Bergmann RB, Kalms M, Falldorf C. Optical in-process measurement: Concepts for precise, fast and robust optical metrology for complex measurement situations. Appl Sci. 2021;11(19):4606. doi: 10.3390/app11194606.

- 333.Trusiak M. Fringe analysis: single-shot or two-frames? Quantitative phase imaging answers. Opt Express. 2021;29(21):33394-33406. doi: 10.1364/OE.434331.
- 334.Kim YJ, Fitzgerald MP, Lin J, Sallum S. Coherent imaging with photonic lanterns. Astrophys J. 2024;901(2):128. doi: 10.3847/1538-4357/abe566.
- 335.Chen R, Ma Y, Zhang C, Xu W, *et al.* All-optical perception based on partially coherent optical neural networks. Opt Express. 2025;33(2):1386-1397. doi: 10.1364/OE.432515.
- 336.Leonetti M, Pattelli L, De Panfilis S, Wiersma DS. Spatial coherence of light inside three-dimensional media. Nature. 2021;589(7841):121-125. doi: 10.1038/s41586-020-03160-7.
- 337.Gold DC, Huft P, Young C, Safari A, Walker TG. Spatial coherence of light in collective spontaneous emission. PRX Quantum. 2022;3(1):010311. doi: 10.1103/PRXQuantum.3.010311.
- 338. Yu J, Zhu X, Wang F, Chen Y, *et al.* Research progress on manipulating spatial coherence structure of light beam and its applications. Prog Quantum Electron. 2023. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [HTML]
- 339.Orito T, Imura KI. Entanglement dynamics in the many-body Hatano-Nelson model. Phys Rev B. 2023;107(12):125111. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevB.107.125111.
- 340.Hahn D, Luitz DJ, Chalker JT. Eigenstate correlations, the eigenstate thermalization hypothesis, and quantum information dynamics in chaotic many-body quantum systems. Phys Rev X. 2024;14(1):011042. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevX.14.011042.
- 341.Carollo F, Alba V. Entangled multiplets and spreading of quantum correlations in a continuously monitored tight-binding chain. Phys Rev B. 2022;106(2):024302. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevB.106.024302.
- 342. Yang PY, Tzeng YC. Entanglement Hamiltonian and effective temperature of non-Hermitian quantum spin ladders. SciPost Phys Core. 2024;7(1):009. doi: 10.21468/SciPostPhysCore.7.1.009.
- 343.Mizoguchi R, Borgo S. The Role of the Systemic View in Foundational Ontologies. JOWO. 2021. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: ceurws.org
- 344. Chatterjee S, Sarker SS, Lee MJ, Xiao X. A possible conceptualization of the information systems (IS) artifact: A general systems theory perspective. Inf Syst. 2021;101:101439. doi: 10.1016/j.is.2021.101439.

- 345.Chen YQ, Liu S, Zhang SX. Subsystem Information Capacity in Random Circuits and Hamiltonian Dynamics. arXiv preprint arXiv:2405.05076. 2024. [cited 2025 Jan 24]. Available from: [PDF]
- 346. Varnavski O, Giri SK, Chiang TM. Colors of entangled two-photon absorption. Proc Natl Acad Sci. 2023;120(10):e2216662120. doi: 10.1073/pnas.2216662120.
- 347.Li J, Chesi S. Routes to chaos in the balanced two-photon Dicke model with qubit dissipation. Phys Rev A. 2024;110(1):013801. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevA.110.013801.
- 348.Gu W, Huang H, Yi Z, Chen L, *et al.* Correlated two-photon scattering in a one-dimensional waveguide coupled to two-or three-level giant atoms. Phys Rev A. 2023;107(3):033712. doi: 10.1103/PhysRevA.107.033712.
- 349.Bunjac A, Popović DB, Simonović NS. Analysis of the asymmetry of Autler–Townes doublets in the energy spectra of photoelectrons produced at two-photon ionization of atoms by strong laser pulses. Eur Phys J D. 2022;76(5):75. doi: 10.1140/epjd/s10053-022-00370-w.
- 350.Schlawin F. Two-photon absorption cross sections of pulsed entangled beams. J Chem Phys. 2024;160(7):074105. doi: 10.1063/5.0006749.
- 351.Li J, Chesi S. Nonlinear dynamics in the balanced two-photon Dicke model with qubit dissipation. arXiv preprint arXiv:2310.20206. 2023. [PDF]
- 352.Raymer MG, Landes T, Marcus AH. Entangled two-photon absorption by atoms and molecules: A quantum optics tutorial. J Chem Phys. 2021. aip.org
- 353.Zoller P, Cirac JI, Duan L, Garcia-Ripoll JJ. Implementing quantum information processing with atoms, ions and photons. 2004. [PDF]
- 354.Alfieri A, Anantharaman SB, Zhang H. Nanomaterials for quantum information science and engineering. Adv. 2023. [PDF]
- 355.Pelucchi E, Fagas G, Aharonovich I, Englund D. The potential and global outlook of integrated photonics for quantum technologies. Nat Rev. 2022. ucc.ie
- 356. Girvin SM. Basic concepts in quantum information. 2013. [PDF]
- 357. Vuong QH, Nguyen MH. Better economics for the Earth: A lesson from quantum and information theories. 2024. philpapers.org
- 358.Coccia M, Roshani S, Mosleh M. Evolution of quantum computing:

- Theoretical and innovation management implications for emerging quantum industry. IEEE Trans. 2022. researchgate.net
- 359.Banchi L, Pereira J, Pirandola S. Generalization in quantum machine learning: A quantum information standpoint. PRX Quantum. 2021. aps.org
- 360.Kim D, Kang J, Kim TW, Pan Y. The future of quantum information: Challenges and vision. J Inf. 2021. koreascience.kr
- 361.Chapman S, Policastro G. Quantum computational complexity from quantum information to black holes and back. Eur Phys J C. 2022. springer.com
- 362.Liu CX, Bozkurt AM, Zatelli F, ten Haaf SLD. Enhancing the excitation gap of a quantum-dot-based Kitaev chain. Commun. 2024. nature.com
- 363.Pachos J, Knight PL. Quantum Computation with a One-Dimensional Optical Lattice. 2003. [PDF]
- 364.Xie S, Zhu H, Zhang X, Wang H. A brief review on the recent development of phonon engineering and manipulation at nanoscales. Int J Extreme. 2023. iop.org
- 365.Arrazola I, Minoguchi Y, Lemonde MA, Sipahigil A. Toward high-fidelity quantum information processing and quantum simulation with spin qubits and phonons. Phys Rev B. 2024. [PDF]
- 366.Marti S, von Lüpke U, Joshi O, Yang Y, Bild M. Quantum squeezing in a nonlinear mechanical oscillator. Nat Phys. 2024. nature.com
- 367.최원형. Detuned State Dependent Squeezing in a Trapped Ion. 2024. snu.ac.kr
- 368.Lee H, Poncé S, Bushick K, Hajinazar S. Electron–phonon physics from first principles using the EPW code. npj Comput. 2023. nature.com
- 369.Kudryavtsev KE, Rumyantsev VV, Dubinov AA. Hot phonon effect in mid-infrared HgTe/CdHgTe quantum wells evaluated by quasi-steady-state photoluminescence. Appl Phys. 2024. [HTML]
- 370.Bravyi S, Dial O, Gambetta JM, Gil D. The future of quantum computing with superconducting qubits. J Appl. 2022. [PDF]
- 371.Stancil DD, Byrd GT. Principles of superconducting quantum computers. 2022. [HTML]
- 372.Ekert A, Hayden P, Inamori H. Basic concepts in quantum computation. 2000. [PDF]

- 373.Malo JY, Lepori L, Gentini L, Chiofalo ML. Atomic Quantum Technologies for Quantum Matter and Fundamental Physics Applications. arXiv preprint arXiv. 2024. [PDF]
- 374.Malo JY, Lepori L, Gentini L, Chiofalo ML. Atomic Quantum Technologies for Quantum Matter and Fundamental Physics Applications. Technol. 2024. mdpi.com
- 375.Xiang B, Xiong W. Molecular polaritons for chemistry, photonics and quantum technologies. Chem Rev. 2024. acs.org
- 376.Takata K, Nozaki K, Kuramochi E, Matsuo S, Takeda K. Observing exceptional point degeneracy of radiation with electrically pumped photonic crystal coupled-nanocavity lasers. Optica. 2021. optica.org
- 377.Pieczarka M, Gębski M, Piasecka AN, Lott JA. Bose–Einstein condensation of photons in a vertical-cavity surface-emitting laser. Nature. 2024. nature.com
- 378.Zhang B, Ianconescu R, Friedman A. Spontaneous photon emission by shaped quantum electron wavepackets and the QED origin of bunched electron beam superradiance. Rep Prog Phys. 2024. iop.org
- 379.Piotrowski P, Buza M, Nowaczyński R. Ultrafast photoluminescence and multiscale light amplification in nanoplasmonic cavity glass. Nature. 2024. nature.com
- 380.Zygelman B. No-cloning theorem, quantum teleportation and spooky correlations. In: A First Introduction to Quantum Computing and Springer; 2024. [HTML]
- 381.Doosti M. Unclonability and quantum cryptanalysis: from foundations to applications. arXiv preprint arXiv:2210.17545. 2022. [PDF]
- 382.Dutta H, Bhuyan AK. Quantum Communication: From Fundamentals to Recent Trends, Challenges and Open Problems. arXiv preprint arXiv:2406.04492. 2024. [PDF]
- 383.Li Y. A Kind of (n, t) Threshold Quantum State Sharing Scheme Based on Chinese Reminder Theorem. Adv Eng Technol Res. 2024. madison-proceedings.com
- 384.Li Y. A Kind of *n*, *t*Threshold Quantum State Sharing Scheme Based on Chinese Reminder Theorem. scholar.archive.org. archive.org
- 385. Volovich IV, Volovich YI. On Classical and Quantum Cryptography. 2001. [PDF]

- 386.Bohm A, Gadella M. Some little things about rigged Hilbert spaces and quantum mechanics and all that. ..., and dynamical systems. 2021. [HTML]
- 387.Moudgalya S, Bernevig BA. Quantum many-body scars and Hilbert space fragmentation: a review of exact results. ... on Prog Phys. 2022. [PDF]
- 388.Ellerman D. Follow the Math!: The mathematics of quantum mechanics as the mathematics of set partitions linearized to (Hilbert) vector spaces. Found Phys. 2022. [PDF]
- 389.Schermerhorn BP, Corsiglia G, Sadaghiani H. From Cartesian coordinates to Hilbert space: Supporting student understanding of basis in quantum mechanics. Phys Rev Phys. 2022. aps.org
- 390.Bhaumik ML. Is the Quantum State Real in the Hilbert Space Formulation? arXiv preprint arXiv:2210.13973. 2022. [PDF]
- 391.Rundle RP, Everitt MJ. Overview of the phase space formulation of quantum mechanics with application to quantum technologies. Adv Quantum Technol. 2021. wiley.com
- 392. Yang J, Jiang Z, Benthin F, Hanel J. High-rate intercity quantum key distribution with a semiconductor single-photon source. Light Sci. 2024. nature.com
- 393.Basso Basset F, Valeri M, Roccia E, Muredda V. Quantum key distribution with entangled photons generated on demand by a quantum dot. Science. 2021. science.org
- 394.Raparthi M. Quantum Cryptography and Secure Health Data Transmission: Emphasizing Quantum Cryptography's Role in Ensuring Privacy and Confidentiality in Healthcare. Blockchain Technol Distribut. 2022. thesciencebrigade.com
- 395.Zahidy M, Mikkelsen MT, Müller R, Da Lio B. Quantum key distribution using deterministic single-photon sources over a field-installed fibre link. npj Quantum. 2024. nature.com
- 396. Hughes RJ, Morgan GL, Peterson CG. Practical quantum key distribution over a 48-km optical fiber network. 1999. [PDF]
- 397.Singh A, Dev K, Siljak H, Joshi HD. Quantum internet—applications, functionalities, enabling technologies, challenges, and research directions. Surv Tutorials. 2021. ieee.org
- 398.Cao Y, Zhao Y, Wang Q, Zhang J. The evolution of quantum key

- distribution networks: On the road to the qinternet. Surv Tutorials. 2022. soton.ac.uk
- 399.Cherckesova LV, Safaryan OA, Beskopylny AN. Development of Quantum Protocol Modification CSLOE–2022, Increasing the Cryptographic Strength of Classical Quantum Protocol BB84. Electronics. 2022. mdpi.com
- 400. Youvan DC. Novel Advancements in Distributed Quantum Computing Using Silicon T Centres: Implications for Scalable Quantum Networks. 2024. researchgate.net
- 401.Chiti F, Picchi R, Pierucci L. A survey on non-terrestrial quantum networking: Challenges and trends. Computer Networks. 2024. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 402.Bhuyan AK, Dutta H. Harnessing Quantum Entanglement: Comprehensive Strategies for Enhanced Communication and Beyond in Quantum Networks. arXiv preprint arXiv:2406.08833. 2024. Available from: [PDF]
- 403. Vasani V, Prateek K, Amin R, Maity S. Embracing the quantum frontier: Investigating quantum communication, cryptography, applications and future directions. Journal of Industrial. Elsevier. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 404.Babu PR, Kumar SAP, Reddy AG, Das AK. Quantum secure authentication and key agreement protocols for IoT-enabled applications: A comprehensive survey and open challenges. Computer Science Review. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 405.Aldarwbi M, Ghorbani AA, Lashkari AH. The Quantum Shift in Group Communication: A Review and Analysis of Group Key Establishment from Classical to Advanced Quantum-Safe and Quantum-Based Authorea Preprints. 2024. Available from: techrxiv.org
- 406.Azahari NSB, Harun NZB, Zukarnain ZB. Quantum identity authentication for non-entanglement multiparty communication: A review, state of art and future directions. ICT Express. 2023. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 407. Andronikos T, Sirokofskich A. An entanglement-based protocol for simultaneous reciprocal information exchange between 2 players. Electronics. 2023. Available from: mdpi.com
- 408. Walk N, Eisert J. Sharing classical secrets with continuous-variable entanglement: composable security and network coding advantage. PRX

- Quantum. 2021. Available from: aps.org
- 409.Dembitska SV, Krasnoshchoka AK. LASER SYSTEMS SAFETY CLASSIFICATION ACCORDING TO HEALTH HAZARD LEVEL. 2015. Available from: [PDF]
- 410.Omer H. Radiobiological effects and medical applications of nonionizing radiation. Saudi Journal of Biological Sciences. 2021. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 411.Soltani MD, Sarbazi E, Bamiedakis N. Safety analysis for laser-based optical wireless communications: A tutorial. Proceedings of the ... IEEE. 2022. Available from: ieee.org
- 412. Soltani MD, Sarbazi E, Bamiedakis N. Safety analysis for laser-based optical wireless communications: A tutorial. arXiv preprint arXiv. 2021. Available from: [PDF]
- 413.Mosel P, Sankar P, Zulqarnain, Appi E, Jusko C. Potential hazards and mitigation of X-ray radiation generated by laser-induced plasma from research-grade laser systems. Optics. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 414.Kurdi FT, Reed P, Gharineiat Z. Efficiency of terrestrial laser scanning in survey works: Assessment, modelling, and monitoring. arXiv preprint arXiv. 2023. Available from: [PDF]
- 415.Mohsan SAH, Othman NQH, Khan MA, Amjad H. A comprehensive review of micro UAV charging techniques. Micromachines. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 416.Balestrieri E, Daponte P, De Vito L, Picariello F. Sensors and measurements for UAV safety: An overview. Sensors. 2021. Available from: mdpi.com
- 417. Senesi GS, Harmon RS, Hark RR. Field-portable and handheld laser-induced breakdown spectroscopy: Historical review, current status and future prospects. Spectrochimica Acta Part B: Atomic. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 418.Zhu J, Huang X, Song W. Physical and chemical sensors on the basis of laser-induced graphene: mechanisms, applications, and perspectives. ACS Nano. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 419.Korkmaz ME, Gupta MK, Robak G, Moj K. Development of lattice structure with selective laser melting process: A state of the art on properties, future trends and challenges. Journal of Manufacturing. 2022. Available from: [HTML]

- 420.Le TSD, Phan HP, Kwon S, Park S. Recent advances in laser-induced graphene: mechanism, fabrication, properties, and applications in flexible electronics. Advanced Functional Materials. 2022. Available from: wiley.com
- 421.Macenski S, Foote T, Gerkey B, Lalancette C. Robot operating system 2: Design, architecture, and uses in the wild. Science Robotics. 2022. Available from: science.org
- 422.Ranasinghe K, Sabatini R, Gardi A, Bijjahalli S. Advances in Integrated System Health Management for mission-essential and safety-critical aerospace applications. Progress in Aerospace. 2022. Available from: sciencedirect.com
- 423.Mahmood A, Beltramelli L, Abedin SF, *et al.* Industrial IoT in 5G-and-beyond networks: Vision, architecture, and design trends. IEEE Transactions. 2021. Available from: google.com
- 424. Clements R. Built to fail: The inherent fragility of algorithmic stablecoins. Wake Forest L. Rev. Online. 2021. Available from: ssrn.com
- 425. Tomilov S, Hoffmann M, Wang Y. Moving towards high-power thin-disk lasers in the 2 μ m wavelength range. Journal of Physics. 2021. Available from: iop.org
- 426.Cavilha Neto F, Pereira M, dos Santos Paes LE. Assessment of power modulation formats on penetration depth for laser welding. Journal of the Brazilian, 2021. Available from: academia.edu
- 427.Ostrin LA, Schill AW. Red light instruments for myopia exceed safety limits. Ophthalmic and Physiological Optics. 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 428.Zhong P, Wang L, Yang B, Zhang H, Xi X, Wang P. 2×2 kW near-single-mode bidirectional high-power output from a single-cavity monolithic fiber laser. Optics Letters. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 429. Zhang L, Sheng Q, Chen L, Zhang J, Fu S, Fang Q. Single-frequency Tm-doped fiber laser with 215 mW at 2.05 μm based on a Tm/Ho-codoped fiber saturable absorber. Optics Letters. 2022. Available from: optica.org
- 430.Ma Q, Fan Y, Luo Z, Cui Y, *et al.* Quantitative analysis of collagen and capillaries of 3.8-µm laser-induced cutaneous thermal injury and wound healing. Lasers in Medical Science. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 431.Jean M, Schulmeister K. Laser-induced injury of the skin: validation of a computer model to predict thresholds. Biomedical Optics Express. 2021. Available from: optica.org

- 432.Fan Y, Ma Q, Wang J, Wang W, *et al.* Evaluation of a 3.8-μm laser-induced skin injury and their repair with in vivo OCT imaging and noninvasive monitoring. Lasers in Medical Science. 2021. Available from: [HTML]
- 433.St Hilaire MA, Ámundadóttir ML. The spectral sensitivity of human circadian phase resetting and melatonin suppression to light changes dynamically with light duration. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences. 2022. Available from: pnas.org
- 434.Palastro JP, Albert F, Albright B, Antonsen TM, *et al.* Laser-Plasma Interactions Enabled by Emerging Technologies. 2019. Available from: [PDF]
- 435. Thomas R, Unnikrishnan NV. Laser Device as Optical Energy Source and Its Applications. In: ... and Sustainability for ... 2024. Available from: [HTML]
- 436.Hassan ASA, Ahmed HY, Fadhil HA, Zeghid M. Implementation of shared laser–LED sources in a free space optics (FSO) network under environmental impact. Electronics. 2023. Available from: mdpi.com
- 437.Harilal SS, Phillips MC, Froula DH, Anoop KK. Optical diagnostics of laser-produced plasmas. Reviews of Modern Physics. 2022. Available from: aps.org
- 438.Kumar A, Kumar A, Kumar A. Introduction to Optics and Laser-Based Manufacturing Technologies. In: Laser-based Technologies for ..., Taylor & Francis. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 439.Lopac N, Jurdana I, Brnelić A, Krljan T. Application of laser systems for detection and ranging in the modern road transportation and maritime sector. Sensors. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 440.Chatwin C. High power lasers and interactions. 2007. Available from: [PDF]
- 441.Song S, Lu Q, Zhang P, Yan H, Shi H, Yu Z. A critical review on the simulation of ultra-short pulse laser-metal interactions based on a two-temperature model (TTM). Optics & Laser. Elsevier. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 442.Hazarika MP, Tripathi A. Two-temperature molecular dynamics simulation study of copper thin film irradiation with femtosecond and picosecond laser pulses. J. Laser Appl. 2023. Available from: [HTML]
- 443.Li X, Shi J, Wei L, Ding K, Ma Y, Sun K, Li Z, Qu Y, Li L. Research

- progress of wide tunable Bragg grating external cavity semiconductor lasers. Materials. 2022. Available from: mdpi.com
- 444.Li X, Shi J, Wei L, Ding K, Ma Y, Sun K, Li Z, Qu Y, Li L. Research Progress of Wide Tunable Bragg Grating External Cavity Semiconductor Lasers. Materials. 15:8256, 2022. Available from: semanticscholar.org
- 445.Shaw JT, Shah A, Yong H. Methods for quantifying methane emissions using unmanned aerial vehicles: A review. Transactions of the Royal Society. 2021. Available from: royalsocietypublishing.org
- 446.Paciolla F. Spectroscopic measurement of volatile organic compounds as biomarkers for human breath analysis. 2025. Available from: depositolegale.it